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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

TREEREEBARR DT

Business Review

The Group for the year (the “Year”) recorded revenue of HK$6.5 million,
representing a decrease of HK$29.6 million or 81.9% as compared to
that in last year. The decrease in revenue was mainly attributable to
the realized losses on the disposal of listed securities of approximately
HK$11.1 million in the financial investments and services segment. The
net loss for the Year was approximately HK$1,275.1 million as compared
to the net loss of approximately HK$7.9 million for the last year. Basic
loss per share attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent for
the Year was HK$1.10 (2014: basic earnings per share of HK1.28 cents
(restated)). The Group’s net loss for the Year was mainly attributable to
the fair value losses on derivative component of Issued Convertible Bonds
of approximately HK$206.6 million and the loss arising from modification
of Issued Convertible Bonds of approximately HK$1,000.8 million. Such
losses are non-cash in nature and has no effect on the cash flow.

Research and Development of Integrated Circuit
Technology

The Group has continued to place its efforts on research and development
of System-on-chip (SoC) technology. The core architecture in development
is a Multi-thread Virtual Pipeline (MVP) on a scalable and programmable
stream processor core, which is a new core architecture for computation
performance based on multi-processing and parallel computing. The MVP
is an independently developed “China Core” featuring the versatility of
a unified processor, combining the capabilities of central processing unit
(CPU) and graphics processing unit (GPU) in one solution for Mainland
China’s vast consumer electronics market. The Group's development of
this new processing architecture has revolutionized mobile computing
by unrolling its Harmony Unified Processor Technology, which contains
an independently Instruction-Set-Architecture with optimized complier,
the MVP parallel computing core and dynamic load balancing with Agile
Switching of simultaneously-multi-threading (SMT) threads.

During the Year, the Group continued to put its efforts in rolling out the
MVP based SoC products and introducing its technology into the product
applications in the market. With a view to bring in and popularize the
finger multi-touch functionality in the huge consumer electronics and
home appliances market, the Group has continued to cooperate with
reputable electrical and home appliance leaders to jointly develop smart
touch control screen used in a range of electrical and home appliance
products. In order to secure sales orders from potential customers in
the highly competitive consumer electronic market, the Group has put
a great deal of product design and engineering efforts in the areas of
qualifications for production and demo trials.

China Jinhai International Group Limited FE £ /EEBREEER LT

E 3 e

REBRAEE (TAFE] 85K A6, 5000005’%7*5*
B & F 8 429,600,000 7T 5k81.9% Y A @ 4 =
AR ERERBRES EEHE LTE %ZE*‘“IEJEHE%@
11,100,000 7T © AN 4F £ B 8 F 88 49 /%1,275,100,0007
JL M2 T - EFEEBFELA7,900,0008TT o KAFE
BARE AR AARGEREABEAR110BL (ZF
—PUF - BREREFN 28 (F5))) - AEEAFEE
BFEFTZAREETURREFZTETIARMH AT
8.2 E1849206,600,000/ T RAEE] B BT RREFELE
2 E518#£71,000,800,000%8 7T - ZE BB AFRSME - ¥
Iﬁ%/}lbiﬂ JEL"

W B SR A BB B T

AEBEEH IV EELTE ZRRT R (SoQ)Rkily » IEFE

FE ML IR T%/t’j—fﬁ%&Tfﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁlﬁﬁfiﬁﬁ\]V
(MVP) - ER—EBENRZEREBMIITEENEIEL T4

ROERE - MVPE— BB HEM [HES]  FEEAF
BEANthEEAEBEFMESRAERRERERCPUREFE
EE%E'*GPU MERE R — B R i%%gtﬁ AEBERBEER R

RE CRBEEENESARERRM AR EL L
ﬂmx%ﬁ ZEAM R :.,J%%{t%uia%m?%i%a@%
B MVPIITEEZLRBEAFHENSENRITTS
RIR(SMT) Z 4272 -

RAFE  REBEBT R HEEERMVPHISoCE @& 3|
HEHEMBEERS TNEMERER - R ZHENI) LS
AERHEEEFREAERTSAERLL R - AEEE
BHAREFREEELCHEEESIE  UHRAREAR—
ZINEBEFRREEMMNEERBIERED - AESERFAHE
ETFTMSEBERECEFPNEEE  AEECELEESR
BRENBERERTPIEEAEEMRTRIEEN -



Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

Electronic and Accessory Products

Amid the uncertain economic condition and weak customer sentiment
in European and United States markets, the sales demand for electronic
and accessory products in export markets remained slow and flat. Given
the continued keen price competition in the local consumer electronic
market, the local sales orders for the electronic accessories were weak
and slow. During the Year, the sales from the electronic and accessory
products segment was approximately HK$10.7 million, compared to that
of approximately HK$9.5 million last year. The operating loss for this
segment for this Year was approximately HK$5.5 million (2014: loss of
approximately HK$4.0 million).

Financial Investments and Services

The financial investments and services of the Group comprises securities
investment and trading, debt and equity investments and money lending
business. During the Year, the Hang Seng Index fluctuated between a
narrow range of 22,700 points to 24,900 points. In the first half of the
Year, the market sentiment continued to be adversely affected by the
economic slowdown in Mainland China. Due to the influx of hot money
in July and the mini-stimulus fiscal policies and measures taken by central
government of Mainland China, the investor's confidence gradually
improved. In November 2014, the People’s Bank of China relaxed their
monetary policy by cutting interest rate in order to support the economic
growth. It had stimulated China A share market in a frenzy and attracted
more hot money into both China and local stock market. The Group’s
securities portfolio recorded an unrealized fair value gains on the equity
investments of approximately HK$28.0 million, gain on disposal of
available-for-sale equity investments of approximately of HK$7.7 million
and a realized loss on disposal of equity investments of approximately
HK$11.1 million for the Year. The Group was also taking a cautious
approach to operate its money lending business and recorded interest
income of approximately HK$4.5 million during the Year.

Apart from consolidating its existing businesses, the Group has been
intensifying its efforts searching for suitable investment opportunities
which strategically fit into its diversification moves and generate a steady
source of income. During the Year, the launch of Shanghai and Hong
Kong Stock Connect program coupled with the bull rally of A- Share of
China stock market added support to the local stock market. With a view
to capture this opportunity and maximize returns to the shareholders, the
Group has expanded its securities investment and trading, and money
lending business under financial investments and services segment during
the Year and accelerated its momentum moving into new business areas
with high growth potential and profit prospects, in particular, the financial
service and products business.
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

TRHRENREEEN LN

Entering into the memorandum of understanding in relation to the
proposed acquisition of the third party payment businesses carried on
by Jifutong Payment Company Limited in August 2014 signified the
first attempt in which the Group is able to expand its integrated circuit
business downstream for its SoC technology into applications such as
third party payment market in Mainland China. However, the Group was
finally informed by the Vendor that the third party payment market in the
Mainland China has undergone and is expected to undergo significant
changes and reforms. In view of this, the Group terminated the discussions
with the Vendor with regards to the proposed acquisition in January 2015.

As motivated by the Shanghai and Hong Kong Stock Connect, the Group
has also entered agreements with the subscription shares in Freeman
Corporation Limited and HEC Capital Limited, respectively, in September
2014 (“Subscriptions”). The Group expected the Subscriptions were likely
to generate further business opportunities, as well as creating synergy for
the Group’s business development in the financial services industry.

Prospects

For the year to come, the Group will continue to consolidate its existing
business and diversify into the new solid business. On 20 May 2015, the
Company entered into the subscription agreement with Mr. Wei Zhenyu,
the chairman and director of Hubei Lan Ding Holding Company Limited,
Shenzhen-listed company (stock code: 971 sz) and conditionally agreed
to allot and issue in cash for an aggregate of 4,000,000,000 subscription
shares at the subscription price of HK$0.25 per subscription share (with a
total subscription price of HK$1 billion). The directors of the Company are
of the view that the share subscription represents a valuable opportunity
for the Group to bring in a solid investor with the financial capability to
invest in the Company. The share subscription also represents a good
opportunity to raise substantial amounts of additional funds for the
Company, improve the financial position and liquidity of the Group and
provide the financial flexibility necessary for the Group’s future business
development and the capability to capture any prospective investment
opportunity as and when it arises.

Looking ahead, the Group is cautiously optimistic about the performance
in the local stock market and the money lending business due to the
positive market expectation of Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect and
signs of steady economic recovery in the United States. However, the
uncertain US monetary policies and the potential threat of European debt
crisis of Greece, the slowdown of China economy remain key factors
dragging on the global economic recovery. As broad macroeconomic
challenge persists, the Group will continue to be on the alert and to
pursue a prudent investment strategy in developing its existing and new
businesses.
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

Financial Review

The Group for the Year recorded revenue of HK$6.5 million, representing
decrease of HK$29.6 million or 81.9% as compared to that in last
year. The Group's revenue principally comprised the sales of electronic
and accessory products of HK$10.7 million and the realized losses on
disposal of listed securities investment of HK$11.1 million from financial
investments and services. During the Year, the revenue from electronic
and accessory products increased by HK$1.3 million or 13.6% to HK$10.7
million.

The loss for the Year was approximately HK$1,275.1 million, compared to
the net loss of approximately HK$7.9 million for last year. As at 31 March
2015, the Group’s net asset value was HK$1,118.7 million compared to
the net asset value of HK$128.7 million last year. The consolidated net
asset value per share of the Group as at 31 March 2015 was HK$0.27.
The increase was mainly due to net placing proceeds of approximately
HK$266.2 million, which included related issue expense and professional
fees, the net proceeds of approximately HK$519.6 million, which included
related issue expense and professional fees, raised from the rights issue on
the basis of six rights share for every share held on record date. The total
comprehensive loss for the Year was HK$1,277.1 million compared to the
total comprehensive loss of HK$6.5 million last year.

Research costs for the Year decreased to HK$12.1 million, compared to
HK$20.4 million last year. The research costs were utilized primarily in
the development of the Group’s MVP based product, IC1. Administrative
expenses amounted to HK$84.0 million, representing an increase of
HK$42.5 million or 102.3% compared with last year.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

During the Year, the Group generally financed its operation with internally
generated cash flow, cash reserve and fund raising activities. The Group’s
cash and bank balance as at 31 March 2015 were HK$529.7 million (31
March 2014: HK$83.2 million).

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had no bank overdrafts, short and long
term interest-bearing bank borrowings (31 March 2014: Nil).

As at 31 March 2015, the Group’s current ratio was 5.4 times (31 March
2014: 21.8 times) based on current assets of HK$1,052.8 million (31
March 2014: HK$279.5 million) and current liabilities of HK$195.4 million
(31 March 2014: HK$12.8 million).

As at 31 March 2015, the Group did not have any significant commitment
(31 March 2014: Nil). The Group also had no other contingent liabilities or
material commitments.
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

TRHRENREEEN LN

Capital Structure

As at 31 March 2015, the Group's gearing ratio, being bonds and
convertible bonds payable to net worth and bonds and convertible bonds
payable was nil (31 March 2014: 54.3%).

The Group's bank deposits and borrowings are mainly denominated in
Hong Kong dollars. Most of the Group’s sales and purchases are made
in United States dollars and Hong Kong dollars. Therefore, the exchange
risks that the Group is exposed to are minimal.

On 7 July 2014, the Company placed 406,747,565 new shares at a price
of HK$0.125 per placing share, representing approximately 20.00% of the
issued share capital of the Company. The net proceeds of approximately
HK$49 million were used for general working capital of the Group. Details
of the above were disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 8 July
2014.

On 31 October 2014, the Company placed 495,192,763 new shares at a
price of HK$0.175 per placing share, representing approximately 12.05%
of then share capital of the Company. The net proceeds of approximately
HK$84.2 million was used for general working capital of the Group.
Details of the above were disclosed in the Company’s announcement
dated 31 October 2014.

On 14 November 2014, the Company placed 921,141,959 new shares at
a price of HK$0.15 per placing share, representing approximately 20.00%
of the existing issued share capital. The net proceeds of the placing was
approximately HK$133 million, which included related issue expense and
professional fees, HK$125 million of the net proceeds from the Placing
was used for the new money lending business of the Group and the
remaining proceeds will be used for general working capital of the Group.
Details of the above were disclosed in the Company’s announcement
dated 14 November 2014.

On 5 December 2014 and 7 January 2015, the Company entered
an agreement and supplementary agreement with an underwriter
respectively for raising approximately net proceed of HK$519.6 million,
which included related issue expense and professional fees, by issuing
3,592,111,050 new shares to the qualifying shareholders by way of
the rights issue at subscription price of HK$0.15 per rights share on the
basis of six rights shares for every share in issue on the record date. The
net proceeds of approximately HK$82.8 million was used on investment
property, HK$406.8 million on securities investment and trading and
money lending business and HK$30 million on working capital. Details
of the above were disclosed in the Company’s circular dated 23 January
2015, prospectus dated 11 March 2015 and announcement dated 10
April 2015 respectively. Up to 31 March 2015, the use of net proceeds
of approximately HK$82.8 million were utilized for an acquisition of an
investment property.
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

Significant Investments

As at 31 March 2015, the Group maintained a portfolio of equity
investments (including available-for-sale equity investments and equity
investments at fair value through profit or loss) with total carrying amount
of HK$491.7 million. The related dividend income for the Year was
HK$2.3 million.

Details of Charges on Assets

As at 31 March 2015, the Company had no charges on assets (31 March
2014 Nil).

Material Acquisitions

On 28 November 2014, Sino Green Holdings Limited, an indirect wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company acquired the entire issued share capital
of King Place Investments Limited (“King Place”) (which is the sole legal
and beneficial owner of the commercial property in Hong Kong) together
with assignment of the shareholder loan for a consideration of HK$92
million from Qualipak Development Limited. Further details are set in the
Company’'s announcement dated 28 November 2014 and 1 April 2015
respectively.

Events After the Reporting Period
(a) Disposal of King Place

On 12 May 2015, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to dispose of its entire interest in King Place
to an independent third party for a total consideration of
HK$94,000,000. With reference to the original acquisition cost
of King Place, the transaction is estimated to result in a gain on
disposal before tax of approximately HK$2,000,000.

(b)  Subscription of new shares by an independent third
party

On 20 May 2015, the Group entered into a subscription
agreement with a subscriber (the “Subscriber”), an independent
third party, pursuant to which the Group has conditionally
agreed to allot and issue to the Subscriber and the Subscriber
has conditionally agreed to subscribe for, in cash, 4,000,000,000
subscription shares at the subscription price of HK$0.25 each.
The gross proceeds of the subscription is estimated to be
HK$1,000,000,000.
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

TRHRENREEEN LN

The Group intends to use approximately 90% of the proceeds for
its long-term and short-term securities investments, money lending
business and approximately 10% of the proceeds for the research
and development of integrated circuit technology and as general
working capital of the Group.

(c) Disposal of Alpha Ease International Limited
("Alpha Ease")

On 29 May 2015, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to dispose of its entire interest in Alpha Ease
to an independent third party for a cash consideration of
HK$13,500,000. With reference to the original acquisition cost
of Alpha Ease, the transaction is estimated to result in a loss on
disposal before tax of approximately HK$1,500,000.

Employment, Training and Development

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had a total of 67 employees, of which
34 were based in Hong Kong and 33 based in Mainland China. The Group
is committed to staff training and development and structured training
programmes for all employees.

Remuneration packages are maintained at a competitive level and
reviewed on a periodic basis. Bonuses and share options are awarded
to certain employees according to individual performance and industry
practice.

On behalf of the Board

China Jinhai International Group Limited
Wang Haixiong

Chairman of the Board

Hong Kong, 26 June 2015

China Jinhai International Group Limited FE £ /EEBREEER LT
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Report of the Directors

The directors present their report and the audited financial statements of
the Company and the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of the subsidiaries during the year consisted of the trading and
distribution of electronic and accessory products and other merchandise,
financial investments and trading, money lending business and the
research and development of integrated circuit technology.

Results and Dividends

The Group's loss for the year ended 31 March 2015 and the state of
affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 48 to 175.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in respect
of the year.

Summary Financial Information

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited financial
statements, is set out below. This summary does not form part of the
audited financial statements.

EEERE
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Report of the Directors

=+ A
EEIRE
Results B
Year ended 31 March
HE=A=1+—HILFE
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—F-HF —T-mF =T =F =—F-F FT—F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET FET FET FAT
Revenue WA 6,548 36,119 15,030 (10,151) 26,210
Loss before tax Fri% BT ES 1B (1,274,973) (7,906) (17,723) (167,486) (53,796)
Tax HiIE (166) = (79) = -
Profit/(Loss) for the year AT IR AREEERN
attributable to (E518)
Owners of the parent ISYNEIET PN (1,266,154) 5,404 (6,199) (156,601) (46,416)
Non-controlling interests FEPERR i R (8,985) (13,310) (11,603) (10,885) (7,380)
(1,275,139) (7,906) (17,802) (167,486) (53,796)
Assets and liabilities EEHEE
As at 31 March
R=ZA=+—H
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-HF —ET—MWMFE —ZT—=F =ET—-F T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET FHET FHET FAT
Total assets BEHE 1,315,513 295,713 146,519 197,603 320,111
Total liabilities BEBE 196,786 167,024 149,850 191,357 199,244
Net assets/(liabilities) FEE,/(BE 1,118,727 128,689 (3,331) 6,246 120,867

China Jinhai International Group Limited FEI &SRB EEER AT



Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Company and the Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the

financial statements.
Share Capital

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital are set out in note
29 to the financial statements.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s bye-
laws or the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda which would oblige the

Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed Securities
of the Company

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or
sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 30 to the financial statements and in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

Distributable Reserves

At 31 March 2015, the Company had no reserves available for
distribution. The Company’s share premium account and capital reserve,
with an aggregate balance of HK$3,061,259,000 may be distributed in
the form of fully paid bonus shares.

Report of the Directors
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Report of the Directors
FERHE

Major Customers and Suppliers

In the year under review, sales of electronic products to the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for 100% of the sales from the electronic
products segment for the year and sales to the largest customer included
therein amounted to 37%. Purchases of electronic products from the
Group's five largest suppliers accounted for 100% of the total purchases
from the electronic products segment for the year and the largest supplier
included therein amounted to 39%.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their close associates or
any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial
interest in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report are as follows:

Executive directors:

Mr. Wang Haixiong (appointed on 23 April 2015)

Mr. Wong Howard

Dr. Kwong Kai Sing, Benny (appointed on 1 September 2014
and resigned on 20 April 2015)

Mr. Wong Yat Fai

Ms. Davis Angela Hendricks (appointed on 6 October 2014
and resigned on 15 May 2015)

Ms. Chen Wei (appointed on 8 December 2014)

Mr. Zhan Jianzhou (appointed on 17 December 2014)

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Tung Tat Chiu, Michael (resigned on 5 November 2014)
Mr. Li Chi Ming

Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong

Mr. Chen Youchun (appointed on 21 October 2014)

Mr. Frank H. Miu (appointed on 30 October 2014)

Mr. Tsang Wing Ki (appointed on 5 November 2014)

China Jinhai International Group Limited FE £ /EEBREEER LT
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Pursuant to Clause 103(B) of the Company’s bye-laws, Mr. Wang Haixiong,
who was appointed as an executive director of the Company on 23 April
2015, shall hold office only until the first general meeting of the Company
after his appointment and shall then be eligible for re-election at that
meeting. Accordingly, Mr. Wang shall retire at the forthcoming special
general meeting and, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election at the
said meeting.

In addition, pursuant to Clause 98 of the Company’s bye-laws, Mr. Wong
Yat Fai, Mr. Li Chi Ming and Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong shall retire by rotation
“2015 AGM") and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the said meeting.

at the 2015 annual general meeting (the

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from
Mr. Li Chi Ming, Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong, Mr. Chen Youchun, Mr. Frank
H. Miu and Mr. Tsang Wing Ki and the Company still considers them to
be independent as at the date of this report pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”).

Directors’ and Senior Management'’s Biographies

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 41 to 45 of the annual
report.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of Mr. Wong Howard and Mr. Wong Yat Fai has a service contract
with the Company for a term of two years commencing on 1 February
2015 and 1 April 2015, respectively.

Each of Ms. Chen Wei, Mr. Zhan Jianzhou and Mr. Wang Haixiong, has a
service contract with the Company without any fixed term commencing
on 8 December 2014, 17 December 2014 and 23 April 2015, respectively.

Mr. Li Chi Ming has been appointed for a fixed term of one year
commencing on 27 September 2014.

Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong has been appointed for a fixed term of one year
commencing on 10 January 2015.

Report of the Directors
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Report of the Directors

EELRE

Mr. Chen Youchun has been appointed for a fixed term of one year
commencing on 21 October 2014.

Mr. Frank H. Miu has been appointed for a fixed term of one year
commencing on 30 October 2014.

Mr. Tsang Wing Ki has been appointed for a fixed term of one year
commencing on 5 November 2014.

All directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meeting in accordance with the bye-laws of the Company.

Apart from the foregoing, no director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Remuneration

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s board
of directors with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities and

performance and the results of the Group.
Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Save as disclosed above, no director had a material interest, either directly
or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the
year.

Share Option Schemes

The Company currently operates share option schemes for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants (including but
not limited to the directors and employees of the Group) who contribute
to the success of the Group’s operations. Details of the Company’s share
option schemes are set out in note 33 to the financial statements.

The Company’s old share option scheme adopted on 27 August 2003
expired on 27 August 2013. In order to continue to provide incentives and
rewards to the eligible participants, the Company adopted a new share
option scheme on 27 September 2013.

China Jinhai International Group Limited FE £ /EEBREEER LT
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Report of the Directors
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A summary of the movements of the share options granted during the REZE_Z—RAF=ZA=+—HIEFER K2 BERE

year ended 31 March 2015 is set out as follows:— BEHMAT
Adjusted exercise
Exercise price  price of share
of share options options after
Numberof ~ Numberof ~ Numberof ~ Number of Number of before the capital the capital
share options  share options  share options ~ share options share options reorganisation  reorganisation
outstanding granted forfeited/ exercised  Adjustment  Adjustment  outstanding and and
at 1 April during  lapsed during during for capital forrights  at 31 March Date of grant of Exercise period rights issue® rights issue®
Name or category of participant 2014 the Year® the Year the Year  reorganisation issue 215 share options of share options®  (HKS per share)  (HKS per share)
R=%-B% RZ5-1% BAEAR RAEER
BA-B REEE REEE REEE =A=t-A HRARERE (e
MRTEZ  REZERE RW/ &Mz itz ERKEA HAMEZ RTBRE EEe  BREGRED
SEELRIRY BRERA HEO  BREE  BREHA f#E RURHEE  BREHE k] BREGESEY  (BR/B7) (88 /#7)
Director %
Mr. Wong Howard £ %4 1,800,000 - - (1,800,000) - - - 187772011 1/112012-311212016 04822 1.7052
“F—FtATNR “F-Z5-f-BE
Z3-EtzA=1-R
1,800,000 - - (1,800,000) - - - 18772011 1/112013-3111212016 04822 1.7052
“Z——E+ATNR —E-=f-j-B%
“E-RET2AST-R
1,800,000 = = (1,800,000) = - - 187712011 1/112014-3111212016 04822 1.7052
“F—FtATNR “Z-mE-f-BE
“E-AETCA=T-H
1,800,000 - - - (1,620,000) 329,005 509,005 187772011 11112015-3111212016 04822 1.7052
ZZ——EHATNR Z2-1¥-R-BE
Z3-FtZA=T-R
1,800,000 = = (1,800,000) = - - 8/1/2013 11712013-311212017 02528 0.8940
—2-=5-A\R ZR-=HtR-BE
ZT-tF+-A=1-R
1,800,000 - - (1,800,000) - - - 8/1/2013 11112014-311202017 02528 0.8940
Z5-=5-A\R “Z-mECR-BE
“E-tE+CAST-R
1,800,000 - - - (1,620,000) 329,005 509,005 8/1/2013 11712015-311212017 0.2528 0.8940
“E-Z5-AR “2-1%tA-BE
ZFtF+zA=t-R
1,800,000 - - - (1,620,000) 329,005 509,005 8/1/2013 11712016-311212017 02528 0.8940
Z3-=%-A\R ZERELR-BE
ZE-tEtA=T-B
4,000,000 = = 4,000,000) = = o 18212014 18/2/2014-31/12/2017 0.1950 0.68%
ZZ-RE-ATAR ZE-ME-ATNRE
ZI-+Ff=1-B
4,000,000 = - - (3,600,000) 731,124 1,131,124 18212014 18/2/2015-31/12/2017 0.1950 0.689%
“E-RECATNR ZE-RECATNAR
ZE-tEtA=T-B
22,400,000 - - (13,000,000) 8,460,000) 1,718,139 2,658,139
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Adjusted exercise
Exercise price  price of share
of share options options after

Numberof ~ Numberof ~ Numberof  Number of Number of before the capital the capital
share options share options  share options ~ share options share options reorganisation  reorganisation
outstanding granted forfeited/ exercsed  Adjustment  Adjustment  outstanding and and
at 1 April during  lapsed during during for capital forrights  at 31 March Date of grant of Exercise period rights issue® rights issue®
Name or category of participant 2014 the Year® the Year the Year  reorganisation issue 215 share options of share options®  (HKS per share)  (HKS per share)
RZB-MF R=8-1% RAEAR RAEAR
BA-H REEE REEE REEE ZA=t-A fRARRE fiREE
WRTEe BHCBRE RM/ &Mz iz BERKE4 HAfTEZ RTBRE iEEn  BREGREY
SREZRAER BRERA #E0  BREEE  EREHE f#E EHRGRE  BREHA BA BREGESEY  (BR/B%) (&R /B7)
Director £3
Mr. Wong Yat Fai T#2% % 642,857 - - - (578,572) 117,502 181,781 18772011 1/12012:3111212016 04822 1.7052
ZF—%tAtN\B  ZF-Z§-f-BE
3 FtzAzT-R
642,857 - - - (578,572) 117,502 181,787 187772011 1/112013-3111212016 04822 1.7052
“F——FtATAR “F-=F-f-BE%
—3-75tzA=1-R
642,857 o = - (578,572) 117,502 181,781 18772011 1/12014-3111212016 04822 1.7052
“Z—5ATNR —Z-NF-A-AZ
ZFFtzA=t-R
642,857 - - - (578,572) 117,502 181,787 187772011 11112015-3111212016 04822 1.7052
“F——FtATNR “3-1%-A-BE
“E-E+-A=+-A
1,157,142 = = = (1,041,428) 211,503 27217 8/1/2013 11112013-311202017 02528 0.8940
—2-=5-AMA T2t A-BE
Z3-+Ftf=1-R
1,157,142 - - - (1,041,428) 211,503 321217 8/1/2013 11112014-311212017 02528 0.8940
Z2-Z5-ANB “3-MFtA-BE
I o
1,157,142 - - - (1,041,428) 211,503 327217 8/1/2013 11112015-311202017 02528 0.8940
“Z-ZE-A)R Z2-nEtA-RE
Bt A=T-R
1,157,142 - - - (1,041,428) 211,503 3271217 8/1/2013 11712016-311212017 02528 0.8940
“%-Z5-A\R 3/ FtA-BE
e
1,500,000 - - - (1,350,000) 214172 0411 18212014 18/2/2014-31/12/2017 0.1950 06896
SE-mECATAR CE-MECATNAE
“E-tE+A=r-R
1,500,000 - - - (1,350,000) 214,172 44112 18212014 18/212015-3111212017 0.1950 0.6896
ZT-RMECATAR ZE-RECATARR
ZE-tF+ZA=1+-R
10,199,996 - - - 9,180,000) 1,864,364 2,884,360
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Adjusted exercise
Exercise price ~ price of share
of share options options after

Numberof ~ Numberof ~ Numberof  Number of Number of before the capital the capital
share options share options  share options ~ share options share options reorganisation  reorganisation
outstanding granted forfeited/ exercsed  Adjustment  Adjustment outstanding and and
at 1 April during  lapsed during during for capital forrights at 31 March Date of grant of Exercise period rights issue® rights issue®
Name or category of participant 2014 the Year® the Year the Year  reorganisation issue 215 share options of share options®  (HKS per share)  (HKS per share)
RZB-mF RZ8-1% RAEER RAEAR
mA-A REEE REEE REEE ZA=t-A RARRE fiR%HEE
WA BHCBRE RM/ &M k2 BRKE4 HAfTEZ RTiRE ey BREGREY
SRERRAER BRERA #E0  BREHE  EREHE f#E EHRGRE  BREHA BA BREGESEY  (BR/B7) (&R /B7)
Other employees £ftE&
In aggregate Af 7,547,134 = (756,000) (6,698,517) (83,35) 16915 26,176 187772011 1/112012-311212016 04822 1.7052
EELATNE CRCF-R-RE
“E-RETCAST-R
7,547,134 - (756,000) (6,698,517) (83,35) 16,915 26,176 18772011 1/112013-31/1212016 04822 1.7052
“F——FtATNR e
Z3EtzA=1-R
7,526,562 S (797,400) (6,274,234) (446,696) 15,036 23,268 187772011 1/112014-311212016 04822 1.7052
“2—%tATNR “5-MF-A-RE
E—RETZA=T-R
7523992 - (1,000,800) - (6,091,193) 789,605 1,221,604 187772011 1/112015-3111212016 04822 1.7052
“F——FtATNR “3-n5-R-BE
Z3EtZA=1-R
385,714 S = (385,714) - - - 8/9/2011 11112012-311212016 04822 1.7052
2R CECF-R-RE
3 FtZA=T-R
385,714 - - (385,714) - - - 8/9/2011 1/112013-3111212016 04822 1.7052
“F——50ANR Z3-=f-f-BE
ZFFtzA=1-A
385,714 - - (385,714) - - - 8/912011 1/112014-3111212016 04822 1.7052
2—H#AANR —2PE-f-BE
iy
385,714 - - - (347,183) 70,501 109,072 8/9/2011 11112015-3111212016 04822 1.7052
“F——En0ANR “T-Rf-f-BE
3 Ft-A=t-A
12,746,544 - (204,282)  (12,516,548) (231483) 4700 72N 8/112013 11712013-311212017 02528 0.8940
—2-=5-A\R IRt f-BE
i o
12,746,544 - (204,282)  (12,516,548) (23143) 4,700 1271 8/1/2013 11712014-311212017 02528 0.8940
“5-=5-A\H “T-MECf-BE
“-+Ftf=1-B
12,746,544 - (1,385,224) - (10,546,180) 1,489,867 2,305,007 8/172013 11712015-311212017 02528 0.8940
—Z-=5-A\A Z2-nELA-RE
i o
12,741,401 - (1,384,710) - (10,541,551) 1,489,868 2,305,008 8/1/2013 11712016-311212017 02528 08940
“2-=5-A\R 3 FtA-BE
Z3-+F1-f=1-R
12,720,000 - (1,550,0000 (11,170,000 - - - 18212014 18/2/2014-31/12/2017 0.1950 0.68%
“E-BFZAH\R ZE-ME-AT/\RE
i o
12,720,000 - (2,502,000) - (9,423,000) 1453115 2,248,115 181212014 18/2/2015-31/12/2017 0.1950 06896
“T-MEZATNE ZE-RECAT/\BE
“3-+F+f=1-R
2,370,000 = (1,362,000) - (1,008,000) = = 18212014 18/2/2016-31/12/2017 01950 0.68%
ZI-ME-ATAR ZE-AEZATARE
i o
2,390,000 - (1,364,000) - (1,026,000) - - 181212014 18/2/2017-31/12/2017 0.1950 0.689%
ZE-ME-ATNR ZRtE-ATNEE
ZF-tFt-A=t-A
- 160,000,000 - (160,000,000) = = = 211014 2711112014-26/11/2024 0.1680 =

“E-ME+-A-t4R ZE-mET-A-tHAE
i1 e

112,868,711 160000000  (13,266,698)  (217,031,506)  (39,642,761) 5351222 8,278,968

Management personnel of

service providers
REHEBEEAR
In aggregate AT - 300,000,000 - (300,000,000) S = = 2112014 27/1112014-26/11/2024 0.1680 =
Z3-RE+-ACttB ZT-MET-A-THRE
ZRomET-AZTAR
Total &5t 145468707 460,000,000  (13266,698)  (530,031,506)  (57,282,761) 8,933,725 13,821,467
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Notes:

(1) The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant until the

commencement of the exercise period.

2) The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in case of rights
or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

(3) The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately before the date of offer
of the share options on 27 November 2014 was HK$0.164 (before adjustment of
capital reorganisation and rights issue).

(4) No share options have been cancelled during the year.

Directors’ Interests in Shares and Underlying
Shares of the Company

As at 31 March 2015, the interests of the directors of the Company in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ")), as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) were as follows:—

(1)  Long position in ordinary shares of the Company

B -

)

FABLEEBREREUS

MEARAE 2 5B B AR A B =TT AR R -

EITHR AN BITRARRRAE R MBEUEE - A

BREZITEE TIAHE -

ER-F-NMET-A - +EARBBRERHIADF
Bty 2 Wi B /01648 T (EIRAEA R HARFER) -

EERARARGRAEBERGD 2 EE

RIZE-—RAF=ZA=+—RH ARREERARFRKRMN I
HEkD (ExRESFRAEGRD (EFRBEED]) F

XVER) R

A

IR

ERARBIRIEE R B E GPI 53521

ATUBEZBRM2ME  SRE EDETAEEES
BHRPOWETA (RATA)) AMEARRFRE LA

ZRERMOT ¢

(1)

RARREBRZHER

all

Number of
ordinary shares

Percentage* of
the Company'’s

Name of director Capacity interested  issued share capital
BEEREREN RN
EEHE 37 EEREE EBRITREAB DL
Mr. Wong Howard Beneficial owner 1,277,940 0.03%
Ealicbilad BEmBEAA
Mr. Wong Yat Fai Beneficial owner 1,277,940 0.03%
FrmigkE BEmBEAA
Dr. Kwong Kai Sing, Benny Beneficial owner 28,502,292 0.68%
FRRE A B L BaRER A
@ The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares interested BOLEREREN L BERBABRURRANZ

divided by the number of the Company’s issued shares as at 31 March
2015.
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(2) Long position in underlying shares of the Company (2) RAAXATIEERD TR -—EVWEEE
— physically settled unlisted equity derivatives EHRASTETR
Number of  Percentage* of the
underlying shares underlying shares
in respect of the over the
share options Company'’s issued
Name of director Capacity granted share capital
REBRERMSR AR AMER DT
EERE 513 HERGOEHE CDRITRENEDLL*
Mr. Wong Howard Beneficial owner 2,658,139 0.06%
ERE S EmEB A
Mr. Wong Yat Fai Beneficial owner 2,884,360 0.07%
T e E=BEAA
Details of the above share options granted by the Company are set out under ERARFREZ BREFIED R X (B E] —&
the heading “Share Option Schemes” above and note 33 to the financial KRBT M TE33H T ©
statements.
e The percentage represents the number of underlying shares interested * DL IEER R 2 BN B A BRIAKDER
divided by the number of the Company’s issued shares as at 31 March Zg*ﬂ@:ﬂ =+—HEBTROBEZE -
2015.
(3) Long position in underlying shares of the Company (3) RAAGEBEROZHE —SEWEE L
— physically settled listed equity derivatives HmIRALTE T A
Percentage* of the
Number of underlying shares
underlying shares over the
in respect of the Company'’s issued
Name of director Capacity warrants share capital
RBEESR HBEROGAAR
EEHA g4 HERAHE CERITREANBEIHL*
Dr. Kwong Kai Sing, Benny Beneficial owner 4,071,756 0.10%
BRI IE L E=mfEAA
* The percentage represents the number of underlying shares interested e AOLLEREER 2 HEAROEAERUERR TR
divided by the number of the Company’s issued shares as at 31 March —E-AE=-A=+—HEBTRHHBB2E -
2015.
In addition to the above, as at 31 March 2015, certain directors of the [ EiiEZEI RZZE—RHAF=A=+—"H AR

Company held shares in certain subsidiaries of the Company in a non-
beneficial capacity, solely for the purpose of complying with the previous
requirement of a minimum of two shareholders.

TE
$L‘A3E,§\E%fﬁ%—;ﬁ7ﬁ A THEBARKRS '1 7%%—7
TAABERIMEBRRZHAE -
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2015, none of the directors
or chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which he/she was deemed or taken to have under
such provisions of the SFO) or which were required to be entered into
the register kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO
or which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Save as disclosed under the headings “Directors’ interests in shares and
underlying shares of the Company” and “Share Option Schemes” above
and in the share option scheme disclosures in note 33 to the financial
statements, at no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any of the directors or their respective spouses or minor
children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company,
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares of the Company

As at 31 March 2015, no person had an interest or a short position of 5%
or more in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO, or as the Company is aware.

China Jinhai International Group Limited FEI &SRB EEER AT

B EXPEEEIN RZE-—RF=A=+—H £KQF
ZEEFERTEZTRAEMENAR R SEEFERES O
ERESFRHABHEMNEBEXVE) 2kt - BB HESFF
BREEAREES R EGIEXVEETRESH BANE
ARRI Rz #ERmSORE (BRREBIES MR
ZERECRREERA 2B LRR) » HABALRRT
RIEFEFMBGRDIFEIS2EMFE 2 LM RRBRLE
SRR ERNG RN R KRB PT2 EIAR ©

EERERNIESF 2 EF

WLt [EENARA RO RBEBD 2] & [ BEE
T8I T AR B mR M 33 e R AT B R B B R
BEEN RNFEAREREINESFARESEZRBIR
BREFRELAITEBBAARARNLESMBEANR 2
RER - TR S TREITEAE M LSRR - boh - ARRHE
TEAAT BT B8 2% BN R BT S AE T 22 B - SRR B S T A AT EL At
ENERRBEAZSER

EEBRRRAQFTRDRAEBEBBR G 2 &

E-HF=A=+—RH UEEAATRBEESR
HEIRPIE3I36HRTEFE 2 ERMATE - HARFHZE -
MARRE Z Btn s P B % A £ 2 i soK
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Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors as at the latest practicable date prior to
the issue of this report, the Company has maintained a sufficient public
float.

Directors’ Interests in a Competing Business

During the year and up to the date of this report, no director is considered
to have interests in a business which competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group, as defined in
the Listing Rules.

Corporate Governance
Details of the corporate governance practices of the Company are set

out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” in this annual

report.
Auditors
Ernst & Young will retire and a resolution for their re-appointment as

auditors of the Company will be proposed at the 2015 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Wang Haixiong

Chairman

Hong Kong
26 June 2015
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Board recognizes the importance of good corporate governance to
the Company’s healthy growth and has devoted considerable efforts to
identifying and formulating corporate governance practices appropriate to
the Company’s needs.

Throughout the year under review, the Company has complied with the
code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code"”) in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, save for the code provision
A.2.1 of the CG Code during the period from 1 April 2014 to 26 February
2015. Key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company
as well as the details of the foregoing deviation are summarized below.

The Board

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the
Board

Direction and control of Company business are vested in the Board. The
Board establishes policies, strategies and plans for the development of
Company business, and provides leadership in the creation of value for
shareholders. All directors have carried out their duties in good faith,
in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, taking decisions
objectively and acting in the interests of the Company and its shareholders
at all times.

The Board takes responsibility for all major matters of the Company,
including the approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management systems,
material transactions (particularly those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of directors and other
significant financial and operational matters.
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All directors have timely access to all relevant information as well as the
advice and services of the Company Secretary and senior management
of the Company, with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all
applicable laws and regulations are followed. Any director may request
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company'’s expenses, upon reasonable request made to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are led by the Executive Committee and senior management
of the Company. The Board has delegated a schedule of responsibilities
to these officers for the implementation of Board decisions. The Board
reviews the delegated functions and work tasks regularly. Prior to entering any
significant transactions, the aforesaid officers have to obtain Board approval.

Board Composition

The composition of the Board and the Board Committees as at the date of
this annual report is as follows:

Board of Directors
Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Haixiong, Chairman of the Board
Mr. Wong Howard

Mr. Wong Yat Fai

Ms. Chen Wei

Mr. Zhan Jianzhou

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Chi Ming

Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong
Mr. Chen Youchun
Mr. Frank H. Miu

Mr. Tsang Wing Ki
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Executive Committee

Mr. Wang Haixiong, Chairman
Mr. Wong Howard

Mr. Wong Yat Fai

Ms. Chen Wei

Mr. Zhan Jianzhou

Audit Committee

Mr. Tsang Wing Ki, Chairman
Mr. Li Chi Ming

Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong

Mr. Chen Youchun

Mr. Frank H. Miu

Remuneration Committee

Mr. Li Chi Ming, Chairman
Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong

Mr. Chen Youchun

Mr. Tsang Wing Ki

Nomination Committee

Mr. Wang Haixiong, Chairman
Mr. Wong Yat Fai

Mr. Li Chi Ming

Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong

Mr. Tsang Wing Ki

The biographical details of the directors and the relationships among the
members of the Board are disclosed in the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report. None
of the members of the Board is related to one another.
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During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules of having three independent non-
executive directors (representing at least one-third of the Board) with one
of them possessing appropriate professional qualifications and accounting
and related financial management expertise.

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of skills and
experience appropriate for the business requirements and objectives of the
Group and for the exercise of independent judgement.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director of his independence pursuant to the
requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent
non-executive directors to be independent in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

Chairman and Chief Executive

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of Chairman
and Chief Executive should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual.

During the period from 1 April 2014 to 26 February 2015, Mr. Wong
Howard has acted as the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company. The Board considered that such arrangement provided
the Group with strong and consistent leadership and allowed for more
effective and efficient business planning and decisions as well as execution
of long term business strategies.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Mr. Wong Howard and Mr. Wong Yat Fai are engaged on a service
contract for a term of 2 years. The Company has also issued a letter of
appointment to each of the independent non-executive directors of the
Company for a term of 1 year. The newly appointed executive directors,
Mr. Wang Haixiong, Ms. Chen Wei and Mr. Zhan Jianzhou have not been
appointed for a specific term but they are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the Company’s annual general meeting in accordance
with the Company’s bye-laws.
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According to the provisions of the Company’'s bye-laws, Mr. Wang
Haixiong, who has been appointed as an executive director of the
Company with effect from 23 April 2015, will hold office only until the
first general meeting of the Company after his appointment and shall
then be eligible for re-election at that meeting. Accordingly, Mr. Wang
shall retire at the forthcoming special general meeting and, being eligible,
will offer himself for re-election at the said meeting.

In addition, pursuant to the provisions of the Company’s bye-laws, Mr.
Wong Yat Fai, Mr. Li Chi Ming and Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong shall retire
by rotation at the 2015 AGM and, being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election at the said meeting. The Board recommended the re-
election of the above four retiring directors at forthcoming special general
meeting/2015 AGM.

The Company has adopted “Directors Nomination Procedures” as written
guidelines in providing formal, considered and transparent procedures to
the Board for evaluating and selecting candidates for directorships. Where
vacancies on the Board exist, the Board will carry out the selection process
by making reference to the skills, experience, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of the proposed candidates,
the Company’s needs and other relevant statutory requirements and
regulations.

Training and Continuing Development of Directors

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of the Company and
of the conduct, business activities and development of the Company.

All directors of the Company receive a comprehensive induction on his/
her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Group and full awareness of director’s responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements. Such induction is normally supplemented with visits to the
Group's key plant sites and/or meetings with the senior management of
the Company.
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The existing directors are continually updated with legal and regulatory
developments, business and market changes to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. Continuing briefings and professional
development for directors are arranged whenever necessary. In addition,
reading materials on new or changes to salient laws and regulations
applicable to the Group are provided to directors from time to time for
their studying and reference. All directors are encouraged to attend
relevant training courses at the Company’s expenses.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Company (i) has organized
briefings conducted by the Company Secretary for all its directors on
corporate governance and updates on the Listing Rules amendments
and (ii) has provided reading materials on regulatory updates to all the
directors for their reference and studying. Besides, Mr. Wong Yat Fai,
Mr. Li Chi Ming, Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong, Mr. Frank H. Miu and Mr. Tsang
Wing Ki attended other seminars and training sessions arranged by other
professional firms/institutions.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct regarding directors’
dealings in the Company’s securities (the “Own Code”) on terms no less
exacting than the Model Code. Specific enquiry has been made of all the
Company's directors and they have confirmed that they have complied
with the required standards set out in the Model Code and the Own Code
throughout the period from 1 April 2014 to the date of this report.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”) for
securities transactions by employees who are likely to be in possession of
inside information of the Company. No incident of non-compliance of the
Employees Written Guidelines by the employees has been noted by the
Company.

In case when the Company is aware of any restricted period for dealings
in the Company’s securities, the Company will notify its directors and

relevant employees in advance.
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The attendance records of each director at the regular Board meetings, &SEEREHE_T—AF-—A=-+—HIEFERTZES
Board Committee meetings and the general meetings of the Company E©EH &% EEFZE8CeREMARARERE ZHFERL
held during the year ended 31 March 2015 is set out below: SBHEPNMT
Attendance/Number of Meetings
HEREFRRY
Audit Remuneration Nomination Annual Special
Board Committee = Committee = Committee General General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
B i RE BRER BRER
Name of Director EEpg EXgg8E ZE883¥ ZE88E ZE883 BEAE BEIRE
Mr. Wong Howard B LA 4/4 - - n 1 33
Mr. Wong Yat Fai FiaELE 4/4 - - n 11 313
Dr. Kwong Kai Sing, Benny BRUKIEL ()
(Note 1) 212 = 212 = = 212
Ms. Davis Angela Hendricks Davis Angela Hendricks
(Note 2) 7t (fF2) 22 - - - - 2
Ms. Chen Wei (Note 3) BREk szt (Fi33) 17 - - - - 1”7
Mr. Zhan Jianzhou (Note 4) EEELE (M) 17 - - - - 17
Mr. Tung Tat Chiu, Michael fRiEgl%k & (FES)
(Note 5) 212 17 - 1”1 1”1 11
Mr. Li Chi Ming FERAKE 4/4 212 212 n 11 313
Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong PENFELE 4/4 22 22 7 171 33
Mr. Chen Youchun (Note 6) BRRELLE (Mite) 22 7 22 - - 12
Mr. Frank H. Miu (Note 7) BREE (H:7) 2 7 - - - 12
Mr. Tsang Wing Ki (Note 8) ok A (FH5E8) 212 11 212 - = 22



Notes:—

1. Dr. Kwong Kai Sing, Benny was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 1 September 2014 and subsequently resigned on 20 April 2015.
Subsequent to his appointment, 2 regular Board meetings, 2 Remuneration
Committee meetings and 2 Special General Meetings were held during the year
ended 31 March 2015.

2. Ms. Davis Angela Hendricks was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 6 October 2014 and subsequently resigned on 15 May 2015.
Subsequent to her appointment, 2 regular Board meetings and 2 Special General
Meetings were held during the year ended 31 March 2015.

3. Ms. Chen Wei was appointed as an executive director of the Company on 8
December 2014. Subsequent to her appointment, 1 regular Board meeting and
1 Special General Meeting were held during the year ended 31 March 2015.

4. Mr. Zhan Jianzhou was appointed as an executive director of the Company on
17 December 2014. Subsequent to his appointment, 1 regular Board meeting
and 1 Special General Meeting were held during the year ended 31 March 2015.

5. Mr. Tung Tat Chiu, Michael resigned as an independent non-executive director
of the Company on 5 November 2014. Before his resignation, 2 regular Board
meetings, 1 Audit Committee meeting, 1 Nomination Committee meeting, 1
Annual General Meeting and 1 Special General Meeting were held during the
year ended 31 March 2015.

6. Mr. Chen Youchun was appointed as an independent non-executive director of
the Company on 21 October 2014. Subsequent to his appointment, 2 regular
Board meetings, 1 Audit Committee meeting, 2 Remuneration Committee
meetings and 2 Special General Meetings were held during the year ended 31
March 2015.

7. Mr. Frank H. Miu was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company on 30 October 2014. Subsequent to his appointment, 2 regular Board
meetings, 1 Audit Committee meeting and 2 Special General Meetings were
held during the year ended 31 March 2015.

8. Mr. Tsang Wing Ki was appointed as an independent non-executive director of
the Company on 5 November 2014. Subsequent to his appointment, 2 regular
Board meetings, 1 Audit Committee meeting, 2 Remuneration Committee
meetings and 2 Special General Meetings were held during the year ended 31
March 2015.

In addition, the Chairman held a meeting with the independent non-
executive directors without the presence of executive directors during the

year under review.
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Board Committees and Corporate Governance
Functions

The Board has established four Board committees, namely, the Executive
Committee, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the
Company’s affairs. All Board committees have been established with
defined written terms of reference, which are available on the Stock
Exchange’s website (www.hkexnews.hk) and on the Company’s website
(except for the written terms of reference of the Executive Committee
which is available to shareholders upon request). All the Board committees
should report to the Board on their decisions or recommendations made.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee comprises all the executive directors of the
Company, namely, Mr. Wang Haixiong, Mr. Wong Howard, Mr. Wong Yat
Fai, Ms. Chen Wei and Mr. Zhan Jianzhou. The Chairman of the Board,
Mr. Wang Haixiong, also acts as the Chairman of this Committee. The
Executive Committee operates as a general management committee
under the direct authority of the Board to increase the efficiency for the
business decision. It monitors the execution of the Company’s strategic
plans and operations of all business units of the Group and discusses and
makes decisions on matters relating to the management and day-to-day
operations of the Group.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises of five members, namely, Mr. Tsang Wing
Ki (Chairman), Mr. Li Chi Ming, Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong, Mr. Chen Youchun
and Mr. Frank H. Miu, all of whom are independent non-executive
directors. Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong possesses the appropriate accounting and
financial management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules. None of the members of the Audit Committee is a former
partner of the Company’s existing external auditors.
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The main duties of the Audit Committee are to (i) review the financial
statements and reports and consider any significant or unusual items
raised by the financial officers of the Group or external auditors before
submission to the Board; (ii) review and monitor the relationship with the
external auditors by reference to the work performed by the auditors,
their fees and terms of engagement, and make recommendations to
the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of external
auditors; and (iii) review the Company’s financial controls, internal control
and risk management systems.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Audit Committee performed
the following works:

- Review and discussion of the financial statements, results
announcements and reports for the year ended 31 March 2014
and for the six months ended 30 September 2014, the financial
reporting, the related accounting principles, practices and
compliance procedures;

- Discussion and recommendation of the re-appointment of external
auditors; and

- Review of internal control and risk management of the Group.

The external auditors were invited to attend the Audit Committee
meetings without the presence of executive directors to discuss with the
Audit Committee issues arising from the audit and financial reporting
matters. The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 March
2015 have also been reviewed by the Audit Committee. There is no
disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee regarding the
re-appointment of external auditors.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises of four members, namely, Mr. Li
Chi Ming (Chairman), Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong, Mr. Chen Youchun and Mr.
Tsang Wing Ki. All of them are independent non-executive directors of the
Company.

The main duties of the Remuneration Committee are to (i) make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration policy
and structure and the remuneration packages of directors and members of
senior management (i.e. the model described in the code provision B.1.2(c)
(i) of the CG Code is adopted), (ii) review and approve performance-
based remuneration by reference to corporate goals and objectives; and
(i) establish a formal and transparent procedures for developing such
remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no director or any of his/
her associates will participate in deciding his’/her own remuneration, which
remuneration will be determined by reference to the performance of the
individual and the Group as well as market practice and conditions.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Remuneration Committee has
(i) generally reviewed and discussed the remuneration policy and structure
and the current remuneration packages of the directors and senior
management of the Group; (i) considered and discussed the grant of
share options of the Company, and (iii) recommended to the Board of the
remuneration package regarding the appointment of Dr. Kwong Kai Sing,
Benny, Ms. Davis Angela Hendricks, Ms. Chen Wei, Mr. Zhan Jianzhou,
Mr. Chen Youchun, Mr. Frank H. Miu and Mr. Tsang Wing Ki as directors
of the Company.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual
remuneration of the senior management for the year ended 31 March
2015 falls within the band from HK$1,000,000 to HK$1,500,000.

Details of the remuneration of each director of the Company for the year

ended 31 March 2015 are set out in note 8 to the financial statements
contained in this annual report.

China Jinhai International Group Limited FE £ /EEBREEER LT

¥yMESS

oz e emmaiK Ml BIFERALE (XF) - BFE
ek MREEERGKEEL - REHREARE 2B
STIITES -

YHEZEE v FEREBFBOMAR AHHBR REB UK
EEREREEABNFTHAS (BB AR ZFAG
CEEB..2()() AT R AE R AN) MEE S RERE
(NBZRRIRE RBIZEMRIEEME - RGiDHIETIE
AERRTFERZTFMBCE LRHE  UABRREEEEIH
FRBHEATH2RETEAGZHMN  MEFTWHE2E
BARKNEE 2 RBURTISER RTRMERE

RBEEZT—RAF=A=1+—HILFE  FTWZESEHR
BRI LEm T ARENHFMER RERE  UAREENS
MEBAEBRAZHNES : (DEBEARARFRLE
REHE - R (i)t B B ESRRAKIE L -« Davis Angela Hendricks%&
T BBzt EEEEE BRRELSLE BHFEERY
KA REARARRAAEF FHEBNESTGRHERE

2
a® °

RIEBECEERTRZTRANEXEB. 1.5 RBEE=-F—H
FZAZ+ALFERATEABZFEFHNERN T
1,000,000 7T = 1,500,000/8 7T ©

RBE-ZE-AF=A=1+-RALFEARAZERZH
NEH IS BN A F M A IRR M58



Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises both executive directors and
independent non-executive directors of the Company, namely, Mr. Wang
Haixiong (Chairman), Mr. Wong Yat Fai, Mr. Li Chi Ming, Mr. Kwok Chi
Kwong and Mr. Tsang Wing Ki.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee are to (i) review the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board on a regular basis and recommend any changes
to the Board; (ii) identify qualified and suitable individuals to become
Board members and select and make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships; (iii) assess the
independence of independent non-executive directors of the Company,
having regard to the requirements under the Listing Rules; and (iv)
make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession planning
for directors in particular, the Chairman and the Chief Executive of the
Company.

In selecting candidates for directorship of the Company, the Nomination
Committee may make reference to certain criteria such as the Company’s
needs, the diversity on the Board, the integrity, experience, skills,
professional knowledge of the candidate and the amount of time and
effort that the candidate will devote to discharge his/her duties and
responsibilities. External recruitment professionals might be engaged to

carry out selection process when necessary.

To comply with the provision of A.5.6 of the CG Code, a Board diversity
policy was adopted by the Company in September 2013, pursuant to
which the Nomination Committee is responsible for monitoring the
implementation of the Board diversity policy and assessing the Board
composition under diversified perspectives (including but not limited to
educational background or professional experience). The Nomination
Committee shall report its findings and make recommendation to the
Board, if any. Such policy and objectives will be reviewed from time
to time to ensure their appropriateness in determining the optimum
composition of the Board.
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During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Nomination Committee
performed the following works:

- Considered and recommended the appointment of Dr. Kwong Kai
Sing, Benny, Ms. Davis Angela Hendricks, Ms. Chen Wei, Mr. Zhan
Jianzhou, Mr. Chen Youchun, Mr. Frank H. Miu and Mr. Tsang
Wing Ki as directors of the Company;

- Reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board to
ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate to the requirements for the business of the Group and
reviewed the Board diversity policy;

- Considered and recommended the re-election of the retiring
directors standing for re-election at the 2014 annual general
meeting of the Company; and

- Assessed the independence of independent non-executive
directors of the Company.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code
provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Board has reviewed the
Company's corporate governance policies and practices, training
and continuous professional development of directors and senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and
Employees Written Guidelines, and the Company’s compliance with the

CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial Reporting
in respect of the Financial Statements

The directors have acknowledged their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2015.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, price-sensitive
announcements and other disclosures required under the Listing Rules
and other statutory and regulatory requirements. The management
has provided to the Board such explanation and information as are
necessary to enable the Board to carry out an informed assessment of the
Company’s financial statements, which are put to the Board for approval.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going

concern.
Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal control
system to safeguard shareholders’ investments and the Group's assets and
for reviewing the effectiveness of such system on an annual basis. The
senior management reviews and evaluates the control process, monitors
any risk factors on a regular basis and reports to the Audit Committee on
any findings and measures to address the variances and identified risks.

During the year under review, the Board, through the Audit Committee,
has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal control system
of the Company.
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External Auditors and Auditors’ Remuneration

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities for the Company’s financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2015 is set out in the section headed “Independent
Auditors’ Report” in this annual report. During the year ended 31 March
2015, the remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s external auditors,
Ernst & Young, is set out below:

Nature of Services

SIS A% BUED % 4% B 2 37 B

BRARRAIMNERBMERERARBABRE—T—HF=
A=+ BLFEZBHERRPBBEMBFHOBHFN
RER [ BYURBMBREE] —H - RBEE-FT-HF=A
=+ —HLEFE  KARRMIMEZEE K& A EBH
BN R ZHMESIT

Remuneration (HKS$)

BRA% 1 E i (BT)
Audit services Fat R 1,700,000
Non-audit services (Note) IEBEFRS (M3E) 813,600
TOTAL: #aEt 2,513,600
Note:  The non-audit services provided mainly included other assurance services, tax st - ERHZIBFRBIZCBEMCEIRY WA

compliance and advisory services.

Company Secretary

During the year ended 31 March 2015, Mr. Szeto Pui Tong, Patrick,
the Company Secretary, has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional trainings to update his skills and knowledge. Biographical
details of Mr. Szeto are set out in the section headed “Biographical Details
of Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report.

Communications with Shareholders and
Investors

The Company believes that effective communication with shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investors’ understanding
of the Group’s business performance and strategies. The Company also
recognizes the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of
corporate information, which will enable shareholders and investors to
make the best investment decisions.
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The Company maintains a website at “www.cjigl.com” as a
communication platform with shareholders and investors, where
information and updates on the Group’s business operations,
developments and financial information are available for public access.
Shareholders and investors may send written enquiries or requests to the

Company. Contact details are as follows:

Address:  Room 1603-05, Harcourt House, 39 Gloucester Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Department of Investor Relations)
Fax: (852) 2865 4654
Email: info@cjigl.com

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the Board and the shareholders. The Chairman
of the Board as well as chairmen of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee and, in their absence, other
members of the respective committees and, where applicable, will
normally attend the annual general meeting and other relevant

shareholders’ meetings to answer questions raised.

The Company continues to enhance communications and relationships
with its investors. Designated senior management maintains regular
dialogue with institutional investors and analysts to keep them posted of
the Company’s developments.

Shareholder Rights

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution is
proposed for each substantially separate issue at shareholder meetings,
including the election of individual directors. The Company’s shareholders
may convene a special general meeting or put forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings as follows:

) Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-up
capital of the Company at the date of deposit of the requisition
may request the Board to convene a special general meeting
pursuant to Clause 71 of the Company’s bye-laws by sending a
written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary at the
Company's head office in Hong Kong. The objects of the meeting
must be stated in the written requisition.
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(2) Shareholder(s) representing not less than one-twentieth of the

total voting rights at the date of the requisition or not less than
100 shareholders may put forward a proposal at a shareholders’
meeting, pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
by sending a written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary at the Company’s head office in Hong Kong. The
proposal should be stated in the written requisition and such
written requisition should be submitted as early as practicable to
enable the Company to make necessary arrangement (in case of a
requisition requiring notice of a resolution, not less than six weeks
before the meeting; and in case of any other requisition, not less
than one week before the meeting).

(3) If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a retiring
director for election as a director of the Company at a general
meeting, the shareholder (other than the person to be proposed)
duly qualified to attend and vote at the general meeting shall
send a written notice, duly signed by the shareholder, of his/her
intention to propose such person for election and also a notice
signed by the person to be proposed of his/her willingness to
be elected. These notices should be lodged at the Company’s
head office in Hong Kong, or the office of the Company’s branch
share registrar. The period for lodgement of such notices shall
commence on the day after the dispatch of the notice of such
general meeting and end 7 days prior to the date of such general

meeting.

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholders must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as
the case may be) to the above address and provide their full name, contact
details and identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’
information may be disclosed as required by law.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any changes
to its bye-laws. An up-to-date version of the Company’s bye-laws is also
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and
the Company (www.cjigl.com).

All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be voted by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange after each shareholder’s
meeting.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
ESNESNEEEER

Executive Directors

Wang Haixiong, aged 43, has been appointed as an executive director,
the Chairman of the Board and the Chairman of the Executive Committee
and the Nomination Committee of the Company on 23 April 2015. Mr.
Wang holds a Master degree in Economics from Economic Management
School of lJilin University and a Bachelor degree in Economics from
Lingnan College of Sun Yat-sen University. He has obtained top scorer
of Science in the matriculation examination in Hainan Province in 1989.
Mr. Wang has extensive experience in professional investment and
corporate management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wang served
as a vice president of China Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited, a
member of the Investment Committee, a deputy director of corporate
investments and a chief investment officer of China Asset Management
Co., Ltd. from 2010 to February 2015. During 2003 to 2010, Mr.
Wang served as a general manager of the head office of investment
management of Goldstate Securities Joint Stock Co., Ltd. and a vice
president of investment business of Goldstate Securities Joint Stock Co.,
Ltd. During 1996 to 2002, Mr. Wang served as a director and an assistant
to general manager of the head office of securities department of Hainan
International Trust and Investment Company, and a general manager of
the sales department of Haikou Securities.

Wong Howard, aged 59, is an executive director of the Company
and a member of Executive Committee of the Company. He is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Wong joined the
Group in February 2000. He has over 20 years of senior management
experience in overall strategy, business development and retail chain
shops establishment. Mr. Wong had been a Managing Director of a listed
company in Hong Kong for two years before joining the Group.

Wong Yat Fai, aged 55, is an executive director and a member of both
the Executive Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company. He
is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Wong joined
the Group in February 2000. He holds a professional diploma in banking
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Wong had over 13 years of working experience in an international
banking group. He is a non-executive director of both C C Land Holdings
Limited and V. T. Realty Group Limited, an independent non-executive
director of Mission Capital Holdings Limited, all being listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EXkEREEEREE

Chen Wei, aged 33, has been appointed as an executive director and a
member of the Executive Committee of the Company on 8 December
2014. Ms. Chen holds a Bachelor of Science degree in International
Finance from the Beijing University of Aeronautics and Astronautics,
a Master of Science degree in Money, Banking and Finance from the
University of Birmingham and a PhD degree in Economics from the
University of Birmingham. Ms. Chen has extensive experience in the
finance and banking industry. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Chen was an
Assistant Vice President of BNP Paribas Wealth Management, Hong Kong
Branch where she became a Chartered Financial Analyst. Before that, Ms.
Chen was a Senior Manager at Guosen Securities (HK) Financial Holdings
Limited assisting in the execution of financial advisory, delisting and initial
public offering works. She had also worked in the United Kingdom and
Mainland China for HSBC Plc and The Bank of China respectively before
moving to Hong Kong. Ms. Chen was an executive director of Heritage
International Holdings Limited (a company listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange, stock code: 412) from October 2013 to October 2014.
She is an independent non-executive director of Mission Capital Holdings
Limited (a company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 1141).

Zhan lJianzhou, aged 43, has been appointed as an executive director
and a member of the Executive Committee of the Company on 17
December 2014. Mr. Zhan was awarded the Certificate in Foreign Trade
by Shenzhen University and completed the postgraduate course of
professional studies in business administration at Sichuan University. He
holds a Master of Business Administration from Sun Yat-sen University.
He held senior positions with major international banks and financial
investment groups for years. Mr. Zhan was nominated as the outstanding
private entrepreneur in Laibin City, Guangxi in 2006. Mr. Zhan has
extensive knowledge in corporate finance and banking. Mr. Zhan has been
the vice president of Guangdong Sunwin Group Co., Ltd. (BRZEAE
REEEEEARAF) since 2005, director of China Jinhai Group Limited
(FEI£ /8% E) since 2011 and director of Easy (Beijing) Investment Co.,
Ltd. (B4 () REBREEAF) since 2013.

China Jinhai International Group Limited FE £ /EEBREEER LT
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Li Chi Ming, aged 57, is an independent non-executive director, the
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of both the
Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company. He joined
the Group in February 2000. Mr. Li holds an Honorary Bachelor of Laws
(LLB) and Postgraduate Certificate in Laws (PCLL) from The University of
Hong Kong, and Master of Laws (LLM) from City University of Hong Kong.
He has been a Partner of Messrs Poon, Yeung & Li, Solicitors over 19

years.

Kwok Chi Kwong, aged 51, is an independent non-executive director
and a member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Kwok holds a master degree
in business administration from the University of Leicester. He is a Certified
Public Accountant (Practicing) registered with the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"”), an associate member of the
HKICPA and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Mr. Kwok has been a partner of JYC & Co since 2005. He
has gained more than 21 years of experience in auditing, accounting and
finance area.

Chen Youchun, aged 39, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive director and a member of the Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee of the Company on 21 October 2014. Mr. Chen
holds degree of Bachelor of Laws from Southwest University of Political
Science and Law in 2000 and the University of Northumbria in 2011 and
a Master degree in Laws from Wuhan University in 2007. Mr. Chen is a
foreign lawyer registered with The Law Society of Hong Kong. Mr. Chen
has extensive experience in corporate financing, private equity, venture
capitals, IPO and listing, and mergers and acquisitions. Mr. Chen has been
a partner of the Shenzhen office of JunZeJun Law Offices since 2006.
Mr. Chen is an independent director of Shenzhen Century Plaza Hotel
Co., Ltd. (@ company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code:
000033) and Hainan Honz Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (@ company listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code: 300086).
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EXkEREEEREE

Frank H. Miu, aged 66, has been appointed as an independent non-
executive director and a member of the Audit Committee of the Company
on 30 October 2014. Mr. Miu holds a Juris Doctor degree from Harvard
Law School and a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics and Accounting
from St. John's University of Minnesota in the United States of America.
He is a member of the American Bar Association and the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is also a fellow of Hong
Kong Institute of Directors. Apart from professional experience in law
and accounting, he has extensive exposure to various industries including
financial services. Mr. Miu was an independent non-executive director of
Freeman Financial Corporation Limited from December 2011 to August
2013 (a company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 279) and Tack Fiori International Group Limited from August 2011
to May 2014 (a company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange,
stock code: 928). Mr. Miu is presently an independent non-executive
director of Mascotte Holdings Limited (@ company listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 136) and Willie International
Holdings Limited (a company listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 273). Aside from directorships in the aforesaid
public companies listed on the Stock Exchange, he is also an independent
non-executive director of Duoyuan Global Water Inc., (previously listed on
the New York Stock Exchange).

Tsang Wing Ki, aged 53, has been appointed as an independent non-
executive director, the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member
of both the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company on 5 November 2014. Mr. Tsang obtained a master’s degree in
professional accounting from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr.
Tsang is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
Mr Tsang has more than 20 years of experience in auditing and financial
accounting. Mr. Tsang was an independent non-executive director of Unity
Investments Holdings Limited (a company listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange, stock code: 913) from September 2004 to October 2014
and an executive director of Noble Jewelry Holdings Limited (currently
known as Zhong Fa Zhan Holdings Limited) (a company listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 475) from August 2008 to
December 2011.

China Jinhai International Group Limited FE £ /EEBREEER LT

BF TR R-ZE-OFTA=THEZERAEAR
RAIBUFNTEFUREREZEGNE - BAERBAXR
M RBEEBHAEE LB RABAESL. John'sKE
BERGHBXELEN - RREHEMBE RERHZTM
GG ZKE - W RBEEETERERERE KT
BEERRGFTERERI - ENEETE (EREBRS
X)BREEER BELBR_T——F+_AE_F—
ZFENALEREGEERBRAR (RERAER LT
AE RHREE : 279) RN ZZ——FN\BET—NF
FAHEEFSEREEARAR (RBRXAERETHL
A BDRSE - 928) ZBUFRITES - BELRABH
EEBEARAR (REXAEREHHORF - RO :
136) REMBEBRZERBRAR (REXMER EHHLQ
Al BRI 273) ZBIUERNITESE - RRBRT LT
MARARETESSI  WIAKZTURMKB AR (AR
MHBHR P LET) ZBUIFITESE -

BXxE Et=m R-ZT-—NF+-ARBEZERAK
REVBUFNTES BRLZBEIELRFHZESME
FREGRE - BRARBERIABMGSEES 2R
T8 BEERBRGHMAGREHARGHMAE
MERGE - BEEHABBFRARUBEFANE
BoBEEH_ZTTENFAAZE_Z—HF+ALEE—
REZEBRBR AT (RERZPAEREHHORF - B -
93) ZHUFRITEE  UERR_TENFNAZE_ZT—
—Ft - AREREREERAERAR CAEPERERE
BAR]) (RBZPAER EHERE - BRORSE : 475) 28
TEE -



Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Senior Management

Szeto Pui Tong, Patrick, aged 55, joined the Group in March 2000,
is the Financial Controller and the Company Secretary of the Group.
Before joining the Group, Mr. Szeto has over 13 years of experience in
finance and accounting field. Mr. Szeto holds a master degree of business
in accounting from Monash University in Australia and is an associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the
Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries, the Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

B 2R E S

To the shareholders of China Jinhai International Group Limited
(formerly known as ICube Technology Holdings Limited)
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Jinhai
International Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 48 to 175, which comprise the
consolidated and company statements of financial position as at 31 March
2015, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free

from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Company and of the Group as at 31
March 2015, and of the Group’s financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Certified Public Accountants
22/F CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

26 June 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

TRBEER

Year ended 31 March 2015 HZE=ZT—AF=A=t+—HILFE

Notes 2015 —Z2—HF 2014 —Z—F
B s HK$’000 F3&7T HK$'000 T4
REVENUE KA
Electronic and accessory products B REEER 10,743 9,456
Financial investments and services W51 & K AR T (4,195) 26,663
5 6,548 36,119
Cost of electronic and accessory BEEETREEEMKE
products sold (10,197) (9,434)
Brokerage and commission expenses KL ERARAEAZ (878) (194)
(11,075) (9,628)
Gross profit/(loss) ESPAE=-)) (4,527) 26,491
Other income =N 5 2,966 4,480
Selling and distribution expenses HE KD HHRX (363) (277)
Administrative expenses THRAY (83,989) (41,521)
Research costs N (12,104) (20,419)
Other operating expenses H &8 (2,178) (1,337)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HE—IE R HERKIZE
equity investments ez 7,696 -
Fair value gains/(losses), net: NFHEYES /(B1E) - 558
Investment property A 2,083 =
Equity investments at fair value through  F:Bi8251L A FEFIER 2
profit or loss AR E 28,016 31,364
Derivative component of Acquired BB AT ES 2
Convertible Bonds 1T EES D 2,112 -
Derivative component of Issued BEITABRRESZ
Convertible Bonds STE T B MK 27 (206,579) 10,271
Loss arising from modification of Issued  {&3TE 31T A AR ES
Convertible Bonds ELZEE 27 (1,000,815) =
Finance costs BT E M 6 (7,291) (16,958)
LOSS BEFORE TAX RRPBiATES 1B 7 (1,274,973) (7,906)
Income tax expense et 10 (166) -
LOSS FOR THE YEAR REEEIE (1,275,139) (7,906)

China Jinhai International Group Limited FEI &SRB EEERA A



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

Year ended 31 March 2015 HZEZ=Z

Z'_L'/\ m\/%

wR e Hm

—AEZA=+—AILFE

Notes 2015 —E—HF 2014 —Z—PO4F
B e HK$'000 387t HK$'000 T3 7T
Attributable to: FE1h ¢
Owners of the parent RARIBE A 1 (1,266,154) 5,404
Non-controlling interests JEIRpCRE RS (8,985) (13,310)
(1,275,139) (7,906)
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE BATEAESEEEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EEEREF (ER)
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT 12 (Restated) (&%)
Basic HIR HK$(1.10)& T HK1.28 centsi il
Diluted 5] HK$(1.10)7%& T HKO0.60 centi& 1Ll
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEEEWER

Year ended 31 March 2015 HZE=ZT—AF=A=t+—HILFE

2015 —E—F & 2014 —Z—4F

HK$'000 F3& 7T HK$'000 F#&7T
LOSS FOR THE YEAR REEEE (1,275,139) (7,906)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) Htp2mEkzs (E7R)
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified REERBAMEES D EEER 2
to profit or loss in subsequent periods: Hib 2w :
Available-for-sale investments: AHEERE
Equity investments: IRAIZE
Changes in fair value N EEE) 2,304 1,862
Release upon disposal of available-for-sale RSB HEE
equity investments B & I B¢ ] (7.696) =
Income tax effect Fifsfis 2 890 (308)
Fair value change in debt component of IR R ES 2
Acquired Convertible Bonds aEHh 2z A THEE 2,577 -
(1,925) 1,554
Exchange differences on translation of foreign MEFINER 2 ER Z5

operations (21) (118)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) REFHMEEKE A (FE) -

FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX BRBL% (1,946) 1,436
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR AEELHEEEERE (1,277,085) (6,470)
Attributable to: G

Owners of the parent ISTNCIEZF=N (1,268,096) 6,891

Non-controlling interests EEaliig (8,989) (13,361)

(1,277,085) (6,470)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e ISR R

31 March 2015 =—ZF—AF=A=+—H
Notes 2015 —Z—HF 2014 —Z—M4F
BT HK$'000 F3& 7T HK$'000 T4

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - R KRG 13 2,135 1,722
Investment property BEMZE 14 92,000 =
Prepaid land lease payment B T E R 15 - -
Available-for-sale equity investments At ER AR E 17 153,000 14,461
Debt component of Acquired BUEIRRES 2

Convertible Bonds B &5 18 15,529 -
Total non-current assets FERBEELE 262,664 16,183
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Derivative component of Acquired BEUEIRRES 2

Convertible Bonds PTET A& 18 4,034 -
Equity investments at fair value FRBEREATEYIEZ

through profit or loss &N g 19 338,722 176,617
Loan receivables FEME R 20 165,000 -
Trade receivables FEU B 5 7R IE 21 1,442 1,108
Prepayments, deposits and other FARNFIA - RS REAM

receivables Ed B 22 10,242 3,232
Derivative component of Issued BETIRRES 2

Convertible Bonds $THET BEB1H 27 = 14,804
Tax recoverable A EIFIE 23 -
Restricted bank balances ZIR IR T4ETF 23 3,726 546
Cash and bank balances e MR1TET 23 529,660 83,223
Total current assets MEVEERE 1,052,849 279,530
CURRENT LIABILITIES mERE
Trade payables B S ENZE 24 3 16
Tax payable e 179 12
Other payables and accruals Hh R zIa kgt &R 25 195,044 12,645
Finance lease payables e R E A ETRIE 26 149 142
Total current liabilities mEBEAR 195,375 12,815
NET CURRENT ASSETS MEEEFH 857,474 266,715
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEELAERRBEE

LIABILITIES 1,120,138 282,898
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BAR

31 March 2015 =Z—HF=A=+—H

Notes 2015 —E—HF 2014 —ZF—PU4F
B s HK$’000 F3&7T HK$'000 T4
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FERBEE
Finance lease payables e R E R EFRIA 26 363 512
Issued Convertible Bonds BT ES 27 = 73,386
Issued Bonds BEITES 27 = 79,421
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIEAE 28 1,048 890
Total non-current liabilities JERE A A 1,411 154,209
Net assets FEE 1,118,727 128,689
EQUITY #Ex
Equity attributable to owners of BATEE AEERER
the parent
Issued capital BRI 29 41,908 20,337
Reserves G 30(a) 1,123,047 147,459
1,164,955 167,796
Non-controlling interests IR (46,228) (39,107)
Total equity iR 1,118,727 128,689
Wong Howard Wong Yat Fai
HeL Fi5E
Director Director
EF EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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Year ended 31 March 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Iﬁ: 2 /Jlb %FZ

—hF=R=+—RHIEFE

an\

Year ended 31 March 2015 HZE—Z

Notes 2015 —Z—HF 2014 —Z—F
BiE HK$'000 F3# 7T HK$'000 FH78
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHZHERE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax BREAIEE (1,274,973) (7,906)
Adjustments for: FTFIIEE (EEE
Bank interest income RITAEA 5 (16) (18)
Finance costs WsEA 6 7,291 16,958
Depreciation e 7 734 665
Impairment of other receivables H A e YR BR FORE 7 1,868 1,005
Impairment of trade receivables fEWE 5 FIERE 7 154 =
Write-off of items of property, MY - ME k& EEE
plant and equipment 59 -
Reversal of inventory provision FEREERR 7 - (107)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HE—Er HHERAKRE
equity investments Frisiss (7,696) -
Fair value losses/(gains), net: ATEERE (W) F5E
Investment property KB (2,083) =
Equity investments at fair value BiRBmRATETRZ
through profit or loss R AIGE (28,016) (31,364)
Derivative component of Acquired Euﬁlﬁﬁ—ﬁﬁ‘ﬂxﬁ%z
Convertible Bonds PTET BB (2,112) -
Derivative component of Issued BEETAMRES 2
Convertible Bonds PTET B&bn 206,579 (10,271)
Loss arising from modification of BB BITAIRARES
Issued Convertible Bonds EEZER 1,000,815 -
Equity-settled share option IR REREE 2 BE
arrangements, net ZHFE 33 25,990 6,933
(71,406) (24,105)
Increase in loan receivables FEWCE I N (165,000) =
Increase in equity investments at fair BRBEREATEYIEZ
value through profit or loss BRZARIZ & 1 0 (134,089) (53,208)
Decrease in inventories FERD = 585
Increase in trade receivables FENE SRR FIE N (488) (371)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and B FUIE - 24 R E
other receivables FEASBR KL N (5.649) (2,414)
Decrease/(increase) in restricted bank ZRREIRITEFR D (L)
balances (3,180) 1,409
Decrease in trade payables [ B SRR A (13) (56)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables HEMEMERERREAER
and accruals #mCrd) 10,544 (570)
Exchange realignment M 5 S B = (113)
Cash used in operations TSR & (369,281) (78,843)
Interest paid SARENESS (3.659) (17)
Interest element of finance lease REHESHSNHKZ
rental payments M EEBH (28) (28)
Net cash flows used in operating activities &= EBFTA 2R ERE/F50 (372,968) (78,888)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
meEEeRER
Year ended 31 March 2015 &HZE-—Z—RAF=A=+—HItFE

Notes 2015 —Z—HF 2014 ZF—HF
BT HK$’000 T3& 7T HK$'000 T4 7T

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REZHEERE

ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, plant BEVX  HEAEREEE

and equipment (1,207) (27)
Acquisition of subsidiaries Uiz s it /28 2 =] 31 (107,000) =
Acquisition of available-for-sale equity — UBER] i B ERR AR E

investments (153,000) -
Proceeds from disposal of HEHBERARE 2

available-for-sale equity investments FT{S30E 16,765 =
Interest received BIF & 16 18
Net cash flows used in investing activities % & /ZBFTA 2R &R =2/ F58 (244,426) 9)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHRERE

ACTIVITIES
Net proceeds from rights issue RS FTIS T8 F 58 29(i) 522,564 130,552
Net proceeds from placing of new shares Bi& A% (7 FT1S 28 558 29(ii) 267,576 -
Share option exercised BT REAE 29(ii) 100,124 =
Capital element of finance lease MERER SR EARIMH

rental payments (142) (186)
Proceeds from excess subscription HAGRE D BEINRRE EH 2

application of rights shares FiS5kI8 171,871 -
Capital contribution from the RS T E

non-controlling interests 1,868 1,005
Net cash flows from financing activities & EEIE L v RS RS F5 1,063,861 131,371
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH BH&RBREZEEE 2¥NFE

EQUIVALENTS 446,467 52,474
Cash and bank balances at beginning ~ F#zIR& K17

of year 83,223 30,747
Effect of foreign exchange rate HNEETE R E) 2 8 - FER

changes, net (30) 2
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZAELRAELEEER

AT END OF YEAR 529,660 83,223
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH H&RBEESZEFEBETE 2N

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances e NIRTTETF 23 529,660 83,223

China Jinhai International Group Limited FEI &SRB EEERA A



Statement of Financial Position

B FEAR R AR

31 March 2015 =E—RF=A=+—H

Notes 2015 —F—HF 2014 —Z—[U4
b= HK$'000 T38 7T HK$'000 F/#7T

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - R MERE 13 27 -
Investments in subsidiaries RSB RE ZI%E 16 - -
Total non-current assets ERBEERE 27 -
CURRENT ASSETS mEEE
Due from subsidiaries A NG E e 16 641,690 151,226
Prepayments, deposits and other TBfRIE - He Rk

receivables A e R R 62 57
Derivative component of Issued BEEITAIMRES 2

Convertible Bonds PTET AEH 27 — 14,804
Cash and bank balances & MIRITEETT 23 523,279 72,836
Total current assets MENEERE 1,165,031 238,923
CURRENT LIABILITIES b=
Other payables and accruals E b R RRIE R T B A 25 174,061 1,355
Due to subsidiaries FE B A EI5RIA 16 7,546 7,498
Total current liabilities MEE ERRE 181,607 8,853
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEERE 983,424 230,070
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEHERRBEE

LIABILITIES 983,451 230,070
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EREBERE
Issued Convertible Bonds BEITR IR ES 27 = 73,386
Issued Bonds BEBITES 27 = 79,421
Total non-current liabilities R B (EERE - 152,807
Net assets FEE 983,451 77,263
EQUITY E=
Issued capital B EITARA 29 41,908 20,337
Reserves HEfE 30(b) 941,543 56,926
Total equity s 983,451 77,263

Wong Howard Wong Yat Fai
HeL FiEE
Director Director
EF EF
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Notes to Financial Statements

B E5ERER M EE

31 March 2015

2.1

—E—Af=A=+—H
Corporate information

China Jinhai International Group Limited (formerly known as ICube
Technology Holdings Limited) (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The principal place of business
of the Company is located at Rooms 1603-5, 16/F., Harcourt
House, 39 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries during the year consisted of
the trading and distribution of electronic and accessory products
and other merchandise, financial investment and trading, money
lending business and research and development of integrated
circuit technology.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) (which
include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, which, because the Company has not early adopted
the revised disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”), are those of the predecessor Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32). They have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, except for an investment property,
listed equity investments, debt component of Acquired Convertible
Bonds and derivative financial instruments which have been
measured at fair value. These financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

China Jinhai International Group Limited FEI &SRB EEERA A
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2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2015.
The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and
to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full

on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control described in the accounting policy
for subsidiaries below. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the
fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus
or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities.

2.1

Notes to Financial Statements

B H%5 R B ot

31 March 2015 =Z—H&=A=+—H

fmBEE (&)
mElREEE

FAVBBRREBFARTALEMBERR (HEA
(A&EED) BE_Z—RAF=A=T—HILFEZ
BITEHREK - B RARPBRRDAEARFERZ
HERZERSABRRE - HBARNZEEEAR
SEMSZESE 2 B AR WEZEGIEL
IERIE—BEHEA AR -

BalEt2HRERAEBBENASERAR%E
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RR MR

31 March 2015 =& —

2.2
disclosures

RFE=RA=+—H

Changes in accounting policies and

The Group has adopted the following revised standards and new

interpretation for the first time for the current year's financial

statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10,

HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (2011)

Amendments to HKAS 32

Amendments to HKAS 36

Amendments to HKAS 39

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21

Amendment to HKFRS 2
included in Annual
Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle

Amendment to HKFRS 3
included in Annual
Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle

Amendment to HKFRS 13
included in Annual
Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle

Amendment to HKFRS 1
included in Annual
Improvements
2011-2013 Cycle

d Effective from 1 July 2014

Investment Entities

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Recoverable Amount Disclosures
for Non-Financial Assets

Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge
Accounting

Levies

Definition of Vesting Condlition’

Accounting for Contingent
Consideration in a Business

Combination’

Short-term Receivables and
Payables

Meaning of Effective HKFRSs

China Jinhai International Group Limited FEI &SRB EEERA A
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2.2 Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (continued)

Except for the amendment to HKFRS 1 which is only relevant to an

entity’s first HKFRS financial statements, the nature and the impact

of each amendment and interpretation is described below:

(a)

(b)

(0)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 include a definition of an
investment entity and provide an exception to the
consolidation requirement for entities that meet the
definition of an investment entity. Investment entities are
required to account for subsidiaries at fair value through
profit or loss rather than consolidate them. Consequential
amendments were made to HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
(2011). The amendments to HKFRS 12 also set out the
disclosure requirements for investment entities. The
amendments have had no impact on the Group as the
Company does not qualify as an investment entity as
defined in HKFRS 10.

The HKAS 32 Amendments clarify the meaning of
“currently has a legally enforceable right to set off” for
offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities. The
amendments also clarify the application of the offsetting
criteria in HKAS 32 to settlement systems (such as central
clearing house systems) which apply gross settlement
mechanisms that are not simultaneous. The amendments
have had no impact on the Group as the Group does not
have any offsetting arrangement.

The HKAS 36 Amendments remove the unintended
disclosure requirement made by HKFRS 13 on the
recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit which is
not impaired. In addition, the amendments require the
disclosure of the recoverable amounts for the assets or
cash-generating units for which an impairment loss has
been recognised or reversed during the reporting period,
and expand the disclosure requirements regarding the
fair value measurement for these assets or units if their
recoverable amounts are based on fair value less costs of
disposal. The amendments have had no impact on the

financial position or performance of the Group.

2.2

B BRZSBRHE

Notes to Financial Statements
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RR MR

31 March 2015 =Z—HF=A=+—H

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (continued)

(d)

(e)

The HKAS 39 Amendments provide an exception to
the requirement of discontinuing hedge accounting in
situations where over-the-counter derivatives designated
in hedging relationships are directly or indirectly, novated
to a central counterparty as a consequence of laws or
regulations, or the introduction of laws or regulations. For
continuance of hedge accounting under this exception,
all of the following criteria must be met: (i) the novations
must arise as a consequence of laws or regulations, or
the introduction of laws or regulations; (ii) the parties to
the hedging instrument agree that one or more clearing
counterparties replace their original counterparty to
become the new counterparty to each of the parties; and
(ii) the novations do not result in changes to the terms
of the original derivative other than changes directly
attributable to the change in counterparty to achieve
clearing. The amendments have had no impact on the
Group as the Group has not novated any derivatives
during the current and prior years.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 clarifies that an entity recognises a
liability for a levy when the activity that triggers payment,
as identified by the relevant legislation, occurs. The
interpretation also clarifies that a levy liability is accrued
progressively only if the activity that triggers payment
occurs over a period of time, in accordance with the
relevant legislation. For a levy that is triggered upon
reaching a minimum threshold, the interpretation clarifies
that no liability should be recognised before the specified
minimum threshold is reached. The interpretation has had
no impact on the Group as the Group applied, in prior
years, the recognition principles under HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets which for
the levies incurred by the Group are consistent with the
requirements of HK(IFRIC)-Int 21.

China Jinhai International Group Limited FEI &SRB EEERA A
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2.2 Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (continued)

()

(9)

The HKFRS 2 Amendment clarifies various issues relating
to the definitions of performance and service conditions
which are vesting conditions, including (i) a performance
condition must contain a service condition; (ii) a
performance target must be met while the counterparty
is rendering service; (iii) a performance target may relate
to the operations or activities of an entity, or to those
of another entity in the same group; (iv) a performance
condition may be a market or non-market condition; and
(v) if the counterparty, regardless of the reason, ceases
to provide service during the vesting period, the service
condition is not satisfied. The amendment has had no
impact on the Group.

The HKFRS 3 Amendment clarifies that contingent
consideration arrangements arising from a business
combination that are not classified as equity should be
subsequently measured at fair value through profit or
loss whether or not they fall within the scope of HKFRS 9
or HKAS 39. The amendment has had no impact on the
Group.

The HKFRS 13 Amendment clarifies that short-term
receivables and payables with no stated interest rates
can be measured at invoice amounts when the effect of
discounting is immaterial. The amendment has had no
impact on the Group.
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2.3 New and revised HKFRSs and new
disclosure requirements under the Hong
Kong companies ordinance not yet
adopted

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial
statements.
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments*
Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 (2011)

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception?

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations?
HKFRS 14

HKFRS 15

Regulatory Deferral Accounts®

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers®

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative?

Amendments to HKAS 16

and HKAS 38

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation?
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2.3

New and revised HKFRSs and new 2.3
disclosure requirements under the Hong
Kong companies ordinance not yet
adopted (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants?
and HKAS 41
Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee

Contributions’
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate
(2011) Financial Statements?
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of
2010-2012 Cycle HKFRSs'
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of
2011-2013 Cycle HKFRSs'
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of
2012-2014 Cycle HKFRSs?

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
B Effective for an entity that first adopts HKFRSs for its annual financial

statements beginning on or after 1 January 2016 and therefore is not
applicable to the Group

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application
but is not yet in a position to state whether these new and revised
HKFRSs would have a significant impact on the Group’s results of
operations and financial position.

In addition, the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) will
affect the presentation and disclosure of certain information in the
consolidated financial statements for the year ending 31 March
2016. The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of these changes.
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2.4

Summary of significant accounting policies
Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has
power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(©) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s statement
of profit or loss to the extent of dividends received and receivable.
The Company’s investments in subsidiaries that are not classified
as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 are stated at cost less

any impairment losses.
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2.4

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.
This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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RFE=RA=+—H

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial
instrument and within the scope of HKAS 39 is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value either recognised in profit or loss
or as a change to other comprehensive income. If the contingent
consideration is not within the scope of HKAS 39, it is measured in
accordance with the appropriate HKFRS. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum
of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value
of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwiill is not reversed in a subsequent period.
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2.4

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on
the relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment property, derivative financial
instruments, debt component of Acquired Convertible Bonds
and listed equity investments at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market
for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous
market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an
asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming
that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable

inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

2.4

Notes to Financial Statements

B H%5 R B ot

31 March 2015 =Z—H&=A=+—H

TEEHRRBE (&A)

EBEHREE (&)

MEEE RS RERCELSEN (RRSELSN
EWLD) ﬁﬁ%&ﬁﬁﬁ’ﬂﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁtﬂ% » RIFEEEE A i
EXBR RSB - EATHE X B EBNEE
B AREBOERAE - EZEBEATHENS
2 B*EifﬁﬁtljE%%%*ﬁ%ﬁ%@&ﬁﬁ%iﬁﬁ
MRE D BETTAE ©

AFEE

AEBEREHREAREZATEFEEREDSE
HEERTA Euﬁﬁﬁﬁijﬁﬁz&ﬁa‘m&im
BAEE - AFEANGTEAREMBER2EELEST
RGPLEEEE KIS EEEBET2ERE -

AFEAENERNBRRRNEEXBBENEETS
N\ EEMS - MRNEEXEBERAENNTSE
THEEEXHEAENRIMETE - TEH&FA
MHISARASEN G —HEEXKBENATE

Rt 2R DERAMS2EENEEENBBEEER
FRAMNRR  WRKTIS2EELHRELSENE
7% o

FERMEENATEFABNEEMS2RERB
REERSERERSKICIGEHRE T ZINEHE
R ER R E R AR 2 82 i B A B F s rO B2
e

AEEFAERBEBERERCNBENHRAELTF
ERHERM - ZACEREE ARG ABIE K
BERDERT A BN ASE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2014-2015 3§

69



70

Notes to Financial Statements

B RR MR

31 March 2015 =& —

2.4

RFE=RA=+—H

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 —  based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3- based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than financial
assets and an investment property), the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset's or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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2.4

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it arises.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset is reversed only
if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher
than the carrying amount that would have been determined (net
of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it arises.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of

the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions

applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the

other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); and

(vii)  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).
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2.4

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over the following estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 50 years or over the lease terms,
whichever is shorter
Leasehold improvements Over the remaining lease terms or
3 years, whichever is shorter
Plant and machinery 7 to 10 years
Motor vehicles, furniture, 3 to 5 years
fixtures and equipment

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of profit or
loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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2.4

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Investment property

Investment property is interest in land and building (including the
leasehold interest under an operating lease for a property which
would otherwise meet the definition of an investment property)
held to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather
than for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Such property is measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions
at the end of the reporting period.

Gain or loss arising from changes in the fair value of investment
property is included in the statement of profit or loss in the year in
which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year of the retirement or disposal.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present value
of the minimum lease payments and recorded together with the
obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase
and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance leases are
included in property, plant and equipment, and depreciated over
the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of
the assets. The finance costs of such leases are charged to the
statement of profit or loss so as to provide a constant periodic rate
of charge over the lease terms.
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2.4

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Leases (continued)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating
leases. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under
operating leases are charged to the statement of profit or loss on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables,
and available-for-sale financial investments, as appropriate. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value plus transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial assets, except in the case of financial assets
recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

2.4

Notes to Financial Statements

B H%5 R B ot

31 March 2015 =Z—H&=A=+—H

TEEHRRBE (&A)

HE (8)

REEEREEEZB@ABOEHRERERRE T HHE
EZHETINEREHE - WASERARSE - Z
FREMEZERNESRERAAERET ABs
=

KERE 2 T ERN RS IRE AT - BE1R
NEEHABARERER

RERHMEMEE
M HRR i E

S REENV T ERE D RSB BIERE N TED
FRHEREE  BERRBREFARATEKEZS
BEE ER) - SREERT LR AAFE
MERBEMEERIERZRAE (EEBIER
BATEIIRZBEERBRI) -

PE—REBZSREERNRR S B (AIAE B
AEERHEREEZRY) TURR - —REE
THERR—MRTISREREHE - ERHARMNE
EZTHEERS °

ANNUAL REPORT 2014-2015 3§

75



Notes to Financial Statements

B RR MR

31 March 2015 =Z—HF=A=+—H

2.4

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading. Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near
term. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are
also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss. These net
fair value changes do not include any dividends earned on these
financial assets, which are recognised in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as
separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the
host contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading or
designated as at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Reassessment only
occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract
that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise
be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair
value through profit or loss category.
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2.4

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less
any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
includes fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
other income and gains in the statement of profit or loss. The loss
arising from impairment is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss in finance costs for loans and in other operating expenses for
receivables.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and debt
component of a convertible bond. Equity investments classified
as available for sale are those which are neither classified as held
for trading nor designated as at fair value through profit or loss.
Debt securities in this category are those which are intended to
be held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold in
response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in market
conditions.
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2.4

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains
or losses recognised as other comprehensive income in the
available-for-sale equity investment revaluation reserve until the
investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or
loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss, or until the
investment is determined to be impaired, when the cumulative
gain or loss is reclassified from the available-for-sale equity
investment revaluation reserve to the statement of profit or loss.
Interest and dividends earned whilst holding the available-for-sale
financial investments are reported as interest income and dividend
income, respectively and are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that investment
or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates within the range
cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value,
such investments are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell
its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still
appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable to
trade these financial assets due to inactive markets, the Group
may elect to reclassify these financial assets if management has
the ability and intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable

future or until maturity.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale category,
the fair value carrying amount at the date of reclassification
becomes its new amortised cost and any previous gain or loss
on that asset that has been recognised in equity is amortised to
profit or loss over the remaining life of the investment using the
effective interest rate. Any difference between the new amortised
cost and the maturity amount is also amortised over the remaining
life of the asset using the effective interest rate. If the asset
is subsequently determined to be impaired, then the amount
recorded in equity is reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

(@) the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

(b) the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either
(i) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (ii) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that
the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of

consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset have
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that a debtor or
a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.
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2.4

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial assets
that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets
that are not individually significant. If the Group determines that
no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes
the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which
an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not

included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not yet been incurred). The present value of the
estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the loss is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on
the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together
with any associated allowance are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been
realised or has been transferred to the Group.
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2.4

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting
the allowance amount. If a write-off is later recovered, the
recovery is credited to other operating expenses in the statement
of profit or loss.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at
fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or on
a derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled by delivery
of such an unquoted equity instrument, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.

Impairment losses on these assets are not reversed.
Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses
at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective

evidence that an investment or a group of investment is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment
and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment
loss previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, is
removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in the

statement of profit or loss.

China Jinhai International Group Limited FEI &SRB EEERA A

2.4

TEREHBRBE (&)

ETRMEERE (&)
R BAT| R 2 BEE ()

i 75 £ EL 12 5 P il 51 OR (BB 18 2 3R o 0 e RRURL (B
ZIEBEENTRENIND - B BRHERESHE
AN A St AT e SR R (B S 1R o fied 1 L 1% Wi [
3 ZBERE R ABRR 2 EMRERA -

B A Z R &

H—RERENREEA EEHERFEMIFARF
BIRZBEATA  HEZEEREFATAGE
FMBEIMEBEBRXNZERATAEREZNTET
AEELRREBREZ TBRE  BREBREE
FREEEREUSREERTM SR RENR 24
AARBEEREBRERMZEZRAE - REEEZR
BEEBEETTED -

RN ETHRE

HAHEESRKREMNS - AEERZERSHR
HEREAFERERNSRBRIRER—ARELER
I

HAHHEEERBRRE  ERAE CIRERE
BENAS REHEE) BERTAFEZESR £
RN EERRRERZEMBREBRENEME
E Uz S - R IEERR TR o



2.4

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of an investment below its cost. “Significant”
is evaluated against the original cost of the investment and
“prolonged” against the period in which the fair value has been
below its original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment,
the cumulative loss — measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that investment previously recognised in the statement of
profit or loss — is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses on
equity instruments classified as available for sale are not reversed
through the statement of profit or loss. Increases in their fair value
after impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires
judgement. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates,
among other factors, the duration or extent to which the fair
value of an investment is less than its cost.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available for sale,
impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as financial
assets carried at amortised cost. However, the amount recorded
for impairment is the cumulative loss measured as the difference
between the amortised cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Future interest income continues to be
accrued based on the reduced carrying amount of the asset and
is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The
interest income is recorded as other income in the statement of
profit or loss. Impairment losses on debt instruments are reversed
through the statement of profit or loss if the subsequent increase
in fair value of the instruments can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.
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2.4

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and
borrowings, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
and accruals, finance lease payables, Issued Convertible Bonds and
Issued Bonds.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate

amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the statement of profit

or loss.
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Summary of significant accounting policies 2.4 FERBEBE (&)
(continued)

Financial liabilities (continued) cRIEE (&)

Issued Convertible Bonds B #7T Al R B 5

The component of Issued Convertible Bonds that exhibits BEETAMRES R BN EFHNED - R
characteristics of a liability is recognised as a liability in the RGEABEMBRARTERBBE - BITAIR
statement of financial position, net of transaction costs. On IRIESE - SERAEE 2 FFATRRES N THISHE
issuance of convertible bonds, the fair value of the liability EEEEDBOHHATE  RZBERE N ANELE
component is determined using a market rate for an equivalent JAREEE BEERBRKRSERMBETHERLL -
non-convertible bond; and this amount is carried as a long IS RESRRE S EERREERAERRTAZ
term liability on the amortised cost basis until extinguished on HARHE - MR G AR B AR o

conversion or redemption. The remainder of the proceeds is
allocated to the conversion option that is recognised and included
in shareholders’ equity, net of transaction costs.

The carrying amount of the conversion option is not remeasured in BMEENRAETSRNEEREEENAE - RHK
subsequent years. Transaction costs are apportioned between the KB*E%F%?KTJEWP&%IEHT%TE HRESEERE
liability and equity components of the Issued Convertible Bonds BRERDDZLEADRECETIRRESNE
based on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity fERER D

components when the instruments are first recognised.

If the conversion option of Issued Convertible Bonds exhibits HE BT RRESZBRERRRAXITET
characteristics of an embedded derivative, it is separated from Bz AIEEEEROHRAR - RERER
its liability component. On initial recognition, the derivative W - BETAIMRESZITETASNIERTFER
component of the issued Convertible Bonds is measured at fair b= ]IﬁlJ/'%MEinI,\uMﬁ o BTSRRI B
value and presented as part of derivative financial instruments. ’Kﬁﬁumﬁzmil,ﬁwﬁz AR EERR
Any excess of proceeds over the amount initially recognised as BEEH - x%ﬁk$)ﬂﬂﬁﬁ%/Aﬁ@%@%i%lﬁﬁvﬁﬁ
the derivative component is recognised as the liability component. SHRENBEETETANMNREZORBER - E5
Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and ZERTURRESF2EBERTETASD - EH
derivative components of the Issued Convertible Bonds based ZEEBMZIRIRARN L ERFERRE BB
on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and derivative 7o M ELTAET RN 2 X HARBIREE
components when the instruments are initially recognised. The RANER -

portion of the transaction costs relating to the liability component
is recognised initially as part of the liability. The portion relating
to the derivative component is recognised immediately in the
statement of profit or loss.

ANNUAL REPORT 2014-2015 3§ 85



86

Notes to Financial Statements

B RR MR

31 March 2015 =Z—HF=A=+—H

2.4

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and bank balances

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statements of financial position, cash and
bank balances comprise cash on hand and cash at banks, which
are not restricted as to use.
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2.4

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value
amount arising from the passage of time is included in finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the tax authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and
practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.

2.4

Notes to Financial Statements

B H%5 R B ot

31 March 2015 =Z—H&=A=+—H

TEEHRRBE (&A)

R

EHREEEMHERERAREEEREER(EN
RIEATREBIMARERABITEME - BREr (bt E
EZ 8 - RIS EREE -

TR EEX - RIHERZ B HEE R IR ET
REMB2ARARASERERR2BEE - BERFER
AT IREEINZ FRIEAABRR ZHBER -

FR&%

PRIS T B IR ENH BB EBIIR - NS s RIMER 2
BEFM BTN ESERIN 2 EMEEKRENE
ER R AER o

SR EBERENSMIREERAE  TIIRER
BERREERREABER2ZHER (RBUE) - X
ERASEEBMAEBRR 2R BRBERED - IR
TR SR W M R S RRETE -

EERBEDRBEEE  HRBREHREERAE
ZETMEERZFHE MR RS 2 REE
—PIE R R LR o

ANNUAL REPORT 2014-2015 3§

87



88

Notes to Financial Statements

B RR MR

31 March 2015 =Z—HF=A=+—H

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

3 when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

3 when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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2.4

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or
the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable
entity and the same tax authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic
basis over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic

benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be

measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a)

(b)

(0)

(e)

from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

for the rendering of services, on the straight-line basis over
the contract period;

the profit or loss on trading of equity investments at fair
value through profit or loss, on the transaction dates when
the relevant contract notes are exchanged;

interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life
of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset; and

dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.
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2.4

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss as

incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that
it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its
ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future
economic benefits, the availability of resources to complete the
project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during
the development. Product development expenditure which does

not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.
Share-based payments

The Company operates share option schemes for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants
after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to the fair value
at the date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined
by an external valuer using the binomial model, further details of
which are set out in note 33 to the financial statements.
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2.4

RFE=RA=+—H

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with
a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee
benefit expense. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at the end of each reporting period until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has
expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the
statement of profit or loss for a period represents the movement
in the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end
of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is conditional
upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are treated as
vesting irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or
service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of

modification.

China Jinhai International Group Limited FEI &SRB EEERA A

2.4

TEREHBRBE (&)

UM<0 5 (&)

PR E R 5 R K R R s AR B G IR R IR
R/ SRS IR EEE R 2 BRI RME B A8 F 5 s h 1
R NEREMRELRE R NPRABEEERS
PR R X LG EEHBHERE - AEAEE
AR R B 2 AN T ARB M EAET - Rex I
IR m R INER BN ARR Y B 15 % B R 06 S AR 5 B
PR H) R At S H

REWEFBORB BT THER - EART TS

FEBGEMRAEFBETHNRBEEER S (&

i&ﬁﬁﬁﬁi\@ﬁiﬁ&/iﬁﬁf& Gz BRIERE
WA AN EMTISEERBARM) BRI o

HREEE R 2 R E PTERT
WS FTIRFR A ST (75 & [R R ARRAIKF)

RIED mﬁ&

|:l ER7K
Sh - HEBRTEBUARN XN Z A ?@iﬂﬂ
YEREXE - BIAERX L FESHENERE
HEtE -



2.4

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled
and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the
original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

Other employee benefits
Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its
employees. Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the statement
of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme,
except for the Group’s employer voluntary contributions, which
are refunded to the Group when the employee leaves employment
prior to the contributions vesting fully, in accordance with the rules
of the MPF Scheme.

2.4

Notes to Financial Statements

B H%5 R B ot

31 March 2015 =Z—H&=A=+—H

TEEHRRBE (&A)

UM IHNRS (&)

MEZHEREA T RE RERNEHE AR
J& - AR 1 AR AR 2R R Y S BN B RERR © UL B FA
AN BAEE R B E 8 E R IER B IRt
PSR BV ERE) - AT - B AT R EVK E =i e 82
By WRIRHE RS AREER  AEBESEEE
FEREN ISR S — BT ) R 2R 2 18 FT ©

RTERBBRR 2 HFTZER

+ 8 5B E N R A

unr

BINRIDHEE -

Hittfg B2 A

RIKIEFIEE)

AEBRRAREAESH B KO AR ARER
TEBHERAES ﬁzwﬁﬁﬁﬁa>ou%rﬁ
BEAFSZETADLAE  YRARSHEZ

FAER MR REBRERTIR - RES S 2
BENBYER 7 EcBAKH 2 EES RIS °
AEEZREHFRABES T EELEKRDE

BEHE
BB

8BSt R R

HERFRIRS AT EIMARA - HESNE

EH“% AREERRESHEIERZ
TAREH -

ANNUAL REPORT 2014-2015 3§

93



94

Notes to Financial Statements

B RR MR

31 March 2015 =Z—HF=A=+—H

2.4

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Other employee benefits (continued)
Retirement benefit schemes (continued)

Pursuant to the relevant regulations of Mainland China,
subsidiaries of the Company operating in Mainland China
participate in a local municipal government retirement benefit
scheme (the “Mainland Scheme"”) whereby the subsidiaries are
required to contribute a percentage of the basic salaries of their
employees to the Mainland Scheme to fund their retirement
benefit obligations regarding all existing and future retired
employees of the subsidiaries. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the Mainland Scheme is to pay the ongoing
required contributions under the Mainland Scheme mentioned
above. Contributions under the Mainland Scheme are charged to
the statement of profit or loss as incurred. There are no provisions
under the Mainland Scheme whereby forfeited contributions may
be used to reduce future contributions.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The gain or
loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at
fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss
on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference
on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of
the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into the presentation currency of the Company
at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their statements of profit or loss are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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Significant accounting judgements and
estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities as at the end of the reporting period.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

Income tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.

China Jinhai International Group Limited FEI &SRB EEERA A

TESTHE R A

EEERUEASENMRHRE  FELETE
BEHRMERMBRA X BERAENHRSS
B REEEHNREER RN ABEREN
B - At R - BEBRR RGN AEERRA
BREREFAARIZENEEX A BRAEE
HEARFHE -

2l

RAAEENSHEENBIET  SEED LN
THH SRR ARG REAY 2N -

Va2

BERADRAREE  HRBERREERAE
ZETREERZEIRE YRR E ZREEL
— B R E BB o



Significant accounting judgements and
estimates (continued)

Judgements (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses carried
forward to the extent that it is probable (i.e., more likely than
not) that future taxable profits will be available against which
the unused tax losses can be utilised, based on all available
evidence. Recognition primarily involves judgement regarding the
future performance of the particular legal entity or tax group in
which the deferred tax asset has been recognised. A variety of
other factors are also evaluated in considering whether there is
convincing evidence that it is probable that some portion or all
of the deferred tax assets will ultimately be realised, such as the
existence of taxable temporary differences, tax planning strategies
and the periods in which estimated tax losses can be utilised.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets and related financial
models and budgets are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and to the extent that there is insufficient convincing
evidence that sufficient taxable profits will be available within
the utilisation periods to allow utilisation of the tax losses carried
forward, and the asset balance will be reduced and charged to the
statement of profit or loss.

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

The Group classifies certain assets as available for sale and
recognises movements of their fair values in equity. When the fair
value declines, management makes assumptions about the decline
in value to determine whether there is an impairment should
be recognised in profit or loss. During the year ended 31 March
2015, no impairment losses have been recognised (2014: Nil). The
carrying amount of the Group’s available-for-sale financial assets as
at 31 March 2015 was HK$168,529,000 (2014: HK$14,461,000)
in aggregate, details of which are set out in notes 17 and 18 to
the financial statements.
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@%%ﬁﬁ%%%Z%@oﬁEE@%Rﬁiﬂi
RERERIEE E 2 REE KRG MM GER HETE
H - MR B TS =R RERTNE A BAR
ﬁi%ﬁ%mmﬂu HEADAEBKEE - Al
BEAREGRELD  WRERKMR -

AR & B A R E

REBEGE TEED BRI E W R AER
RENDFEZS - ERXTFERDE  EREHE
BERDMEHEBRR  NEERAREBRRERRE -
BE_Z-RF=-A=+—HALFE  WEEIR
BEER(ZTE-—HF:F) R_FT—-—AF=H=
T—B AEEAH tlj%HxZ!S&éE’]BEETE:.,\
#$168,529,0007% 7T (= & — M £F : 14,461,000/
TT)  BEFEBERRE BRI E17R%18

ANNUAL REPORT 2014-2015 3§

97



98

Notes to Financial Statements

B RR MR

31 March 2015 =Z—HF=A=+—H

Significant accounting judgements and
estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below.

Presentation of Issued Convertible Bonds and fair values of the
liability and derivative components of Issued Convertible Bonds

As described in note 27 to the financial statements, the Issued
Convertible Bonds of the Group are presented as the derivative
component and the liability component of the Issued Convertible
Bonds in accordance with HKAS 39.

The fair values of the liability and derivative components of Issued
Convertible Bonds are determined using valuation techniques. The
inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where
possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of estimation
is required in establishing fair values. The estimation includes
considerations of inputs such as adjustment factors to the risk-free
rate, stock price, credit risk, dividend yield and volatility. Changes
in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair
values of Issued Convertible Bonds.

As at 31 March 2014, the fair value of the derivative asset and the
carrying amount of the liability component of Issued Convertible
Bonds were HK$14,804,000 and HK$73,386,000, respectively.
During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Issued Convertible
Bonds were fully converted into 1,600,000,000 ordinary shares of
the Company.
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Significant accounting judgements and
estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of loans and receivables

The Group assesses at the end of the reporting period whether
there is any objective evidence that a loan and receivable is
impaired. To determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment, the Group considers factors such as the probability
of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor and
default or significant delay in payments. Where there is objective
evidence of impairment, the amount and timing of future cash
flows are estimated based on historical loss experience for assets
with similar credit risk characteristics.

The Group maintains an allowance for estimated impairment of
receivables arising from the inability of its debtors to make the
required payments. The Group makes its estimates based on
the ageing of its receivable balances, debtors’ creditworthiness,
past repayment history and historical write-off experience. If the
financial condition of its debtors was to deteriorate so that the
actual impairment loss might be higher than expected, the Group
would be required to revise the basis of making the allowance.
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Significant accounting judgements and
estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Valuation of share options

As described in note 33 to the financial statements, the Company
engaged an independent firm of professionally qualified valuers
to assist in the valuation of the share options granted during the
years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014. The fair values of options
granted under the share option schemes were determined using
the binomial option pricing model. The significant inputs into the
model were share price at the grant date, risk-free interest rate,
exercise price and expected volatility of the underlying shares.
When the actual results of the inputs differ from management's
estimate, this will have an impact on share option expenses and
the related share option reserve of the Company. The fair value of
the share options granted by the Company during the year ended
31 March 2015 was HK$24,335,000 (2014: HK$3,789,000). The
share option expense of HK$25,990,000 (2014: HK$6,933,000)
was recognised during the year ended 31 March 2015.

Fair values of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active market
for similar lease terms and other contracts. In the absence of such
information, the Group considers information from a variety of
sources, including:

(@) current prices in an active market for properties of a
different nature, condition or location, adjusted to reflect
those differences;
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Significant accounting judgements and
estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Fair values of investment properties (continued)

(b) recent prices of similar properties in less active markets,
with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the date of transactions that occurred at
those prices; and

(c) discounted cash flow projections, based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows, supported by the terms
of any existing lease and other contracts and by external
evidence such as current market rents for similar properties
in the same location and condition, and using discount
rates that reflect current market assessments of the
uncertainty in the amount and timing of cash flows.

The carrying amount of the investment property as at 31 March
2015 was HK$92,000,000. Further details including the key
assumptions used for fair value measurement are given in note 14

to the financial statements.

Fair value of the derivative component of Acquired Convertible
Bonds

The Group’s the derivative component of Acquired Convertible
Bonds is measured at fair value, which is determined by the
directors using the binomial tree pricing model. The significant
inputs into the models were the underlying share price at
acquisition date and year end date, risk-free interest rate, exercise
price, expected volatility of the underlying shares and term
to maturity. When the actual results of the inputs differ from
management’s estimates, it will have an impact on the fair value
gains or losses and the fair values of the Acquired Convertible
Bonds. As at 31 March 2015, the fair value of the derivative
component of the Acquired Convertible Bonds was HK$4,034,000
(2014: Nil).
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Operating segment information

The Group's operating businesses are structured and managed
separately according to the nature of their operations and the
products and services they provide. Each of the Group’s operating
segments represents a strategic business unit that offers products
and services which are subject to risks and returns that are
different from those of the other business segments. Summary of
details of the operating segments are as follows:

(@ the electronic and accessory products segment trades
electronic and accessory products;

(b) the financial investments and services segment comprises
financial investment and trading, debt and equity
investments and money lending business (previously, this

segment was named as treasury investments); and

(c) the corporate and others segment comprises corporate
income and expense items; research and development of

integrated circuit technology and property investment.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/
(loss), which is measured consistently with the Group’s profit/
(loss) before tax except that bank interest income, finance costs,
fair value gain on the derivative component of Issued Convertible
Bonds, loss arising from modification of Issued Convertible Bonds,
head office and corporate expenses are excluded from such

measurement.

Segment assets exclude cash and bank balances, the derivative
component of Issued Convertible Bonds and other unallocated
head office and corporate assets as these assets are managed on a
group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude Issued Convertible Bonds, Issued Bonds,
deferred tax liabilities and other unallocated head office and
corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group
basis.

China Jinhai International Group Limited FEI &SRB EEERA A

n‘f

AEBZEEXBHBREEERHERERHEZE
mERBDRETEBERER - ARES K20
BHRKR KB EBEN - BREMIRHER KR
RAYE 2 Rl K ATS R MR E RS AR o
REDBIMEFBAOT

(a) BEFREEEMN R BEEEFREEE

o’

0,

(b) BBERERRBOREREVBREREER
,\F&Hxﬂi&é{%&ﬁﬂlﬁiﬁ“ (%2 $E R
BMBIRE)

(c) ﬁ%&ﬁ@"*ﬁ BIEEREWA NG IR
F PR EKERRMA R EIRE -

EEERERDERKRBFGEZIRESAREAR
SEEEDEZEE - "*Ei%iﬁﬁhz—!iﬁi"*
A/ (B18) TR - BRRNEHE F IR RTFI S
WA BER - E?é?ﬁﬂ%ﬁéﬁxfﬁ%%ZmﬁzIE“ﬁ
Rz AT ERE  BIEETAIRREFELEZE
B BERARERIN  ZFFEEASEARHR
BE R (B518) mEtET = —5 -

DPREESBRASKBTAEE BEITUAR
BFZITET AR MDIAREMRS RATRARE
E G ARZEEETREFHEERER -

SHEEETEREEHTUBRES - E?é‘fﬂf%
BERABBAREMRDELLRABEE -
RREAEREAERER



Operating segment information (continued)

There are no intersegment sales and transfers between the

segments (2014: Nil).
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Group EH
Electronic and Financial investments Corporate
accessory products and services and others Consolidated
ETRREER BB RER RS PERAM &8
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
ZE-ff —FT-NE -1 —T-MF ZB-FE _—T-NFf CB-1F —T-MF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#n T TiEn T Ti#n T T T
Segment revenue: DEUA :
Sales to external customers [N RZEHEE 10,743 9,456 - - - - 10,743 9,456
Gains/(losses) from financial ~ Bi#HRE kR
investments and services Wi/ (B8) - - (4,195) 26,663 - - (4,195) 26,663
Tota st 10,743 945% (4195 26,663 - - 6548 36119
Segment results PERE (5519) (3,996) 9,133 57,670 (6379)  (54812)  (60,182) (1,138)
Reconciliation; i
Bank interest income FATFBHA 16 18
Fair value gain/(loss) on BETRRES
derivative componentof  $74T A3
Issued Convertible Bonds ~ z A TEME /(BE) (206,579) 10,271
Losses arising from CHIEE ]
modification Rk ES
of Issued Convertible Bonds 24 7 518 (1,000,815) =
Unallocated expenses FATFAZ (122) (99)
Finance costs BB (7291)  (16,958)
Loss before tax BHAEE (1,274,973) (7,906)
Income tax expense FSHiRY (166) =
Loss for the year NEERR (1,275,139) (7,906)
Assets and liabilities BEREE
Segment assets NEEE 2,612 1920 679,459 191,611 98,846 2,641 780,917 196,172
Reconciliation: ik
Unallocated assets RAMEE 534,596 99,541
Total assets BREBE 1315513 295713
Segment liabilities NEEE 8,554 6,430 5,280 124 9,740 6,712 23,574 13,266
Reconciliation: ik
Unallocated liabilities KOREE 173,212 153,758
Total liabilities AERE 196,786 167,024
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4. Operating segment information (continued) 4. K&3FEEH (&)
Other segment information Hitn BER
Group REH
Electronic and Financial investments Corporate
accessory products and services and others Consolidated
ETRREER BB RERE SEREM e
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
“E-1f —T-§ ZE-1f TN ZB-1f —T-NF CB-FF C—T-IF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT TET TAL FAT TATL TR TAT
Depreciation i 84 84 - - 650 581 734 665
Impairment losses recognised A EZFHERL
in the statement of profit ~ JFi{BE#E
or loss 154 - - - 1,868 1,005 2,022 1,005
Reversal of inventory provision /7 &% &2l - (107) - - - - - (107)
Write-off of items of property, ###% « BE Rk
plant and equipment BEEE 59 - - - - - 59 -
Fair value gains on equity ~ BBEFEATEIEZ
investments at fair value ~ FRAKIREZ
through profit or loss ATENE - = (28016)  (31,364) - - (28016)  (31,369)
Gain on disposal of HE RN ERAR
available-for-sale RE W
equity investments - - (7,696) - - - (7,696) -
Fair value gain on an REME AT ERE
investment property - - - - (2,083) - (2,083) -
Fair value gains on derivative EISEAHRRESZ
component of Acquired HTETA
Convertible Bonds hin 2 A HENE = = 2.112) - - - 2112) -
Equity-settled share option  FfE &5 2 BERR#E
arrangements, net ZHFE (18) 28 - - 26,008 6,905 25,990 6,933
Capital expenditure* ARFE - 16 - - 91,124 766 91,124 782
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and  * BEARX BEREYE - BRE RRMH RSB — RN

equipment and an investment property acquired through acquisition of
a subsidiary.

China Jinhai International Group Limited FEI&5HBREBEER A A
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Operating segment information (continued) 4.

Geographical information

The following table represents the Group's revenue and non-
current assets information by geographical locations for the years
ended 31 March 2015 and 2014.

People’s
Republic of China
(including Hong Kong)
REARANER
(BHEEHE)

2015 2014
—E-HF —T—OF
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET

Notes to Financial Statements
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REPHER (#)

E5n%E
TREINAEBRBEZE-_T—AFER_T—NF=A
=t RALFERESBEZRARERDEEZ
Europe and
South Africa Consolidated
BUNREE3E Foe)
2015 2014 2015 2014

—E-RHF —ETNF ZB-HFE —TNF

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TERT TAT T TAT

Segment revenue: A 3EUA :

Electronic and B REEEMR
accessory
products 7,322 7,459 3,421 1,997 10,743 9,456
Financial AR E R ARTE
investments
and services (4,195) 26,663 = = (4,195) 26,663
3,127 34,122 3,421 1,997 6,548 36,119
Non-current assets  JERENEE 94,135 1,722 - - 94,135 1,722

The revenue information above is based on the locations of
customers and the stock markets.

The non-current asset information above is based on the locations
of the assets and excludes financial instruments.

Information about a major customer
Revenue of approximately HK$4,006,000 (2014: HK$5,470,000)

was derived from sales by the electronic and accessory products
segment to a single customer.

ERA BRI TARF R IRZE M5 e i AR
P ERBEEER HAEEMEAKE - T8
FEERTA -

EREXEREFZER

I A 494,006,000/ 7t (== — U4 : 5,470,0007%

L) REME-FPEHEFREEEMRD EHH
&
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5. Revenue and other income 5. WARHEMUKA

WA (TRENA R 2 % 5) TN ERENG R
ERE SN - B EEBESRATEIESRA
‘EZ WS (BE) - ERAREREEZRE
AR 2T 2 B 2 FrEE R uE
SBEMEE -

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the
aggregate of the net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances
for returns and trade discounts, gains/(losses) on disposal of equity
investments at fair value through profit or loss, dividend income
from listed equity investments and interest income from money
lending business during the year.

An analysis of revenue and other income is as follows: WAREMBAZSHTT :

106

Group "&EME
2015 =Z—HF 2014 —Z—M%F
HK$'000 F& 7T HK$'000 F/#&7T
Revenue KA
Sale of goods HEEm 10,743 9,456
Gains/(losses) on disposal of equity FREREATERZ
investments at fair value through AR E 2 Wk (B518)
profit or loss (11,064) 25,951
Dividend income from listed equity EARARIRAIRE ZREMA
investments 2,327 712
Interest income from money lending KEREER 2 FBUWA
business 4,542 =
6,548 36,119
Other income HApug A
Bank interest income BITHFEWA 16 18
Government grants BUR RS 1,015 3,223
Service income ARASUTA 1,350 1,185
Others v 585 54
2,966 4,480
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6. Finance costs 6. MKEHR
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: MBBRASTWT :
Group A"&EE
2015 =2 —HF 2014 ZZT—N%F
HK$000 F&T HK$'000 T7& 7T
Interest on finance leases BMEMERNS 28 28
Imputed interest on Issued Convertible B E{TR AR EH 2 HEEFIE
Bonds 3,359 8,007
Interest on Issued Bonds BEETEFZFE 3,745 8,906
Interest on bank overdrafts RITEZFIE 70 17
Interest on a promissory note AR EERANE 89 =
7,291 16,958
Loss before tax 7. BRBAISE
The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): REBERFAIEE IR (GTA) LA TIER ¢
2015 =2 —hfF 2014 ZZT—N%F
HK$'000 T3 T HK$'000 F/#&7T
Cost of inventories sold EEFEKA 10,197 9,541
Depreciation (note 13) e (fIsE13) 734 665
Research costs* i D N 12,104 20,419
Employee benefit expense (including EERFFEXZ (B
directors’ remuneration (note 8)): E=Me (fIFE8)) :
Wages and salaries ITERE® 29,853 26,927
Equity-settled share option expense, IRt 2 AR R S >
net** 10,119 6,933
Retirement benefit scheme RONAE I ET BT+
contributions*** 2,514 2,374
42,486 36,234
Minimum lease payments under LEREIET 2 &K
operating leases: MERK
Land and buildings T RAEF 3,431 2,813
Auditors’ remuneration IZERRT BN & 1,700 1,390
Impairment of trade receivables JEWE S RIERIE 154 -
Impairment of other receivables H AW GRIERE 1,868 1,005
Write-off of items of property, plant WsEmZE - BB &
and equipment R E 59 -
Reversal of inventory provision* FEEER O = (107)
Foreign exchange differences, net M55 - FME 32 -
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* k k
#

—T-RF=A=1-H

Loss before tax (continued)

Research costs for the year ended 31 March 2015 included wages
and salaries of HK$8,043,000 (2014: HK$9,215,000), which had been
included in the employee benefit expense disclosed above.

The total net equity-settled share option expense for the year ended
31 March 2015 was HK$25,990,000 (2014: HK$6,933,000), which
included net equity-settled share option expenses of HK$10,119,000
(2014: HK$6,933,000) and HK$15,871,000 (2014: Nil) for share
options granted to certain employees and management personnel of
service providers of the Group, respectively.

At 31 March 2015, the Group had no forfeited contributions available
to reduce its contributions to the retirement benefit schemes in future
years (2014: Nil).

This item is included in “cost of electronic and accessory products sold”
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Directors’ remuneration

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the

7.

BRBAIE R (&)

* %

* kK

HE-T-—AF=A=+—BIEFEZWERAR
BIE T & K5 £8,043,0008 7T (ZF — M4 ¢
9,215,000/ 7T) * M EX I TEZ MO AR

BRFFEZH -

HE-_T-—AF=A=+—BILFEZRELEZ
z&%&%%&&%%%%a #525,990,000/8 7T (=%
— 4 : 6,933,000 7T) + BEMRETFAZEER
BHERETEEREEEAR ZERE Y RE
HEZERERZFES B /10,119,000% 7T
:Efmﬁ 6,933,0007% jt) 15,871,000/
T(ZT—lF )

RZZ—RAF=A=+—8 ' AEEIEZ WA
W‘Eml ARFERARBRFEIR2ER (ZF
—PNE ;) o

B R BEERS BE
BRAT A ©

SRk [EEEFREEEM

EEME

RIE LR R M ATE B 2 BE

Bl (%632F) FE1611{&

Listing Rules and section 161 of the predecessor Hong Kong BREZFNESMEMAT -
Companies Ordinance (Cap.32), is as follows:
Group A& H
2015 =21 F 2014 —Z—PU4F
HK$'000 F3&7T HK$'000 F7&7T
Fees wE 772 450
Other emoluments of executive directors: #1778 % 2 EM IS -
Salaries, allowances and benefits e EZBE N EYIEF
in kind 5,416 3,510
Equity-settled share option expense, MRS 2 AR 2
net 829 790
Pension scheme contributions BIRETEI ALK 259 176
6,504 4,476
7,276 4,926
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(a)

Directors’ remuneration (continued)

During the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014, certain directors
were granted share options, in respect of their services to the
Group, under the share option schemes of the Company, further
details of which are set out in note 33 to the financial statements.
The fair value of such options, which has been recognised in
the statement of profit or loss over the vesting period, was
determined as at the date of grant and the amounts recognised in
the statement of profit or loss for the years ended 31 March 2015
and 2014 were included in the above directors’ remuneration
disclosures.

Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the

year were as follows:

8.

(a)

Notes to Financial Statements
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EEME (&)

BE-_Z—HEK-ZE-—HWNF=A=+—HIHF
B - REARRBEESS  STESRESHA
5 B O AR 75 T 26 X B SR - ELRH B U B 7% SR Y
33 REBBREREBERARBERER  EQ
FEDNREOBEHEEE  MRABEE-_T—12FK
“E-ME=ZA=t-RALFERRRARBZH
HEFALXZESHEREEHA -

BAFHTES

NEAXNTELIFATEZT 2RSS ¢

2015 —F—HF 2014 —Z—M%F
HK$'000 F& 7T HK$'000 F/&7T
Mr. Li Chi Ming e 150 150
Mr. Wan Ngar Yin, David RIS STk
(resigned on 10 January 2014) (R=—Z—mE—A+HET) 43 150
Mr. Tung Tat Chiu, Michael BIESI S
(resigned on 5 November 2014) (R=—ZF—UE+— B RHBHIE) 166 150
Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong EHEE
(appointed on 10 January 2014) (R=—Z—m&E— A+ REZRT) 107 -
Mr. Chen Youchun BRRESTE
(appointed on 21 October 2014) (R=ZE—NF+A=-1+—BEZE) 107 -
Mr. Frank H. Miu BHRIE
(appointed on 30 October 2014) (R=ZZT—NFE+A=1THBEZF) 101 -
Mr. Tsang Wing Ki SO LA
(appointed on 5 November 2014) (RZZE—mE+—AAHEEE) 98 -
772 450

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent
non-executive directors during the year (2014: Nil).

RNERNBEEMBENBIFATERZHE (ZF
—POEE ) -

ANNUAL REPORT 2014-2015 3§

109



Notes to Financial Statements

B RR MR

31 March 2015 =Z—HF=A=+—H

8. Directors’ remuneration (continued) 8. EEM< (&)
(b)  Executive directors (b) HITESE
Salaries, Equity-
allowances settled share Pension
and benefits option scheme Total
Fees in kind expense contributions remuneration
e 2B REGEZ BIK
e REYEFN BRERX FHEMHER ez
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT FHET FHET TR FHIT
2015 —E-hF
Mr. Wong Howard E=E A - 1,950 568 98 2,616
Mr. Wong Yat Fai FimrEs - 1,560 261 78 1,899
Ms. Davis Angela Davis Angela
Hendricks (appointed HendricksZ 4=
on 1 September 2014) (R=—=—m4
NA—BEZE) - 360 - 18 378
Dr. Kwong Kai Sing, BPERAKIE £
Benny (appointed (R=Z—m&F
on 1 September 2014) NWAE—BEZRE) - 1,100 - 55 1,155
Ms. Chen Wei PR 4
(appointed on 8 (R=Z—mF
December 2014) TZANBEEE) - 272 - 10 282
Mr. Zhan Jianzhou EREELE
(appointed on 17 (R=Z—mF
December 2014) TR+ HEEE) - 174 - - 174
- 5,416 829 259 6,504
2014 —T—OF
Mr. Wong Howard =mHESE - 1,950 555 98 2,603
Mr. Wong Yat Fai By atast - 1,560 235 78 1,873
- 3,510 790 176 4,476
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or REAMEEEZRNEXRBENETMM S 2 28
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2014: Nil). (ZZE—UF : 8],) -

China Jinhai International Group Limited FEI &SRB EEERA A



Five highest paid employees

The five highest paid employees during the year included one
(2014: two) director, details of whose remuneration are set out
in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the
remaining four (2014: three) highest paid employees who are not
a director of the Company are as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements

B H%5 R B ot

31 March 2015 =Z—H&=A=+—H

AVGRSHHMES

FAEUGESFTHEREE -2 (ZF—HF : &
z)E= 1&%2%\5&%1@%@%@LXWES ° £
BTOE (CE—MNF: =8) FRARAEEFZR
SEMES ZMEFBWT

Group &M
2015 =Z—HF 2014 —Z—pu4F
HK$'000 F&T HK$'000 77T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind %% - EBL R EWEA 1,130 3,454
Equity-settled share option expense, net H&ﬁg,ﬁéﬁzﬁﬁﬂﬂiéﬁﬁi 8,464 551
Pension scheme contributions RIREHEIE R 57 117
9,651 4,122

During the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014, share options
were granted to four (2014: three) non-director highest paid
employees in respect of their services to the Group under the
share option schemes of the Company, further details of which
are set out in note 33 to the financial statements. The fair value
of such options, which has been recognised in the statement of
profit or loss over the vesting period, was determined at the date
of grant and the amounts recognised in the statement of profit or
loss for the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014 were included
in the above non-director highest paid employees’ remuneration
disclosures.

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

BE_T-HAFRER_T— E¢2ﬂ3+—aﬁ:¢
B REARBBERESS O (ZF—0HF
=#) #%%Zﬁm%ﬂ@%%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁ@E’\JHEF‘
MERERE  EFBHRPBRERNMEIS - &
EBERENEBEHAANBERER - EATFTEIR
REBHREE  MRABEE-_ZT-—AFE TN
FZA=+-RLFEBRRERABRZBBEFA
ExXzHEEZ RN GRSFHEES 2HM 2 REER
A o

MEN T TIHE 2 FEE 2 RS FHBES AZM
™

Number of employees /EE A

2015 —E—F & 2014 —ZE—JU4F

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001;8 7T % 1,500,000/ 7T - 3
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 T 22,500,000/ 7T 3 =
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,0017 7 23,000,000/ 7T 1 =
4 3
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10. Income tax expense

10. FTSHBEX

Group "&EME
2015 =Z—HF 2014 —Z—M%F
HK$'000 F&T HK$'000 T/ 7T
Current — Hong Kong BN — B 166 -
Current — elsewhere BHR — Hofh3h[s= = -
Total tax charge for the year AEEHIEERER 166 -

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2014: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable in Mainland
China in the prior year had been calculated at the rates of tax
prevailing in Mainland China in which the Group operated, based
on existing legislation, interpretations and practices in respect
thereof.

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit/(loss) before
tax using the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the
Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax position at
the effective tax rates is as follows:

BBNSBIAFAELE Z M ERBENIE16.5%
(ZE—HF :16.5%) < EFE - FERME
RPN ZHREBRBRAEN  HABZRF

B - IRANEE 2 BN B A2 RITH G

st
= o
ZAF

EAARRE R ENE R R AERNRDEER ZEEHR
KA EZBRERER(F18) BA 2 BEms - &
REBRERFEZRRER 2GR

Group - 2015 AEE-—ZT-HF
Mainland China

Hong Kong & & HhE Rt Total # 5t

HK$'000 T/t HK$'000 F/&T HK$'000 Fi&T

Loss before tax B R R EE (1,258,890) (16,083) (1,274,973)
Tax at the applicable tax rates RERHEFTE 258 (207,717) (4,021) (211,738)
Income not subject to tax S AU A (2,721) - (2,721)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR 206,168 - 206,168
Tax losses utilised from previous periods &8 @1 HARS g0 A 18 &5 18 (10) - (10)
Tax losses not recognised KRIER T IAEIE 4,446 4,021 8,467
Tax I8 166 - 166

China Jinhai International Group Limited FEI &SRB EEERA A
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11.

Notes to Financial Statements
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31 March 2015 =Z—H&=A=+—H

Income tax expense (continued) 10. PP X (&)
Group - 2014 AEH - —E—NF
Mainland China
Hong Kong &% AR A Total 485t
HK$'000 F/&7c HK$'000 7L  HK$'000 FiIT
Profit/(loss) before tax BBIATEF (E518) 6,000 (13,906) (7,906)
Tax at the applicable tax rates REBHETE 2 IE 990 (3,477) (2,487)
Income not subject to tax FARTUA (1,813) = (1,813)
Expenses not deductible for tax AT HIR R 2 6,427 = 6,427
Tax losses utilised from previous periods )8 &7+ B &9 F 18 & 18 (7,687) - (7,687)
Tax losses not recognised REERTIEEE 2,083 3,477 5,560
Tax T I8 - - _

Loss for the year attributable to owners of 11.

the parent

The consolidated loss attributable to owners of the parent for the
year ended 31 March 2015 includes HK$1,258,635,000 (2014:
HK$16,578,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company (note 30(b)).

BRARAERABERFESR

BARBAEARBERHE_T—AF=A=+—8
LEEREERBEEEARRMBEHRERAEIEN
1,258,635,000/% 7t (= & — [ 4 : 16,578,000/8
7o) (Fi¥EE30(b))

ANNUAL REPORT 2014-2015 3§

113



114

Notes to Financial Statements

B RR MR

31 March 2015 =Z—HF=A=+—H

12.

Earnings/(loss) per share attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the parent

The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per share amount is
based on the loss for the year attributable to owners of the parent
of HK$1,266,154,000 (2014: profit of HK$5,404,000), and the
weighted average number of 1,152,391,934 (2014: 421,142,215
(restated)). The weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue used in the basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share
calculation for the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014 have
been adjusted for the rights issue and share consolidation in
the current year and the rights issue in the prior year (note 29),
respectively.

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share amount
presented for the year ended 31 March 2015 as no dilutive events
existed because the exercise of share options and warrants during
that year had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per share
amount presented.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amount for the
year ended 31 March 2014 was based on the profit for the year
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent, adjusted
to reflect the interest and the fair value gains of derivative
components on the Issued Convertible Bonds. The weighted
average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation was the
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year, as used in the
basic earnings per share calculation, and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at no
consideration on the deemed conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

China Jinhai International Group Limited FEI &SRB EEERA A

12.

BRAAEEESREARLEREA
M, (&8)

FREARF (FBE) SEDHBESARES AR
IEARNFEE5I81,266,154,0008 78 (=T —H4F : 4%
F5,404,000/87T) RAFEE BITRG 2 0T
£01,152,391,934/% (ZF — M4 : 421,142,2150%
(B7)) ;T8 - BRI EBE=_S—hFR=-Z—
ME=A=+—BIEEFENGREARESRF
(BR) NERTEBRMETLHEESRIARAR
REFHHBR KRG E 0 R EEFEOHKR (HE
29) °

AREBE—Z-—RF=A=+—HBIIFELERT
EREREMFEESEN  RAUBNFAMZIZ
BREAEESBIEL AR  MRBEEHME7)
ZEREAERERARBIVE -

BE_ZT-NWE=A=+—HLFESREZTZR
ZERDBRBEAFEFAR L BEERE ARGS
METE - WEHABRURRE BT RRES 207
ETAFHZAERAFEKRES - FEPAERE
BENEFESBTTFRACRTEBRZHE (WE
HEREARBMTR) R ME #EEE T B
BANERELAKEBRRBREEETZEEK
Pl B ok e



12.

(continued)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share for the

year ended 31 March 2014 were based on:

Earnings/(loss) per share attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the parent

Notes to Financial Statements

B H%5 R B ot

31 March 2015 =Z—H&=A=+—H

BRAAEREaBRAARLEREA
M, (BR) (&)

12.

HEHE—E-NE=A=+—HIEFENTRE
AREERTTIRE :

2014 —Z—U4F
HK$'000 F767T

Earnings
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent, used in the basic earnings per

ekl
SRR EBESRAARERRN
AR ESRERRF

share calculation 5,404
Add: Interest on Issued Convertible Bonds N AR ES 2 FE 8,007
Less: Fair value gains on the derivative R AR E A 2 T4 T B S 2 A EWES

component of Issued Convertible Bonds (10,271)
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders RARTEERESERF 2 AR T @R
of the parent used in diluted earnings BHA AEER
3,140

per share calculation

Number of shares

&R
2014 —Z—PO4F
(restated) (E71))

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in

AR EESRERRN 2 FRBET

issue during the year used in the basic earnings T3 PR HNRE S £k

per share calculation 421,142,215
Effect of dilution — weighted average number of BB/ 2 — E@ARINEFHE : *

ordinary shares:*

Issued Convertible Bonds BEITRAR R ES 99,361,018
Weighted average number of ordinary shares  FARGIE &I E R F) 2 B INEFHE

used in the diluted earnings per share

calculation 520,503,233

o Share options were not considered in the effect of dilution as no * HREE_T—NF=A=+—HILFEIEH

diluting events existed during the year ended 31 March 2014.

SBEMS  BRETERSEETE -
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13. Property, plant an

Notes to Financial Statements

B RR MR

31 March 2015 =Z—HF=A=+—H

d equipment

13. Y% BERRE

Group REE
Motor
vehicles,
furniture,
Leasehold Plant and fixtures and
Buildings improvements machinery equipment Total
HEWHE RE &
BF #18 BN RERFE st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THET THET T TR
31 March 2015 —BE-RF=ZA=1+—H
At 31 March 2014: RZT—ME=H
=118 ¢
Cost AR 13,238 1,018 14,161 8,808 37,225
Accumulated depreciation ~ ZEITE (13,238) (892) (14,114) (7,259) (35,503)
Net carrying amount BREFE - 126 47 1,549 1,722
At 1 April 2014, net of RZZ—MEMA—B
accumulated depreciation Bk 2HHTE R - 126 47 1,549 1,722
Additions NE - - - 1,207 1,207
Write-off HisH - - (32) (27) (59)
Exchange realignment P AR - = = (1 (1
Depreciation provided FATERE
during the year - (126) (15) (593) (734)
At 31 March 2015, net of RZZ—FRF=F=1+—
accumulated depreciation B - IR E5HTER - - - 2,135 2,135
At 31 March 2015: R_E—HF=H
=f+—R:
Cost BXAR 13,238 1,018 - 5,624 19,880
Accumulated depreciation  ZEHiTE (13,238) (1,018) - (3,489) (17,745)
Net carrying amount IRESHE - - - 2,135 2,135

China Jinhai International Group Limited FEI &SRB EEERA A



13. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Group (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements

B H%5 R B ot

31 March 2015 =Z—H&=A=+—H

13. V% BERRE (&)

eE (&)

Motor
vehicles,
furniture,
Leasehold Plant and fixtures and
Buildings  improvements machinery equipment Total
-t AE R
B £  BEk#s - RERRE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TR THET TET
31 March 2014 —Z-MNF=R=1+—H
At 1 April 2013: RZZE—=FWA—A8:
Cost BXAR 13,238 1,018 14,132 8,034 36,422
Accumulated depreciation  ZEHiTE (13,238) (766) (14,080) (6,734) (34,818)
Net carrying amount BRmESE - 252 52 1,300 1,604
At 1 April 2013, net of R=—Z—=FmA—A
accumulated depreciation 1Bk 2HITE R - 252 52 1,300 1,604
Additions NE = = 10 772 782
Exchange realignment RIS - - - 1 1
Depreciation provided FRITERE
during the year - (126) (15) (524) (665)
At 31 March 2014, netof RZT—HF=A=+—
accumulated depreciation B 1% 2T ER = 126 47 1,549 1,722
At 31 March 2014: RZT—ME=H
=118 ¢
Cost AR 13,238 1,018 14,161 8,808 37,225
Accumulated depreciation ~ ZEITE (13,238) (892) (14,114) (7,259) (35,503)
Net carrying amount BREFE - 126 47 1,549 1,722

All the Group’s buildings included above are stated at cost and are
held under medium term leases outside Hong Kong.

The net carrying amount of the Group’s plant and equipment
held under a finance lease included in the total amounts of motor
vehicles, furniture, fixtures and equipment at 31 March 2015 was
HK$553,000 (2014: HK$854,000).

SRR AR DI B B AT BAIR 4035 B 2 AN B A
BRFHUREENIMNEE -

REEZMEBLAMFRE REEZREFE (G
ARE - BKRh - RERFEZEE) RZZ—1
#=H=+—HA553,0008 L (=T — M F:
854,00077T) ©
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13.

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Company

13. V% BERRKE (&)

ARFE]
Motor
vehicles,
furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and
improvements equipment

HEMREE GR - KERZRE
HK$'000 F/&7T HKS$'000 &

Total
st
HK$’000 F3& T

31 March 2015

At 1 April 2014:

—E-AF=HA=+—H

RZZE—UFEMEA—H :

T AR 299 415 714

Accumulated depreciation 2T E (299) (415) (714)

Net carrying amount BREDFE - - -
At 1 April 2014, net of RZZ—MHFMA—A -

accumulated depreciation MR 2T ER
Additions NE - 30 30
Depreciation provided during the year 4 R#7& B = (3) (3)
At 31 March 2015, net of RZE—RF=R=+—

accumulated depreciation A - R RFITER = 27 27
At 31 March 2015: RZE—RF=H

=4—F8 ¢

Cost DN 299 445 744

Accumulated depreciation ZEITE (299) (418) (717)

Net carrying amount REHE = 27 27

China Jinhai International Group Limited FEI &SRB EEERA A



13. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements

B H%5 R B ot

—T—AfF=A=+—H

31 March 2015

13. Y% - BEKZE (H)

Company (continued) AnE (&)
Motor
vehicles,
furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and
improvements equipment Total
HEWMERE G KERSZE “eEt
HK$'000 F/&7c  HK$'000 F/&7C  HK$'000 FA47T
31 March 2014 —T-mFE=A=+—H
At 1 April 2013: R-E—=#mA—R1:
Cost SN 299 415 714
Accumulated depreciation ZETIE (299) (415) (714)
Net carrying amount BREDFE - - -
At 1 April 2013, net of RZZE—=FMA—A -
accumulated depreciation MR R ER = = -
Depreciation provided during the year — F R E B & = = =
At 31 March 2014, net of RIE—WEFE=H=+—
accumulated depreciation B - MR R ITER = = -
At 31 March 2014: RZE—UFE=H
=t—8:
Cost BN 299 415 714
Accumulated depreciation 2T E (299) (415) (714)
Net carrying amount AR HE - - -
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14.

Investment property

14. REWZE

2014 —Z—J4F
HK$'000 T787T

2015 —E—HF
HK$’'000 Fi& 7T

Carrying amount at 1 April RO A—HZREE

Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 31) WE—REHE AR (FE31) 89,917 -
Net gain from a fair value adjustment ~ AF(EFHEF1SUEEE 2,083 -
Carrying amount at 31 March R=A=+—HZEAE 92,000 -

The Group’s investment property of HK$92,000,000 (2014: Nil) is
held under a long term lease in Hong Kong.

The Group's investment property is a commercial property in Hong
Kong. The directors of the Company have determined that the
investment property is a commercial property based on the nature,
characteristics and risk of the property. The Group's investment
property was revalued on 31 March 2015 based on valuations
performed by Asset Appraisal Limited, independent professionally
qualified valuers, at HK$92,000,000. The Group’s management
decides, after approval from the audit committee, to appoint
which external valuer to be responsible for the external valuations
of the Group’s property. Selection criteria includes market
knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional
standards are maintained. The Group’s financial controller has
discussions with the valuer on the valuation assumptions and
valuation results when the valuation is performed for annual
financial reporting.

Further details of the Group’s investment property are included on
page 176.

China Jinhai International Group Limited FEI &SRB EEERA A

NEE 7 &Y E92,000,0005 ¢ (—ZF — PO 4F -
) BIREBE—HBEERHHERS -

REBZREMER—EABTBEEYE - A2RE
ZERBZVEZLE  BELREAREEREME
AEEDE - RZT—AF=-A=1+—8 x&£E
ZREMERBIZESERGER - PHELE
=T EEER A R A Al # 17 2 & il {4 {8 /92,000,000
BT AREERERE RRBEZZESEE
iR - REINSEER B E AN KB Y% 2 ISR
B -BETERAEMSNG B2 BUMELES
HIFEHEKE - REENBLERGEMEREE
BTSSR E R EIT 2 A ERTRA 2 ERZREES
RETI

BRARKEREME 2 E— T FBHANE1767 -



14.

Investment Property (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements
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14. REWE (&)

Fair value hierarchy N ERBR
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy TREMMEER_Z—RAF=A=1T—HEKEY
of the Group’s investment property as at 31 March 2015: X2 RFEFEERERE

Fair value measurement as
at 31 March 2015 using
R-ZB—FEF=HA=+—H
FERZAFEFE

Quoted
prices  Significant  Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
WER EXTEE EXTAHBE

TiEHRE WA SR B A B Total
(F—EH) (F=EHR) (B=ER) #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FTHET FHET
Recurring fair value LEENFEFE
measurement for:

Commercial property PEEYE - - 92,000 92,000
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurement RAFE TEE-EREE_EREHATEST
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3. SEE  TEBAZSIELEE=ER -
Reconcdiliation of fair value measurement categorised within Level 3 of BEREAATEERAEREEF=-"ERNATEFEY
the fair value hierarchy: iR :

Commercial
property
BEE

HK$'000 /47T

Carrying amount at 1 April 2014 RZZE—NFOA—HZEHEE =

Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 31) Wi —mEKT B AR (FisE31) 89,917

Net gain from a fair value adjustment AN EREM SR T8 2,083

Carrying amount at 31 March 2015 RZE—RAF=A=+—HZFEHEE 92,000
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14.

15.

Investment property (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Below is a summary of the valuation technique used and the key

input to the valuation of the investment property:

Valuation technique

flfEH T

14. REWE (&)

NFHEEBR (&)

AT R EWEGEMBEERN L E R AR

ZHEE

Significant
unobservable input

EXTABERARE

Range

gE

Commercial property
located in Hong Kong:
Office

Market approach

DIECYS

The market approach

Under the market approach, fair value is estimated with the
benefit of vacant possession and by marking reference to
comparable sale transactions as available in the market. The key
input was the market price per square foot, with a significant
increase/decrease in the market price would result in a significant
increase/decrease in the fair value of the investment property.

Prepaid land lease payment

Price per square foot

FFTRZER

mi5A

HK$8,315 to HK$8,619

8,315 L E8,619/%8 7T

REMZE  AFEREEZEVENNGERS2E
M5 LA LRI E R ST - T2RARER
FFRFTR2ZHE - MEAEEN, B A EEHIER
EYENTERNBEMN, R

15. AL HAER

Group "&E
HK$'000 T4t
Cost: B
At 1 April 2013, 31 March 2014, RZE—=FMWA—H ZF—MmF=A=+—H
1 April 2014 and 31 March 2015 —E-NFENMA-—HE=_ZF—RAF=A=1+—H 821
Accumulated amortisation: ZETHEES ¢
At 1 April 2013, 31 March 2014, RZZE—=FMA—H —T—WF=A=+—H "
1 April 2014 and 31 March 2015 —E-MEMA-BR-_E-—RHF=A=1+—H 821

Net carrying amount:
At 31 March 2015

AREDHE

RZZE—RF=A=+—8H

At 31 March 2014

RZZE—WF=A=+—H

With respect to the use of certain land in Mainland China by
the Group for its electronic and accessory products business, the
Group paid an annual fee of HK$38,000 (2014: HK$49,000) for
the year which has been charged to the statement of profit or
loss.

China Jinhai International Group Limited FEI &SRB EEERA A
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Investments in subsidiaries

Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2015

16. RMIBARZKRE

B H%5 R B ot

—T—H¥=A=+—8H

Company A2 7]

2015 —Z—HF 2014 —F—JU4

HK$'000 T3 7T HK$'000 F&7T

Unlisted shares, at cost JEETRRD ¢ RAKANE 1 1

Capital contribution in respect of RSz BEME TS R 2 HE

employee share-based compensation 23,291 22,717
Less: Impairment * o OmE! (23,292) (22,718)
Due from subsidiaries FEU M B A R R IE 1,813,195 1,222,873
Less: Impairment* o mE* (1,171,505) (1,071,647)
641,690 151,226

Due to subsidiaries FERTHT R A R 2 70E 7,546 7,498

Balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and have no

fixed terms of repayment. The carrying amounts of the balances

with subsidiaries approximate their fair values.

# As at 31 March 2015, an aggregate impairment of HK$23,292,000
(2014: HK$22,718,000) was recognised for investments in subsidiaries

because the relevant subsidiaries have suffered losses for years.

© As at 31 March 2015, impairment losses of HK$1,171,505,000 (2014:
HK$1,071,647,000) were recognised for amounts due from subsidiaries

with an aggregate carrying amounts of HK$1,813,195,000 (2014:
HK$1,222,873,000) due to the persistent losses of these subsidiaries.

Movements in the impairment allowance of investment costs and

amounts due from subsidiaries are as follows:

R E A B2 MR A RN - 2 8 R B E &K

H - RIB A

AlziESz REEEENFERS

# R-ZE—AF=A=+—0 ' BERKBQA
HE 7R 5 B 42 $823,292,000/8 T (=& — 4 & :
22,718,000 7T) * TR IEMEMBARIBEIES

F o

* BRZEN R
AE=A=+

RAIENFBEBRAR - R=F—
—HERIRA451,813,195,000/%8

7T (ZZF — U4 : 1,222,873,000% 7T) 2 & Y Bt
B AR BRI ER1,171,505,000/8 7T (=
T P4 : 1,071,647,000i87T) °

REERAREWHERRFRIBZRERE 2 ZEM

™

Company A2 H
2015 = —HF 2014 —Z—PU4F
HK$'000 Tt HK$'000 T4 7T
At 1 April RImA—A 1,094,365 1,056,106
Impairment loss recognised B R RERE 100,432 38,259
At 31 March R=A=+—H 1,194,797 1,094,365
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16. RMBARZ2KRE (&)

16. Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: FEMBARZFRBAET :

124

Percentage of

equity attributable
Place of Issued ordinary/ to the Company
incorporation registered share  AQFELREZE AL
Name and business capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
AL BROEER
DR FRRE B R RA B B TEXRED
Hoshing Limited* British Virgin Islands Us$1 100 - Investment holding
EBERRHE 17T REER
Sino Electronics Limited* British Virgin Islands/ Uss$2 = 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong VE v RAER
SEREBRES/
EE
Chongging Electronics Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100  Trading of electronic and
FRAEFERATA BB 28T accessory products
BEEETREEER
139 Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Uss$2 - 100  Provision of administrative
139 XARAT B 2XTT services
FREITHRS
Chaifa Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100  Provision of finance services
HEMBERAR EB 28T RALEB RS
Main Purpose Investments Limited British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 = 100 Investment in and trading of
Hong Kong (v securities
RBRERES/ REREEES
BE
ICube Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 60  Research and development of
RS TR AR AR e 100/7T integrated circuit technology
SR ERRITE
FIFHERRER AR PRC/Mainland RMB40,000,000 - 51  Research and development of
(DRIRBEE] )= China  AK#40,000,0007 integrated circuit technology
hE /hE, SR BRI AiTE

China Jinhai International Group Limited FEI &SRB EEERA A



16.

Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

16.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

31 March 2015

Notes to Financial Statements

B H%5 R B ot

—T—H¥=A=+—8H

RBAR Z2RE (&)

TEMBRRZFBNOT

Percentage of

(&)

equity attributable
Place of Issued ordinary/ to the Company
incorporation registered share  AQFELREZE AL
Name and business capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
LR RTLER
ARERE ERREhY AR A B BE TEERIH
Dongguan Chongging Electrical Limited PRC/Mainland US$4,710,000 - 100  Manufacture of electronic
("Dongguan Chongging”)*® China 4,710,000% T and accessory products
REPAETERAR ([REml) @ FE/RERM SEEFREEER
Alpha Ease International Limited British Virgin Islands uss4 - 100 Investment in convertible bonds
("Alpha Ease”)*@ EBEAREE 4ETT RREFRE
King Place Investment Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 - 100  Property investment
("King Place”)*® REEARHS (v MERE
REREERAA ([REF]) @
Notes: B 5
(1) During the year ended 31 March 2015, the paid-up capital of (1) BE_Z—AF=A=T—HILFE  FJIHK
FYIIF#E was increased by RMB10,000,000. The Group contributed B R AR AR 18 hn A R %5 10,000,0007T ° A& E A
RMB8,500,000 to &I 5% as paid-up capital, which is in proportion FEIN PR EEEARKS,500,0007T EHUERA -
to the Group’s equity sharing ratio. SRR S B KBRS AR LB ©
) During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group acquired Alpha Ease ) BE-_ZT—HF=A=T—HILFE  x5£EK
and King Place. Further details of the acquisitions were included in note E%Alpha Ease & m&f - ARAUIER#E — PRFIF#
31 to the financial statements. R IRERMFEST ©
3 During the year ended 31 March 2015, pursuant to a resolution passed (3) BE-ZT—HAF=A=T—HILFE  BER=

by the board of directors of Dongguan Chongging, the company

commenced the process of dissolution, which was ongoing as at
31 March 2015. The directors of the Company consider that the

liquidation will not have material financial impact to the Group.

* Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of

the Ernst & Young global network.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year
or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

HHEFERBNH—ERER -
B REEFR T —
BT - ARTEER

%A 7] B 46 R AL
hAE=A=+—8MN%&

BB TEHAE

BIEREAN B E

o= ©

R
5 4=

FZ

SEBLKGET AN BI5FT ek ook 2 ERAME K fth
AT

ERINHETREHAFEARBXREE IR

%Eﬂﬁﬁkzﬁﬁlééﬁrﬁl MO 2 ARRKHER
A BEERRABEMMBARZENIHESRRE

BRI ©
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16. Investments in subsidiaries (continued) 16. RMIBARIZRE (&)
Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material non- HAEEANFIEREROAEENE AR 2 F 157
controlling interests are set out below: NN
ICube Corporation Limited and its subsidiary, /&YIIFR{#E (collectively, RIEFRHRBR A B R ENE A DRI P M ER
the “ICube Corporation Group”) BRERAR (A [HMEFREREER]D
2015 =2—HF 2014 ZZT 9%
Percentage of equity interest held by IEIER RS P A E B o b,
non-controlling interests: 40% 40%
2015 =2 —HF 2014 —Z—Mm%F
HK$'000 Fi57T HK$'000 &7
Loss for the year allocated to DER T IEIEARAE RS 2 AN FEE1E ¢
non-controlling interests: (8,985) (13,310)
Accumulated balances of non-controlling FA%R4 B HAZEIE Rkt #s 25T 4564 ¢
interests at the reporting dates: (46,228) (39,107)
The following tables illustrate the summarised financial information TRIFROMEFREEB MRS E o Frig
of the ICube Corporation Group. The amounts disclosed are EHcSEATAATIRS NS E
before any inter-company eliminations:
2015 —Z—HF 2014 ZZT—N4F
HK$'000 T HK$'000 F#7T
Other income Hulg A 2,413 4,456
Total expenses > 4258 (22,145) (35,177)
Loss for the year RNEERE (19,732) (30,721)
Total comprehensive loss for the year REE 2 HEBARE (19,739) (30,825)
Current assets MENEE 8,016 4,725
Non-current assets EREEE 683 627
Current liabilities nEBE (103,997) (83,382)
Net cash flows used in operating KEEB ARG REFE
activities (868) (3,364)
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing #&&EEIFRS (FTA) L mE %58
activities (437) 8
Net cash flows from financing activities EE & /EZENFTER &M= /558 1,868 1,005
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash ¥4 RIREZEER M, Cld)
equivalents FEE 563 (2,351)

China Jinhai International Group Limited FEI&5HBREBEER A A
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17. Available-for-sale equity investments 17. IHEERERE
Group &M
2015 —F—HF 2014 —Z—pu4F
HK$'000 F&T +m$mo¥%m
Listed equity investments, at fair value: FHREAEE B ATE
Hong Kong &5 - 650
Elsewhere Hth &b - 13,811
- 14,461
Unlisted equity investments, at cost FEETRAIRE + A 153,000 -
153,000 14,461

The above investments consist of investments in equity securities
which were designated as available-for-sale financial assets and
have no fixed maturity date or coupon rate.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the gross gain in respect
of the Group’s available-for-sale investments recognised in other
comprehensive income amounted to HK$2,304,000 (2014:
HK$1,862,000). A gain of HK$7,696,000 was reclassified from
other comprehensive income to the statement of profit or loss for
the year upon disposal of the listed equity investments.

As at 31 March 2015, the unlisted equity investments with an
aggregate carrying amount of HK$153,000,000 (2014: Nil) were
stated at cost less impairment because the range of reasonable fair
value estimates is so significant that the directors of the Company
are of the opinion that their fair values cannot be measured
reliably.

At 31 March 2015 and 2014, the Group did not hold any
available-for-sale equity investments with carrying amounts
exceeding 10% in value of the Group’s total assets.

PR EREEERIHLECHEE LY ERFE
BB RREE AT HREBK -

HE_T—HAF=A=1+—BILFE  AEEHA#H#
=18 & /Y U 25 48 58 52,304,000%8 8 (= — Y
4 : 1,862,000/ 7T) ° W 57,696,000/ T A HH &
FRAREFHEMEARGEETSBEAFE
EOEEEE

—E-RF=A=+—H8  FLTRARENE
48 {H /153,000,000 0 (ZZ—WF : ) ' A
AEATFEGHBEARAKN  UBARREERE
N

i
T £
i
HATFESEASEAE - BURKARRURES B -

R-E-—AFR—T-NF=A=1+—08 ~5EH
W B A EAEEEREAANEEEERE10%ZA
HHERAKRE -
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18. Acquired convertible bonds 18. BWIBAIRRES
2015 —B—H&E 2014 —F—PU4F
HK$'000 T8t HK$'000 F77T
Debt component aEHn 15,529 =
Derivative component PTHET AE5 4,034 =

The Group’'s convertible bonds (“Acquired Convertible Bonds”)
were acquired through acquisition of a subsidiary during the
year. The Acquired Convertible Bonds with a face value of
HK$15,000,000 were issued by Great Desire International Limited
("Great Desire”), an independent third party incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands. The Acquired Convertible Bonds were
unsecured, bore interest at 5% per annum, payable half yearly,
and were due on 6 August 2016. The Group shall have the
right exercisable to convert the whole or part of the outstanding
principal amount of the Acquired Convertible Bonds into such
number of shares of Great Desire as will be determined by dividing
the principal amount of the Acquired Convertible Bonds to be
converted by the conversion price in effect on the maturity date.
The conversion price of the Acquired Convertible Bonds should be
determined with reference to the net profit of Great Desire in the
year 2015 at a price earnings ratio of 5.5.

The Acquired Convertible Bonds contain a debt component
which was designated as an available-for-sale financial asset by
management, and a derivative component. Upon acquisition
of the Acquired Convertible Bonds, the fair values of the debt
component and the derivative component were HK$12,953,000
and HK$1,922,000, respectively.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the fair value gains
on the debt component and derivative component of the
Acquired Convertible Bonds of approximately HK$2,577,000 and
HK$2,112,000 were recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income and statement of profit or loss, respectively.

China Jinhai International Group Limited FEI &SRB EEERA A

AN 6 B R AN 4F 55 3 MK — B BB 2 ) LA RT 4R AR
EF ((BEWBEABRRES] - EWBAIRRKRES
Z EE 515,000,0008 7T HEEBHERRES
FEMf A 2 2 %2 5% = 5 Great Desire International
Limited ([ Great Desirel) 217 - B EE AT RARES
RERR - RERERSEFE (ABFEXIMN—R)
ERZZ—R"FNASBEH - NEBAITTEREF
HEREAIRRES 2 REERNSBE 2L HBMH R
% Great Desire 2 &7 » RIDBERE T RILZE
Wi AT R (F 5 2 A 2 FERR AR B B B A B 2 2 AR
BiMEE - BB AIRRES 2 RIREELE Great
Desire® —E —RF 2 AFIETEFKS SMEE °

BERBETRREFEE—AEEERERAAHEE
EMEEZBERO K —EITET AR - NI
BWBERBREESR  AEHROLITETASHZ
NFEHHIA12,953,0007 7T K% 1,922,000 7T °

BE_Z-—HAF=A=+—HILFE  ERETH
BfEFz BEMRDEOTET AR 2 A FERES
RI#92,577,0007% 7T % 2,112,000 7T © 9 5IR 2 HE
Wk M m R AER -
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20.

Notes to Financial Statements
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Equity investments at fair value through 19. EBREZZEAFEIEREZRAKRE
profit or loss
Group "&EME
2015 =Z—HF 2014 —Z M4
HK$'000 & T HK$'000 F/&7T
Listed equity investments in Hong Kong, &H&E_EHARAEE @ AT E
at fair value 338,722 176,617
The above equity investments at 31 March 2015 and 2014 were LR ARER T —AFR-_ZT—NF=A=+
classified as held for trading. The fair values of listed equity BoBEAZEEESRE LR AREZ ATHE
investments are based on quoted market prices. THIRBETI5MERFE -
The market value of the Group’s equity investments at fair FBRBRIEATEYE 2 NS BRI E R EZ
value through profit or loss at the date of approval of these ERikERsk v A2 T{EZA735,622,0008 7T (=F
financial statements was approximately HK$735,622,000 (2014: —PU4E : 180,925,000 7)) c RZE—RER-F
HK$180,925,000). At 31 March 2015 and 2014, the Group did —MFE=A=+—H AfERERBFTWEER
not hold any single equity investment at fair value through profit BAEEEEREI0%HEBRRIZATFEIIKZ
or loss with carrying amounts exceeding 10% in value of the total BRAEE -
assets of the Group.
Loan receivables 20. BEWEN
Group "&EE
2015 —E—EF 2014 ZZT—N%F
HK$'000 T3 7T HK$'000 F/#&7T
Loan receivables R E K 165,000 -

Loan receivables represented loans of HK$165,000,000 granted by
the Group to the independent third parties. The loans bore interest
at rates ranging from 6% to 8% per annum and were repayable
within one year. The grants of these loans were approved and
monitored by the Group’s management. The loan balances were
neither past due nor impaired for which there was no recent
history of default.

The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancement over its loan receivable balances. The carrying
amount of the loan receivables approximates their fair value.

FREXREASESERETFTBILIE=ZFAER
165,000,000/8 7T » B KL F F E6% E8%:T B &

AR —FAMERE - Fﬂjéiﬁﬁﬁkﬁﬂﬁ‘i@%i@ﬁt
EREEE - BRI Ba MR E @ T R
#IRCER -

AEEYEAREREETR SR ERNERSE
EERITERE - BRERZREEREL X TEN

o+

Eo
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21.

Trade receivables 21. ERE SFRIE
Group "&EME
2015 —Z—HF 2014 —F—JU5
HK$'000 T3t HK$'000 F7&7T
Trade receivables FEWE 5 I8 1,596 1,108
Impairment VERIE] (154) -
1,442 1,108

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit,
except for new customers, where payment in advance is normally
required. The credit period is generally one to two months.
Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue
balances are regularly reviewed by senior management. There is
a significant concentration of credit risk as 90% (2014: 100%) of
the balances represented receivables from one (2014: two) major
customer within the electronic and accessory products segment.
Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancement over its trade
receivable balances. The carrying amounts of trade receivables
approximate their fair values.

An aged analysis of the Group’s trade receivables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

AEBBEEERPRIV 2 XS IEREBARK T VE
7 BEMEPIAN BEFTEHENFE - FEH—
RE—EZMEH BREFHARSEERE - A
SEHREBEERKREIESHREZEEES - ma
HESRHSREEAS DR - BRE0% (=
T—UE : 100%) BHRREFREEERD R
—HREREP (ZE—OF: mA) ZBEKRE -
BUGFEEREREERR - BIRE SRR RIEET
B o ANEE L HE R WE B RS A R
mEHEMEENREEE - BKE SRR ZKE
BEREEQFEES -

RB|ER  ARERKEZEFRRERBHZIR
AT

Group &M
2015 —E—HF 2014 —Z—JU4F
HK$'000 T8 7T HK$'000 87T
Within 1 month —EARN - 1,108
1 to 2 months —Z=W{E A 1,442 =
1,442 1,108

China Jinhai International Group Limited FEI &SRB EEERA A



21. Trade receivables (continued)

The movement in provision for impairment of trade receivables is

Notes to Financial Statements

B H%5 R B ot

31 March 2015 =Z—H&=A=+—H

FEWE 5 IR (F)

FEWE SRR EREEBMT

as follow:
Group &M
2015 —F—hF 2014 —Z—M%F
HK$'000 F& 7T HK$'000 F/#&7T
At 1 April REA—H = =
Impairment losses recognised (note 7) B RERREEE (M&E7) 154 =
154 =

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade receivables
is a provision of HK$154,000 (2014: Nil) for individually impaired
trade receivables with a carrying amount before provision of
HK$154,000 (2014: Nil).

The individually impaired trade receivables relate to customers that
were in dispute or were in default in both interest and/or principal
payments and only a portion of the receivables is expected to be

recovered.

The aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, net of provisions, is as follows:

LLJT&‘M&%’%HE JOREREREENREREKE S

K2 BHE154,0008 7T (ZE—WNF - ) - ZE
H&z%%ﬁé N2 BRI ERE B A 154,0008 T (=2 —
e = F) o

ERIRERKE S RREFZZEFIRMAFE
R/ RA&ZEERRE - FEEER U E D5 FEER
Ko

RMERK - BURE SRR (GREER) ZRE
DT -

Group "M
2015 =F—HF 2014 ZZT—N4F
HK$'000 F&T HK$'000 T/ 7T
Neither past due nor impaired B s HR sl R B 1,442 1,108

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to
customers for which there was no recent history of default. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over these balances.

7 45 760 H SRR (B 2 8 Wi R IR B A B R 4D R R Y
BEPEHW - AEBIWEAZF AT A TAEAK
Hi S ERTHEHE
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22. Prepayments, deposits and other 22. FEfMFIE - RERHEMEKRER
receivables
None of the prepayments and deposits is either past due or BMEBEMNFIBERESEBHKERE -
impaired.
A provision of HK$5,637,000 (2014: HK$3,769,000) was made RMEHR - XA FE ¥ 8REE 45,637,000% 7T
against other receivables with a carrying amount of HK$5,637,000 (ZZ— M : 3,769,000/ 7T) A E b FE Uk AR FR 5T
(2014: HK$3,769,000) at the end of the reporting period, resulting 12 # 1#5,637,000%8 7T (== — U4 : 3,769,000/
in an impairment loss of other receivables of HK$1,868,000 (2014: T0) - BEAARF 18 5 R N TR H i & W AR FUR
HK$1,005,000) being recognised in the statement of profit or loss B 51,868,000/ 7t (= ZF — P04 : 1,005,000/
during the current year. The Group does not hold any collateral or To) o AR EWES R AR A EMER RS E A
other credit enhancements over this balance. EERAER
The remaining balance of other receivables was neither past due Huth AR s TN B AL i Bk Rl - BEi%
nor impaired and relates to a large number of independent parties S EENC S 2B S A -
for whom there was no recent history of default.
The carrying amounts of deposits and other receivables Re kEMERERNERERRKSENAFEE
approximate their fair values. o
23. Restricted bank balances and cash and 23. ZR&EIBTEERBEEREBETER
bank balances
Group A"&H Company A4 7]
2015 2014 2015 2014
—®B-Ef C—T-HEF =B-RF ZTHEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET T TET FHEIT
Restricted bank balances PR BRI T AT 3,726 546 - =
Cash and bank balances e RRITET 529,660 83,223 523,279 72,836
533,386 83,769 523,279 72,836

At the end of the reporting period, cash and bank balances NEpaHi s AEBUARE ([ARKE]) SHEZ

of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted & RIRITEF 455,600,000 T (ZFE—0F :

to approximately HK$5,600,000 (2014: HK$3,302,000). The
RMB are not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

China Jinhai International Group Limited FEI &SRB EEERA A

3,302,000 7T) c ARBTAIEAELBRASEME
B AT BB BN 2 JNE B KB R A E -
EERMNEERMATE  AEEEETEBEREE
TONERIE ZRIT - BARBHAABHMER -
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24,

25.
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Restricted bank balances and cash and 23. ZRFBTEFREESRBITER
bank balances (continued) (&)
At 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014, restricted bank balances RIZE-—RE=A=+—BAK_ZT—NWHE=A=+
represented government grants received by the Group for which — B RRHRTEFHAE BB BTFHE
the use of the bank balances is restricted to specific purposes and HAmRITEF R B AR R B M REESTE
is subject to approval of the relevant authority in the PRC. BRAKENIE -
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank FRIRITHIR S IBRIET B IRITERF RIRFE K
deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy BREVF B  SRITEFER ST BE AT B AE
banks with no recent history of default. The carrying amounts B2 R1T - XRBIRITET - Be RRITEFHER
of the restricted bank balances and cash and bank balances HEEKE 2 A TEHEE °
approximate their fair values.
Trade payables 24. BEZENRIE
An aged analysis of the Group’s trade payables as at the end of RBEHAR  AEERENESRERIZERAHZE
the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: BT ¢
Group A& H
2015 —E—HfF 2014 ZZT—N%F
HK$'000 F&T HK$'000 T/ 7T
Over 3 months =EANRLE 3 16

Trade payables are non-interest-bearing and have a credit period ERESERATTERFHEEHANER - &
of an average of two months. The carrying amounts of trade N8 IERRZ REEELATERE
payables approximate their fair values.
Other payables and accruals 25. HtENRERESTER

As at 31 March 2015, included in other payables and accruals
of the Group and the Company was excess cash received of
HK$171,871,000 (2014: Nil) for the subscription application of the
Company’s rights shares during the year.

The Group’s and the Company’s payables and accruals are non-
interest-bearing and are normally settled within three months.

RZZE—AF=A=1+—8 ' AEEZHMEMNK
BREFERAREAFEERZERBARAERRN
ZEWIRGHBHS%8171,871,0008 70 (ZZE—
F:EF)o

AEBZENFAREFERS T ER—RAR
=fAARER -
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26. Finance lease payables 26. EARMEHEER
The Group leases certain of its property, plant and equipment for AEEHEEETYE  BRELRREAREE - Z
its operations. These leases are classified as finance leases and EHESHEAMERE  MH THAROSE (ZF
have remaining lease terms of four years (2014: five years). At —F: AF)  RZZT—AF=A=+—H " &
31 March 2015, the total future minimum lease payments under BHETNRRGERENREERERERAT ¢

finance leases and their present values were as follows:

Group EH
Present value Present value
Minimum Minimum of minimum  of minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
REHEE HEHAE BEEE =EHE
INEN NES NRBRE ~FRE
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-HF —ZT—WNF Z—ZT-HF —T—NF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FHET T
Amounts payable: FERTFRIE
Within one year —FR 170 170 149 142
In the second year E_F 170 170 157 149
In the third to fifth years, B=ERE
inclusive (BiEERMT) 212 382 206 363
Total minimum finance lease =ERERERN KRR
payments 552 722 512 654
Future finance charges RRBEER (40) (68)
Total net finance lease payables ENRERE R EARE 512 654
Portion classified as current liabilities 538 &R E) & &2 2D (149) (142)
Non-current portion IETRBNEBD 363 512

134  China Jinhai International Group Limited FE&BHEEBER AT
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Issued convertible bonds
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ERTHERES

Group and Company AEE K AAQF

2015 —F—FHF 2014 — TP
HK$'000 38T HK$'000 F7&7T
2013 Issued Convertible Bonds —E - =FPEBETHRES
(as defined below) (i%ﬁﬁ?i} - 73,386
2013 Issued Bonds (as defined below) —ZT—=FF3%17F% (ExRTX) = 79,421
- 152,807
Derivative component of Issued BETARRESF 2 HITET AN
Convertible Bonds - (14,804)

On 1 December 2010, the Company issued three-year zero-
coupon convertible bonds with the face value of HK$200,000,000
to unrelated third parties (the “2010 Issued Convertible Bonds”).
The 2010 Issued Convertible Bonds were convertible at the option
of the bondholders (the “Bondholders”) into ordinary shares of
the Company at anytime following the date of issue of the 2010
Issued Convertible Bonds up to the maturity date of 30 November
2013, at a price of HK$0.125 per share, subject to adjustments.

The Company could redeem, in whole or in part, the outstanding
2010 Issued Convertible Bonds at a 100% of the principal amount
by giving the Bondholders not less than seven business days’ prior
notice during the outstanding period. If redeemed in part, the
redemption shall be made in amounts of not less than multiples of
HK$500,000. On the maturity date, any 2010 Issued Convertible
Bonds not converted or redeemed during the tenure will be
redeemed by the Company at 100% of the principal amount.

RZZE—ZF+-A—H AAAAEREE=H
é‘TE@ZOOOOOOOO?&SE FHERARRES
[—ZE-—ZEFRETURERESR]) - —T-FFE2
BOARRESTHESKAEA ((BEFFAAD
T%BAf? TEEERTHBRESFETARRE

T—=F+—A=1THIHR ZAERFEZ
FRR0125B T2 ERK (AT THRE) BRAARRE

—
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27.

Issued convertible bonds (continued)

2013 Amendments

Upon the approval of an ordinary resolution of the Company at

the special general meeting held on 25 March 2013, the Company

and the Bondholders concluded the Deed of Variations on 26

March 2013 pursuant to which both parties agreed to vary certain

terms and conditions of the 2010 Issued Convertible Bonds (the

“2013 Amendments”). The modifications included but were not

limited to:

0]

(ii)

(iii)

the maturity date of 30 November 2013 was extended to
30 November 2016;

the principal amount of the 2010 Issued Convertible Bonds

was divided into two portions:

an interest-bearing portion with a principal value
of HK$100 million which is interest-bearing at
2.5% p.a. payable on maturity (the “2013 Issued
Bonds"”); and

a non-interest-bearing portion with a principal
amount of HK$100 million redeemable on maturity
with conversion rights attached (the “2013 Issued
Convertible Bonds”). The convertible portion was
convertible in multiples of HK$250,000 at any time
during the conversion period;

the conversion price for the 2013 Issued Convertible Bonds
was adjusted from HK$0.125 per share to HK$0.33 per
share, subject to adjustments; and

China Jinhai International Group Limited FEI &SRB EEERA A
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27.

Issued convertible bonds (continued)
2013 Amendments (continued)

(iv) a conversion option was granted to the Company with
which the Company has the rights to request conversion
of all the outstanding 2013 Issued Convertible Bonds into
ordinary shares of the Company on the maturity date.

Further details of the 2013 Amendments are set out in the
Company’s circular dated 1 March 2013.

The conversion price of the 2013 Issued Convertible Bonds was
adjusted from HK$0.33 per share to HK$0.2846 per share upon
completion of the rights issue on 19 September 2013. Further
details are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 18
September 2013.

2014 Amendments

On 18 August 2014, upon the approval of an ordinary resolution
of the Company at the special general meeting, the Company
and the Bondholders concluded a Second Deed of Variations
to vary certain terms and conditions of 2013 Issued Convertible
Bonds and 2013 Issued Bonds (the “2014 Amendments”). The
modifications included but not limited to:

(i) The entire principal amount of the 2013 Issued Convertible
Bonds and 2013 Issued Bonds would not carry any interest
and these bonds became convertible into the shares of the
Company (the “2014 Issued Convertible Bonds”);

(ii) The maturity date of the 2014 Issued Convertible Bonds
was extended from 30 November 2016 to 31 December
2018;

27.
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Issued convertible bonds (continued)
2014 Amendments (continued)

(iii) The conversion price for the 2014 Issued Convertible Bonds
was adjusted from HK$0.2846 per share to HK$0.125 per
share, subject to adjustments; and

(iv) The conversion option was granted to the Company with
which the Company has the rights to request conversion
of all outstanding the 2014 Issued Convertible Bonds into
ordinary shares of the Company on the maturity date.

The 2014 Amendments constituted a significant modification
and were accounted for as an extinguishment of the 2013
Issued Bonds and 2013 Issued Convertible Bonds and an issue
of the 2014 Issued Convertible Bonds. In light of the terms of
the 2014 Amendments set out above, the Company reassessed
at 19 August 2014 (“the Amendment Date”) the fair value of
the 2014 Issued Convertible Bonds. The net effect of the 2014
Amendments is the recognition of a loss of HK$1,000,815,000
debited to the statement of profit or loss. The conversion option
of the Bondholders and conversion option of the Company on the
maturity date are derivative components which are interdependent
as only one of these options can be exercised at any one point of
time. Therefore, they are not able to be accounted for separately
and a single compound derivative financial instrument is
recognised.

The 2014 Issued Convertible Bonds with a total principal amount
of HK$200 million were fully converted into 1,600,000,000
ordinary shares during the year ended 31 March 2015.
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Issued convertible bonds (continued) 27. ERTUBRKRES (F)

2014 Amendments (continued) —E—-NFEE] (&)

An analysis of the movements of the liability component and the RBE-ZE-—AFR-ZF-—NF=RA=1+—HIEF
derivative component of Issued Convertible Bonds and Issued FE?‘ﬁﬁﬁﬁfoziff&E%fﬂ,a%?ZETEE‘B@&M
Bonds during the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014 is as THEBHzESHTWT :

follows:

Convertible Convertible

Bonds — Bonds — Bonds -
Liability = Derivative Liability
component component component Total
AHERES - ARRES - &% —
8&3H0 TETASG =Rl st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAET AT FABT
At 1 April 2013 RZZE—=FMA—H 65,379 (4,533) 70,515 131,361
Interest expenses FEFAX 8,007 - 8,906 16,913
Fair value change NFEE - (10,271) - (10,271)
At 31 March 2014 and 1 April 2014 R== Ei A=+—8H
NZF—MFMHA—H 73,386 (14,804) 79,421 138,003
Interest expenses & ?S'Z 3,359 - 3,745 7,104
Interest paid 2ARHFLE = - (3,500) (3,500)
Fair value changes of 2013 =PRI
Issued Convertible Bonds BE 2 A EEE) - 233,578 - 233,578
Extinguishment of the 2013 B\ —=FB %7
Issued Convertible Bonds and AMRESFR T —=F
2013 Issued Bonds BBTES (76,745) (218,774) (79,666) (375,185)
Issue of 2014 Issued BT UFEBE T
Convertible Bonds A B 137,317 1,238,683 - 1,376,000
Fair value changes of 2014 ZE—OFEEITA R
Issued Convertible Bonds upon BEREBEZ AFE
conversion it - (26,999) - (26,999)
Conversion of 2014 Issued R - —FE T
Convertible Bonds AR B2 (137,317)  (1,211,684) - (1,349,001)
As 31 March 2015 NZZE—RF=A=+—H = = = =
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28.

29.

—T-RF=A=1-H

Deferred tax liabilities 28.
As at 31 March 2015, deferred tax liabilities of HK$1,048,000

were attributable to the commercial building allowance claimed

for the Group’s investment property.

As at 31 March 2014, deferred tax liabilities of HK$890,000 were
attributable to the fair value gains on available-for-sale equity
investments.

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
HK$895,732,000 (2014: HK$868,850,000) and in Mainland China
of HK$11,989,000 (2014: HK$14,623,000) that are available for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in which
the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have
been loss-making for some time and it is not considered probable
that taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses
can be utilised.

Share capital 29.

Shares

EEBHAE

RZE-—RAF=ZA=+—H EEKREBAEE
1,048,000/ L5 AR A EBERENERFLEF
REREL »

R-ZE-—WOMF=A=+—H  EXEREEE
TLER HERAKRE Z X FER

REBEENEBESE 2 BiIAE1E895,732,000%8
JL (== — & : 868,850,000/ 1) MR FERA
HWE 4 2 BAETE11,989,000/8 T (=T — M -
14,623,000/ 7T) * ATHEEHBRBEERZ AR 2K
RIERTRF - HRMBARFEEEBEEFR
BTN KRA] RE A FE R B m F % 7] AR K S5 B IE 5 18
B kL F IR R R R I S EE o

AN
B4

2015 —E—HF
HK$'000 T3 7T

2014 —ZF—F
HK$'000 F7&7T

Authorised: (note)
80,000,000,000 (2014:
60,000,000,000) ordinary shares of

RRE ¢ (MHEE)

60,000,000,000/% ) FAXEE

80,000,000,000f% (== —POU4F :

HK$0.01 each 0.018 T2 EBEmIKX 800,000 600,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRAR
4,190,796,225 (2014: 2,033,737,827)  4,190,796,2250% (== —PO4F :
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 2,033,737,827/%) BAXEIE
0.018 T2 EBmIK 41,908 20,337

Note:

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed in the special general meeting on
27 February 2015, the authorised share capital of the Company was increased
from HK$600,000,000 divided into 60,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each to HK$800,000,000 divided into 80,000,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each.
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29. Share capital (continued) 29. A (&)
A summary of movements of the Company’s issued shares capital EBARRBRETRARRMD EERZSHHEE N
and share premium account is as follows: S 3
Number of Issued Share
shares share premium
in issue capital account Total
ERITROSA BRITRA RIADEER @t
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt st TET THEE BT
At 1 April 2013 RZZT—=FMA—H 677,912,609 6,779 745,229 752,008
Rights issue, net of expenses R CNkRFEXZE) (i) 1,355,825,218 13,558 116,994 130,552
At 31 March 2014 and 1 April 2014 ~ R=Z—NF=F=1+—H
k=E—NFMA—AR 2,033,737,827 20,337 862,223 882,560
Rights issue, net of expenses iR (FBRHZIR) (i) 3,592,111,050 35,921 486,643 522,564
Placing of new shares, net of expenses  ER&#Tik (D (FRRFEZIZ) (ii) 1,823,082,287 18,231 249,345 267,576
Share options exercised BATfb e (il 530,031,642 5,300 129,491 134,791
Conversion of Issued Convertible Bonds %8 1T rl &R E% (v)  1,600,000,000 16,000 1,333,001 1,349,001
Capital reorganisation RAER v)  (5,388,166,581) (53,881) - (53,881)
At 31 March 2015 RZZ—RF=A=1—H 4,190,796,225 41,908 3,060,703 3,102,611
Notes: B EE -

(ii)

On 19 September 2013, the Company issued and allotted
1,355,825,218 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each to qualifying
shareholders pursuant to the rights issue on the basis of two rights
shares for every share held by members on the register as at 27 August
2013 at a subscription price of HK$0.10 per share for a total gross cash
consideration of HK$135,582,000 and the related issue expense were
HK$5,030,000.

On 31 March 2015, the Company issued and allotted 3,592,111,050
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each to qualifying shareholders pursuant
to the rights issue on the basis of six rights shares for every share held
by members on the register as at 10 March 2015 at an issue price
of HK$0.15 per rights share for a total gross cash consideration of
HK$538,817,000 and the related issue expense were HK$16,253,000.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, an aggregate of 1,823,082,287
new shares were placed to various independent placees at the exercise
prices ranging from HK$0.125 to HK$0.175 per share with total gross
proceeds of HK$275,674,000 and the related issue expenses were
HK$8,098,000.

i)

(i)

RZZ—=FNLA+NAB ARAFRER=ZZT—=
FNAZTEARBIBRREMZRRGHE K
RDBEEMRERRGO 2 EEURBEETRE
0. 108 TR B MR A B KA 21T R A &
1,355,825,2 18R BAREEO.01 BT 2 FilAk - 42
I & {8 %135,582,000% ;T R B ETHR X A
5,030,000/8 7T °

RZZE—RAF=A=+—0 " ARRKER=FT—
EF=ZRATHEIRREMzRRERHE —RK
DIEEE S RBEAR AR 1D 2 =2 LA B 1T (B T AR (AR AR
190.15%8 TT IR B AR (7 & B % AR 51 3 T R B B
3,592,111,050i B REEO0.01 B L2 Tk - 42
37 & {8 /538,817,000 T KBRS TH S A
16,253,000/ T °

HE_ZT-—RAF=A=+—RHILFE ' AQ7AMA
% % 18 L AL ARITE B MR0.1258 T £0.175
7S LR & A $£1,823,082,287 T Bk 15+ FT1S 3K
I8 48 %8 /275,674,000 T R HE TR X A
8,098,000/ T,
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29. Share capital (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i)

(vi)

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the subscription rights
attaching to 530,031,642 share options were exercised at subscription
prices ranging from HK$0.168 to HK$0.4822 per ordinary share,
resulting in the issue of 530,031,642 ordinary shares for a proceed of
HK$100,124,000. An amount of HK$34,667,000 was transferred from
share option reserve to the share premium account upon exercise of

the share options.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Company issued a total
of 1,600,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at a conversion
price of HK$0.125 for the conversion of the Issued Convertible Bonds
with a principal amount of HK$200,000,000. Upon conversion, the
aggregate carrying amount of the Issued Convertible Bond (note 27)
was transferred to the issued share capital of HK$16,000,000 and the
share premium account of HK$1,333,001,000.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed in the special general
meeting on 27 February 2015, a capital reorganisation (“Capital
Reorganisation”) became effective on 2 March 2015. The Capital

Reorganisation involved:

(a) the consolidation of every ten issued shares of HK$0.01 into
one consolidated share (“Consolidated Share(s)”) of HK$0.10
(the “Share Consolidation”);

(b) the reduction in issued share capital of the Company whereby
the par value of each Consolidated Share was reduced from
HK$0.10 to HK$0.01 by cancelling HK$0.09 of the paid-
up capital on each Consolidated Share and any fraction
of a Consolidated Share in the issued share capital of the
Company arising from the Share Consolidation (“Capital
Reduction”); and

(o) the transfer of the entire amount of the credit arising from
the Capital Reduction to the contributed surplus account of
the Company of HK$53,881,000.

China Jinhai International Group Limited FEI &SRB EEERA A
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(iii)

(vi)

HE-_FT—RF=ZA=t+—BLFE"
530,031,64217 B AR AEFT I 5 R B IR R B (E B R
EEAR0. 1687 T2 0.48228 L& T + EEEEAT
530,031,642/% & i@A% + FT13 35X /100,124,000
ETT o T RERRHERT - ©%H34,667,000% 7T A
BREREEEERDEER -

HE-Z-—OF=A=+—RBLFE ARAR
32 (H0.125/% ;T #1746 #£1,600,000,000% & A%
0.01 T2 &R - A K%K S FE 200,000,000
BILZBEBITARRES - RBIRK - 8T
BERES (HR27) < RABEEBBEEBHTRA
16,000,000/ 7T & B% 17 )4 (B 8%1,333,001,0007%
T e

BRER-_FE—AF-_A-+EtAERRHIRE
FEBHRRIRER - RAEA (TIRAEA ] ©
—E-RFZAHER - RASESIRTIE
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(a) FHRRO.0VBTZEHTROAHA—
B0.10/& T 2 & HF IR 13 ([& 6B ))
(T&B&EH])

(b) HER AR R Z B BITIRA « #AB BT
HERE GHRG 2 8RR A0.09% 7T »
HERA GHR 7 2 EE B 8R0.108 T
HIRZE0.018 7T ¢ RHEIR R HA R 7
BEITRAR ARG S OF i & £ 2 [
THAORG (TIRAHEDR]) + &

(9 BRAHREEZEREBSHEERE
RA RGN R #AERS3,881,000/8 7T ©



29.

30.

(a)

Share capital (continued)
Share options

Details of the Company’'s share option schemes and the share
options issued under the schemes are included in note 33 to the

financial statements.
Warrants

During the year, a bonus issue of warrants of the Company was
made on the basis of one warrant or every six rights shares held by
members on the register of members on 10 March 2015, resulting
in 598,685,175 warrants being issued. Each warrant entitles the
holders thereof to subscribe one ordinary share of the Company
at a subscription price of HK$0.1 per share, payable in cash and
subject to adjustment, from 8 April 2015 to 7 April 2016.

Reserves
Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity.

The contributed surplus of the Group arose as a result of the
Group reorganisation upon listing of the Company’'s shares in
1994, and represented the difference between the nominal value
of the shares of the former holding company of the Group prior to
the Group reorganisation and the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued in exchange therefor.

In addition, pursuant to special and ordinary resolutions passed
at the special general meeting held on 22 September 2000, the
issued and fully paid share capital of the Company was reduced by
HK$448,992,000 through a reduction in the nominal value of the
share capital of the Company. The credit so arising was transferred
to the contributed surplus.

29.

30.

(a)

Notes to Financial Statements
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30.

(a)

Reserves (continued)
Group (continued)

On 28 July 2005, a capital reorganisation scheme was approved
by the shareholders under a special resolution, pursuant to which,
every 10 shares of HK$0.01 each in the issued share capital of
the Company were consolidated into one consolidated share of
HK$0.10 and every issued consolidated share was reduced in
nominal amount by cancelling HK$0.09 of the capital paid up
for each issued consolidated share so as to form (after the share
consolidation) one reorganised share of HK$0.01. The credit so
arising was transferred to the contributed surplus.

On 26 March 2013, a capital reorganisation scheme was approved
by the shareholders under a special resolution, pursuant to which,
every 5 shares of HK$0.01 each in the issued share capital of
the Company were consolidated into one consolidated share of
HK$0.05 and every issued consolidated share was reduced in
nominal amount by cancelling HK$0.04 of the capital paid up
for each issued consolidated share so as to form (after the share
consolidation) one reorganised share of HK$0.01. The credit so
arising was transferred to the contributed surplus.

As detailed in note 29 (v) to the financial statements, during the
year ended 31 March 2015, a credit of HK$53,881,000 arising
from the capital reorganisation was transferred to the contributed

surplus.
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30. Reserves (continued) 30. f&f& (&)
(b) Company () NN
Equity
component
Share Share of
premium  Contributed Capital option  convertible Accumulated
account surplus reserve reserve bonds losses Total
TRRES
RoaEE  EHEH EXfifs  BRERE ZBEIH ZitER @t

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
THT THT THT THT TR TR THT

At 1 April 2013 R-E-=mA—-AH 745,229 621,790 556 35,778 47,257 (1.462,774) (12,164)
Loss and total comprehensive ERBEREZABRLE

loss for the year - - - - - (54,837) (54,837)
Rights issue, net of expenses 1R (A% 1E)

(note 29 (1)) (PZE29()) 116,994 - - - - - 116,994
Equity-settled share option RiELE 2 BRER TS

arrangements, net (note 33) (Bi7E33) - - - 6,933 - - 6,933
At 31 March 2014 and RZF-ME=A=1—H

1 April 2014 k=Z-NENA—-A 862,223 621,790 556 42,711 47,257 (1,517,611) 56,926

Loss and total comprehensive FRERRZEFRLE

loss for the year - - - - - (1,359,067)  (1,359,067)
Rights issue, net of expenses B (MBRFS %)

(note 29 (i) (HtzE29() 486,643 - - - - - 486643
Placing of new shares, net of RERG (MBRX%)

expenses (note 29 (i) (HzE29(ii) 249,345 - - - - - 249,345
Share option exercised BiTRRE (FE29i)

(note 29 (ii) 129,491 - - (3467) - . 94,824
Conversion of Isstied JRBETTRRES

Convertible (M&E29()

Bonds (note 29 (iv)) 1,333,001 - - - - - 1,333,001
Capital reorganisation RAEaE (fEE20W)

(note 29 (v)) - 53,881 - - - - 53,881
Equity-settled share option RS BREZHFE

arrangements, net (note 33) (HizE33) - - - 25,990 - = 25,990
At 31 March 2015 RZE-RE=RA=+—H 3,060,703 675,671 556 34,034 47,257  (2,876,678) 941,543
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30.

(b)

31.

—T-RF=A=1-H

Reserves (continued)
Company (continued)

The loss of HK$1,359,067,000 for the year ended 31 March
2015 (2014: HK$54,837,000) included impairment of amounts
due from subsidiaries of the Company of HK$99,858,000 (2014:
HK$32,006,000) and impairment of investments in subsidiaries of
the Company of HK$574,000 (2014: HK$6,253,000).

Note:

The contributed surplus of the Company arose as a result of the capital
reorganisation referred to in (a) above and represents the excess of the then
combined net assets of the subsidiaries acquired over the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor.

In addition, the capital reorganisation described in (a) above also resulted
in an aggregate credit balance of approximately HK$631,982,000 (2014:
HK$578,101,000) being transferred to the Company’s contributed surplus.

Acquisition of assets through acquisition
of subsidiaries

On 21 November 2014, Top Billion Finance Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independence third party, to acquire a 100%
equity interest in Alpha Ease together with the shareholder’s
loan advanced to Alpha Ease at a cash consideration of
HK$15,000,000. The transaction was completed on 26 November
2014. Alpha Ease holds the Acquired Convertible Bonds.

On 28 November 2014, Sino Green Holdings Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party, to acquire a 100%
equity interest in King Place together with the shareholder’s loan
advanced to King Place at a cash consideration of HK$92,000,000.
The transaction was completed on 31 March 2015. The principal
asset of King Place is an investment property in Hong Kong.

China Jinhai International Group Limited FEI &SRB EEERA A

30.

(b)

31.

& (&)
RiE (&)

HE-_Z - HAF=-A=+—LtHEEBE
1,359,067,0007% 7T (= & — U 4 : 54,837,000/
JL) BIE MR R R T A B 5K 899,858,000
B (ZZF— A : 32,006,000 L) MRAR A
M8 AR 2% & RES74,0008 T (ZE— WM& :
6,253,000/ 7T) °

Wi -

ARBZEBRBIRE EX(FT 2 BAEHE - THEAK
BHBARER 2ANEEFEBRARAARRAEEE
BTG 2 EEB N 2 B8 -

BEAN » X (a)Frilt iR AN EAH I8 50 49631,982,000 7T (=
T —PY4F : 578,101,000/ 70) 2 ERBREANR 2 ER
Bfh o

ERWENBARWEEE

RZZE—WF+—A=+—H  A5EZEHBER
AREMBERARE - BBV E=FLEEH
% 0 A AIpha Easez & ZB A% #38 [F & T Alpha
EaseZ fx 5 B X - IR € X f& 315,000,000/ JT
ZRXGN T —MF+—HZ+7XHFTMK ° Alpha
Easefi B B W AT ARG -

RZZE—WE+—A=+N\B A&EEZ2EHBEQ
A]Sino Green Holdings Limitedf—& B8 =77
RN BB S AERH 2 2 HREEREB TR
FZRRER - HEMRER92,000,0008 7T © &R
SR_E—RF=A=1t—HEK - RHEZFEEL
ER—EAEBKREDE: -



31.

32.

(a)

of subsidiaries (continued)

Acquisition of assets through acquisition 31.

The aggregate amounts of the assets and liabilities of Alpha Ease

and King Place at the respective dates of acquisition were as

follows:

Notes to Financial Statements

B H%5 R B ot

31 March 2015 =Z—H&=A=+—H

ERWENBARWEBEE ()

Alpha FaseR REH RS HWBRBHzEERARR
BEF :

HK$'000 T4 7T
Investment property (note 14) wEYZE (ME14) 89,917
Debt component of Acquired Convertible Bonds & YgB& Al k(&% 2 B &6 (FizE18)

(note 18) 12,953
Derivative component of Acquired Convertible BB IRE S 2 HTET A5 (FizE18)

Bonds (note 18) 1,922
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TARIFRIE « e R A i FE W AR K 3,236
Tax recoverable JEIRTIIA 23
Accruals fEETE H 3)
Due to shareholders FERTAIRER 2 5RIE (46,213)
Deferred tax liabilities (note 28) RERIES B (H728) (1,048)
Net assets acquired B EEFE 60,787
Satisfied by: AT AR -
Cash consideration BEKRE 107,000
Less: Repayment of amounts due to shareholders Ja& @ {E3& B IZER 2 7008 (46,213)
Net assets acquired B EEFE 60,787
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents ARBUENRBAR ZREEBFMARERE

included in cash flows used in investing ZEeRRSEEHEE RTFE

activities arising from acquisition of subsidiaries 107,000

Note to the consolidated statement of 32. HREBEEFRERME
cash flows
Major non-cash transactions () EBEXIFREXRS

(i) During the year ended 31 March 2015, the aggregate

carrying amount of the Issued Convertible Bonds of
HK$1,349,001,000 was transferred to share capital of
HK$16,000,000 and the share premium account of

HK$1,333,001,000 upon conversion.

(ii) During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group entered
into a finance lease arrangement in respect of property,

plant and equipment with a total capital value at the

inception of the lease of HK$755,000.

(i)

(if)

REE—_T—HAF=-A=+—HLFE" B
EITA ARG A ARE 42 (E1,349,001,0007%
TL A 5 2 B 88 7% 2 i% 7516,000,000/% 7T K.
P& 1% (B8R 1,333,001,0007 T ©

REBEE-—Z-—NMFE=A=+—HILFE ' K
SEFNEERBRAEANEEATS5,000
BILZYE  BERZEITL—MHBERE
ZHE o
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33.

Share option schemes

The Company operates share option schemes for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible
participants of the share option schemes include the Company’s
directors, including independent non-executive directors, other
employees of the Group or any invested entity, suppliers of goods
or services to the Group or any invested entity, customers of the
Group or any invested entity, shareholders of the Group or any
invested entity, holders of securities of the Group or any invested
entity and persons or entities that provide research, development
or other technological support to the Group or any invested entity.
A share option scheme became effective on 27 August 2003
and expired on 26 August 2013 (the “2003 Scheme”). A new
share option scheme was adopted and became effective on 27
September 2013 (the “2013 Scheme”). Unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, the 2013 Scheme will remain in force for 10 years
from the effective date.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options granted and to be granted under the 2003
Scheme and the 2013 Scheme (collectively, the “Share Option
Schemes”) is an amount equivalent to 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue as at the dates of approval of the Share
Option Schemes unless approval for refreshing the 10% limit from
the Company’s shareholders has been obtained. The maximum
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
share options granted to each eligible participant in the Share
Option Schemes (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares
of the Company in issue. Any further grant of share options in
excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting. The total number of shares of the Company available for
issue under the Share Option Schemes is 57,097 as at the date of
the annual report.

China Jinhai International Group Limited FEI &SRB EEERA A

33.

BRETE

ARBRIBIRETS SEZBRREHAE
HALXBEEEMERZAERSEE - BAUE
AEAERFEZEEREARRES (BEBL
FERTES)  AEBEREFAKRERR ZEfbE
B AEEBHEMMAIKE QR ZEWHRE HIE
B AEENERMMIREQFAZER  AEEN/E
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S H MM SR 2 A ALHAR] - —IBBERER
BN —ET=F N \A T LtHERIN-_F—=F
NAZ+RBEIH ([ ZZZ=F512]) - —BHE
BREAER T =FNA T L AERALER
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T=F MR ERBEHETFRAEN

o

BREBE-_ZT=FHER_ZT—=FH8 (BHBR
[ZEREBEE])  RITEMERERIRLZ
BRER - AR ZRABRMD BB BERIEZE
IR B A IR R BB HITRM Z210% © BRIFER
NREBRRAEFF10% 2 ER - REM+—EA
HE - AZSBREAISAERS2RETRER
TzBElREMETREETZRNERB (BEETT
% BEEHEEERTERZERE) TEHEAANAT
BETRNZ21% - £ PR TFBEHLREBEZBR
HAARRAERRAS LA - RAFRAH - A
D AR R BB B AT I AT 31T 2 B DD 4R B /857,097
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33.

Share option schemes (continued)

Under the Share Option Schemes, share options granted to a
director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company,
or to any of their associates are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition, any grant of
share options to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of the Company, or to any of their associates,
which would result in the shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all options already granted and to be granted (including
options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person in
the 12-month period up to and including the date of such grant
in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue and with
an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the Company’s
shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000 is subject
to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options under the Share Option
Schemes may be accepted within 28 days from the date of offer,
upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by
the grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted
is determined by the directors, save that such period shall not
be more than 10 years from the dates of adoption of the Share
Option Schemes subject to the provisions for early termination set
out in the Share Option Schemes. Unless otherwise determined by
the directors at their sole discretion, there is no requirement of a
minimum period for which an option must be held before it can
be exercised.

The exercise price of share options granted under the Share
Option Schemes is determined by the directors, but shall not be
less than the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the
Company'’s shares on the date of offer of the share options; (ii) the
average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of offer; and
(iii) the nominal value of a share of the Company on the date of
offer.

33.
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BRETE (&)

ZEBREABRE  RAREE  AARTRAR
FEBRRAWEZEMBEALE TREREERAS
FERSBEMIFRTERIA o I MERTAR
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BALZERBBEARAREETRMNZ01% K
#E (REBEXLBRES B AR RROKHEE)
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33. Share option schemes (continued)

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or
to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

Under the 2003 Scheme, options were granted to eligible
participants and there were outstanding (but not yet exercised)
options to subscribe for a total of approximately 9,594,000 shares
as at 31 March 2015. The outstanding options granted under
the 2003 Scheme shall continue to be valid and are subject to
the provisions of the 2003 Scheme and Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules.

The following share options were outstanding during the years
ended 31 March 2015 and 2014:

For the year ended 31 March 2015

33.

BRETE (F)

BREZFEABRERKRSHNBREANEG L&

o

[i

I~

BREBE_TZE=FE BREAIXRTEERSHA
EERN-_ZE-—HAF=-A=+t—BEAREELY
9,594,0000% A& 17 = i AR # i1 AR 17 2 (18 8 R 17
) e ZET=FEBTRITEBEREKESRS
HMEBAXBR-_TT=FE R EMRAUFE17EZ
{32

UTERERSEEZE_ZE—RAFER_T—NF=A=
+—BHIEFEEARITHE

BZE-_Z-—hF=A=+—HILEE

2013 Scheme —E—=F3t &

2003 Scheme —EF =F ;12|

Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise price Number  exercise price Number
per share of options per share of options
SRE SRmE
FHTRE BREHE FHTREE R A
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
BT T4 BT T4
At 1 April REA—H 0.195 41,200 0.344 104,269
Forfeited during the year* FRBH* 0.319 (6,778) 0.811 (6,489)
Granted during the year FRFE 0.168 460,000 = =
Exercised during the year* FRITHE! 0.169 (475,170) 0.362 (54,862)
Adjustment arising from Fiags
— Share Consolidation — RE5 (17,757) (39,526)
- Rights Issue — 2,732 6,202
At 31 March R=A=+-A 0.690 4,221 1.117 9,59
& During the year ended 31 March 2015, 13,267,000 share options were L3 RBEE_ZT—HAF=ZA=Z=+—BLFE"

forfeited upon cessation of employment of participants in accordance
with the terms of the 2003 Scheme and 2013 Scheme.

# The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share

options exercised during the year was HK$0.44 per share (2014: No
share options were exercised).
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33. Share option schemes (continued) 33. ER#ESE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE-Z-—NF=A=+—HILEFEE

2013 Scheme —E—=F312 2003 Scheme —EZ=F ;12

forfeited upon cessation of employment of participants in accordance
with the terms of the 2003 Scheme.

Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise price Number exercise price Number
per share of options per share of options
FRNE Bk iz
TOT6EME BRESE HOHIREE BikiERE
HK$ '000 HK$ ‘000
BT T BT T
At 1 April REA—H - - 0.440 86,604
Lapsed during the year” FRR - - 0.482 (175)
Forfeited during the year* ERRUY* - - 0.258 (6,904)
Granted during the year FRERE 0.195 41,200 - -
Adjustment arising from AR
— Rights issue — i = = = 24,744
At 31 March R=B=+—H 0.195 41,200 0.344 104,269
& During the year ended 31 March 2014, 175,000 share options lapsed # REBEE-ZT—NF=A=+—ALFE ' 175,000
upon the expiry of the share options in accordance with the terms of DIBRERE - T =B GRNBREE MR
the 2003 Scheme. KA
During the year ended 31 March 2014, 6,904,000 share options were * REBEE-_ZEZ-—NE=ZF=+—RHBItFEE"

6,904,00017 FE IR IEAR 15 — T2 = 4F5H B IE&RR =
IHERSEERBORM -
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33. Share option schemes (continued) 33. EBRESE (&)
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options that RmEIR - WARTTEBRE ZITEERITED
were outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as S 3
follows:
2015 —E-hF
Number of options Exercise price per share** Exercise period
BIREHE BRATEE* THEH
‘000 HKS$
T4 BT
208 1.7052 01/01/2012 - 31/12/2016
B —_f-A—HEZE—"Ht+t=A=t+—H
208 1.7052 01/01/2013 - 31/12/2016
—E-=ZF-H—-BE-E-AFE+=ZA=+-—H
205 1.7052 01/01/2014 - 31/12/2016
—E-NME—-A—HBE-_F-—R"E+ZH=+—H
2,021 1.7052 01/01/2015 - 31/12/2016
—E-Af-A—HEZE-—AFt+t=A=t+—H
335 0.8940 01/07/2013 - 31/12/2017
—E-=5tA-HE-Z—tHF+=H=t+—H
335 0.8940 01/07/2014 - 31/12/2017
—E-NEtA—-HBE-FT—tFE+=-H=+—H
3,141 0.8940 01/07/2015 - 31/12/2017
—E-hFtA—-BHE-FE—tF+=-H=+—H
3,141 0.8940 01/07/2016 — 31/12/2017
—E-XRFEtA-HE-Z—tF+=-H=t+—H
424 0.6896 18/02/2014 - 31/12/2017
—E-NE-_A+N\BE-ZE—tF+=-H=+—H
3,803 0.6896 18/02/2015 - 31/12/2017

—E-HEF-_A+N\BE-T—tH+=-A=+-H

13,821
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33. Share option schemes (continued) 33. WEREFE (8&)
2014 —E—MF
Number of options Exercise price per share* Exercise period
EhEsE BRATEE 1T
‘000 HK$
T BT
10,375 0.4822 01/01/2012 - 31/12/2016
—HF—H-—BRE_Z—RFT_A=+—H
10,375 0.4822 01/01/2013 - 31/12/2016
—=%—H—HE=ZZ—X"&+=-H=+—H
10,355 0.4822 01/01/2014 — 31/12/2016
—MNFE—A—HE=ZE—X"FT-A=+—H
10,353 0.4822 01/01/2015 - 31/12/2016
—hF-—A—HBE_ZE—RF+-A=+—H
15,704 0.2528 01/07/2013 — 31/12/2017
—=ftA-—HBE" T tFt+-A=1+—H
15,704 0.2528 01/07/2014 — 31/12/2017
—mOFE+A—HEZZE—+F+-A=+—81
15,704 0.2528 01/07/2015 - 31/12/2017
15,699 0.2528 01/07/2016 — 31/12/2017
B RELtA-HBEZ—+F+-RA=t+—H
18,220 0.1950 18/02/2014 — 31/12/2017
—ENE_A+N\HE_E—tF+-_A=+—H
18,220 0.1950 18/02/2015 — 31/12/2017
—E-RF_A+N\HE_ZE—tF+-_A=t—H
2,370 0.1950 18/02/2016 — 31/12/2017
TR RFATNBEZZ—tF+-A=+—H
2,390 0.1950 18/02/2017 — 31/12/2017
B E A+\HE_E+F+-HA=+—H
145,469
* The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in * R Y TR ER e BAR - BITARKAD T
the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the RR A e 2 E R B Ve R o
Company’s share capital.
# The exercise price per share as at 31 March 2015 has been adjusted # R-TB—FE=A=+—AERTEECEE—
with the effects of the Capital Reorganisation and Rights Issue on 2 EE-EHEL T —FHEE-E—RE=

March and 31 March 2015, respectively, in accordance with the 2003
Scheme and 2013 Scheme. Further details are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 27 February 2015 and 31 March 2015,
respectively.

A-BRAEER-F—HFZA=+—BHB
2HETURE -~ SHERRAATEES
IR—F—AF_HA_ttBR-F-—AF=H
S+—AZAk-
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33.

Share option schemes (continued)

The fair values of the equity-settled share options granted during
the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014 were estimated by
Ascent Partners Transaction Services Limited, an independent
firm of professionally qualified valuers, using the binomial option
pricing model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. The fair value of the equity-
settled share options granted during the year ended 31 March
2015 was HK$24,335,000 (2014: HK$3,789,000). The Group
recognised a net share option expense of HK$25,990,000 during
the year ended 31 March 2015 (2014: HK$6,933,000). The
following table lists the inputs to the model used:

Share options granted B A AR
Dividend yield (%) W (%)
Expected volatility (%) TAFHAR B Eh(%)
Historical volatility (%) [ 52 BB IR BN (%)

ERERFIER(%)

FERHRBREF S ()

R H B HIRE
B/ 8K

Risk-free interest rate (%)
Expected life of options (year)
Share price at grant date (HK$ per share)

The expected life of the options is based on the historical data
over the past three years and is not necessarily indicative of the
exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects
the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of future
trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the

measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 13,821,000
(2014: 145,469,000) share options outstanding under the Share
Option Schemes, which represented approximately 0.31% of
the Company’s shares in issue as at that date. The exercise in full
of the share options would, under the present capital structure
of the Company, result in the issue of 13,821,000 additional
ordinary shares of the Company and additional share capital of
HK$138,000 and share premium of HK$13,495,000 (before issue
expenses).
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BRETE (F)

HE-Z—AFER-_T—HWNF=A=+—HLFE
NEEAREEE 2 BRE 2 A FEBRBLIEES
EREEMARNAEERSRBEAERARIA=IE
XA EEREN @ ZREHBRE 2GR I&G%
EIEE RBEE-_T-—AF=-A=1t—ALFE
R AR E 2 Bkt 2 X T {E /24,335,000
JL (ZZ —PO4F : 3,789,000/ L) - NEBREZE
T hE=A=1+—BLEERNERBERERX
25,990,000 7T (=ZF —PU4F : 6,933,007) ° |
I 88 A\ LA A T R 2 UK

27 November 2014 18 February 2014

—E=—E —E—UE
+—A=++tH —A+NH
N/AZR 3 N/AZ 3 B
97.985 67.457

97.985 67.457

1.683 0.929

10 3.87

0.168 0.217

B B FHNREBEBE=F 2BEEME
B RBRBRATEEHIR Z TR - R RENS)
RERE LR B AARRBE 2 BRR - BRZARBE D
—ERBRER -

R BB B W H it AR FEZEES -

RMEBMR RAARZEERESETAR
R AT 2 B8 A% #£13,821,00013 (= & — O #F :
145,469,00010)  IEA R AR Z BB &ETRG
#0.31% c HBARNRIRAEEARE  BEITE
B A% 4 5 S8 SR RB N B 1713,821,0008% A8 A 7] L &
B+ LA K2 58 S 452 A0 % 2K 138,000 7T K A% 15 5 &
13,495,000/ 7C (FFREEFTRHRSAT) °



34.

35.

36.

Operating lease arrangements
As lessee

The Group leases certain of its properties under operating lease
arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for terms
ranging from one to three years (2014: one to two years).

At 31 March 2015, the Group had total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as

follows:

34.
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REHERH
ERFERAA
ARERBEERERIAELETNE © HED

FHORB—Z2=F (ZZ—WF : —EMF) -

R-B—REZA=+—8  AEBRETTHY
EERER THIMMEN Y R R ERE N R E
mF -

Group "&EME
2015 =Z—HF 2014 —Z M4
HK$'000 &7 HK$'000 T4 7T
Within one year —FR 3,832 2,233
In the second to fifth years, inclusive EFEFAF (RIEEEME) 4,660 =
8,492 2,233

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had no
significant operating lease commitments (2014: Nil).

Commitments

At the end of the reporting period, neither the Group nor the
Company had any significant commitment (2014: Nil).

Related party transactions
The Group considers the directors of the Company to be the key

management personnel, whose compensation has been disclosed
in note 8 to the financial statements.

35.

36.

RI|BEMR - NAARLBEEREZHEASE (ZF
—PE ;) o

ZS

MR EHR - NEBE R AR F I EERERAE
(ZF—mEF &) -

BEALXRS

FEERREARRZEETREIEBTEAS -
ERI SRR 8K -

=
B
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37. Financial Instruments by category 37. 2 EERMIA

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial EHeMTANRERRZEABRAT ¢

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Group - 2015 AEE-—Z-HF
Financial assets SRIEE
Financial
assets at fair Available-
value through for-sale
profit or loss Loans and financial
- held for trading receivables assets Total
BRBREATE
SRS
SHEE ERRENER FHLESREE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR THET TR
Available-forsale equity investments A ERARE - - 153,000 153,000
Debt component of Acquired BlkERkRES ZABHH
Convertible Bonds - - 15,529 15,529
Derivative component of Acquired BRETRRES ZITETARA
Convertible Bonds 4,034 - - 4,034
Fquity investments at fair value BRERERATENRZRARE
through profit or loss 338,722 - - 338,722
Loan receivables EWER - 165,000 - 165,000
Trade receivables BN E 5T - 1,442 - 1,442
Financial assets included in SINBEE - e REMEK
prepayments, deposits and BRPZeREE
other receivables - 6,974 - 6,974
Restricted bank balances RRHIRTERF - 3,726 - 3,726
Cash and bank balances BERBRTER - 529,660 - 529,660
342,756 706,802 168,529 1,218,087
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37.

Financial instruments by

(continued)

Group - 2015 (continued)

Financial liabilities

category 37.

Notes to Financial Statements

B H%5 R B ot
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TEESMIA (F)

A%E - —2-5F (K)

&5

=N

Financial
liabilities at

amortised cost

RESHR A
Rz SRS E
HK$'000 T& T
Trade payables FERTE ZERR 3
Financial liabilities included in other payables FEARMENER LB ER cRARE
and accruals 189,868
Finance lease payables FERTRERER 512
190,383
Group — 2014 REE - —ZFT—WF
Financial assets CREE
Financial
assets at fair Available-
value through for-sale
profit or loss Loans and financial
- held for trading receivables assets Total
ABEREATE
NI HHEES
¢REE  EXREWER THNEEREE &zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T5r T TR
Available-for-sale equity investments A ERARE - - 14,461 14,461
Fquity investments at fair value FRRRRATHEIIRZRARE
through profit or loss 176,617 - - 176,617
Trade receivables EWE 58 - 1,108 - 1,108
Financial assets included in SIATBIFIR « e REMER
prepayments, deposits and BRPZeREE
other receivables - 908 - 908
Derivative components of Issued BETARRES ZITETASH
Convertible Bonds 14,804 - - 14,804
Restricted bank balances RRBIRTER - 546 = 546
Cash and bank balances BeRBITET - 83,223 - 83,223
191,421 85,785 14,461 291,667
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37. Financial instruments by category 37. Z¥E&®mIT A (&)

(continued)
Group - 2014 (continued) REE - ZFT—NF (8)
Financial liabilities TRAE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
RS AR
PRz SR EE
HK$'000 /&7
Trade payables FERTE SRR 16
Financial liabilities included in other payables APARMENERREAER cRARE
and accruals 9,299
Finance lease payables ERREHRER 654
Issued Convertible Bonds BEITRAI R ES 73,386
Issued Bonds BEEITES 79,421
162,776
Company AN F]
All the Company'’s financial assets as at 31 March 2015 and 2014, RARRZE-—RFRZZT—MF=R=+—HFF
including amounts due from subsidiaries, deposits and other FemAE (BIEERKMERRRE - Re kHM
receivables, and cash and bank balances, are categorised as loans FEUER  URIRS RIBITET) HOoBAERK
and receivables, except for the derivative component of Issued YRR - E P EAZBEREATEIIRZE
Convertible Bonds which has been categorised as a financial asset BATARARES 2 HTE T AT DBRIN ©
at fair value through profit or loss.
All the Company’s financial liabilities as at 31 March 2015 and ARAR_E—RAFR-_T—NF=RA=+—RH2Z
2014, including amounts due to subsidiaries, other payables FEeRAE (BEENMBAR ZHIE « HAifE
and accruals, Issued Convertible Bonds and Issued Bonds, are NEERKETER  BERTUBRRKRELSREEITE
categorised as financial liabilities at amortised cost. %) WO BMBRBHK A2 eRMBE -
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38.

Fair value hierarchy of financial

instruments

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s and the
Company’s financial instruments, other than those with carrying
amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

Group

Notes to Financial Statements

B H%5 R B ot

—T—H¥=A=+—8H

31 March 2015

38. ¢RMTEAFEER

AEBERARR BT ANKEAENLRAFEMAT
HERRHERRFESEEEERI

REH

Carrying amounts BREE

Fair values A&

2015 2014 2015 2014
—¥-HF _T-mF =¥-RF _—T-OF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHAT FERT FHT
Financial assets SRIEE
Available-for-sale equity investments aJ{ H & E A& E - 14,461 - 14,461
Debt component of Acquired B AT AR E S 2
Convertible Bonds BEMG 15,529 - 15,529 -
Derivative component of Acquired 2 YtB& AI#A IR ES 2
Convertible Bonds PTHET AEMD 4,034 = 4,034 =
Equity investments at fair value FiBBER A FEIR
through profit or loss 2R E 338,722 176,617 338,722 176,617
Derivative component of Issued BEITAIMRES 2
Convertible Bonds PTET AZ G, - 14,804 - 14,804
358,285 205,882 358,285 205,882
Financial liabilities SRIAE
Financial lease payables FERBEH &R 512 654 552 722
Issued Convertible Bonds BT RRES = 73,386 = 67,510
Issued Bonds BEITES - 79,421 - 72,618
512 153,461 552 140,850
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38.

Fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments (continued)

38. TRMTARATEER (&)

Company AATH
Carrying amounts fRE & Fair values 2 {8
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-RF  —2—NFE  ZE-RF —T—EF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx T FET FHET
Financial assets EEMEE
Derivative component of Issued BEITARRES 2
Convertible bonds PTET EE S = 14,804 = 14,804
Financial liabilities o N=Ri=
Issued Convertible Bonds BEITARMES - 73,386 = 67,510
Issued Bonds BEITES - 79,421 = 72,618
- 152,807 - 140,128

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and bank
balances, restricted bank balances, trade receivables, trade
payables, financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables, financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals, and amounts due from/to subsidiaries approximate to
their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of
these instruments.

The Group’s finance department is responsible for determining the
policies and procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The finance manager reports directly to the chief
financial controller and the audit committee. At each reporting
date, the finance department analyses the movements in the
values of financial instruments and determines the major inputs
applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved
by the financial controller. The valuation process and results are
discussed with the audit committee twice a year for interim and

annual financial reporting.

China Jinhai International Group Limited FEI &SRB EEERA A
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38.

Fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments (continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced
or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were
used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of finance lease payables
have been calculated by discounting the expected future cash
flows using rates currently available for instruments with similar
terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The Group’s own non-
performance risk for finance lease payables as at 31 March 2015
was assessed to be insignificant. The fair value of the liability
portion of the Issued Convertible Bonds and Issued Bonds were
estimated by Hull-White Model using an equivalent market interest
rate for a similar bond with consideration of the Group’s own non-
performance risk.

The fair values of listed available-for-sale equity investments and
equity investments at fair value through profit or loss are based on
quoted market prices.

The fair value of debt component of Acquired Convertible Bonds
is the present value of the contractually determined stream
of future cash flows discounted at the interest and providing
substantially the same cash flows, on the same terms, but without
the conversion options. The discount rate used to compute the fair
value of debt component comprises the risk-free rate and a credit
spread which is determined by reference to the credit analysis of
the issuer and the market rate with similar credit rating. The credit
spread as at 31 March 2015 is 2.30%.

38.

Notes to Financial Statements

B H%5 R B ot

31 March 2015 =Z—H&=A=+—H

EMITAAFEHER (H)

TREEMAENATFERZITARBBR ST
(MIFREBRIHE) BAIRS THAIRSEHEA
R > TOIERBRRIANGEEATE :

e B EHEF R A DR FETERRE
TRARBLGESRAENNE - FERR &R T EH
BT RARAARARRESREMAE - AEER-F—
FE=H=+—HAMNENBEMRERNE DR R
FERTERN - EETABRRESREETESRE
& &1 #9 2X T E To 5k AR U E 2548 % T 35 F =R 1
A — RERALEEAKE S HEORRM G

FERBHERATEARN LT A HHEREARE R
RAKRE 2 R THERTISREMETE

BB BERE S 2 BEBD 2 A FERN KRS
RZARREE 2 RRASRBEE - RBRIGERE
HABERARERE - BFEBERE - At HAEH
DAFEMARREXBEERRIERESERT
AGEDMRMEEEL R Z SN XRMEE ZE
ERE -RZZE—HF=A=+—H EEEER
2.30% °
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38.

Fair value hierarchy of financial 38. €RMITAATEER (&)
instruments (continued)
The fair value of the derivative component of Issued Convertible BETARRKRESF ZMTELIERH 2 AFEARE
Bonds is the residual of the fair value of Issued Convertible Bonds BITAMMRESR C AFEED HTARRESBE
and the fair value of liability component of Issued Convertible BHZAFENRGRER BETAIBRRESRZA
Bonds. The fair value of Issued Convertible Bonds and the fair FTEREETARKRES 2 BEHH 2 A FEEE
value of liability component of Issued Convertible Bonds have been BERYMEEAFEEEATE 2 EMH A
estimated using valuation techniques for which any inputs which BIIEPR B Al R T IS EUR 2 (A E AT b ET o ®
have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are not based BFTR (ZE—mENA+TNB) REBEETA]
on observable market data. The Group’s derivative component MREF 2 EELRA (ZE—NENR=+H
of Issued Convertible Bonds was categorised in level 3 of the fair ZE—NMENAZ+ZHERZZ—MENAZ+X
value measurement as at the Amendment Date (19 August 2014) B) AEEEBTARKRES 2 ITETAH D
and the respective conversion dates (20 August 2014, 22 August BRATEAEE=ER -
2014 and 26 August 2014) for conversion of Issued Convertible
Bonds.
Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the AT ARBETARKRES ZITEIAERHR - —
valuation of derivative component of Issued Convertible Bonds MENATNAB  Z2—MFENAZ+H ZF—
used in Level 3 fair value measurement as at 19 August 2014, 20 MENA=Z+=H —ZE—NFNA=Z+ABE=
August 2014, 22 August 2014, 26 August 2014 and 31 March T—NFE=A=+—HBE=-ERARFEFTEHEM
2014: ERERTABREAZELHE
0) Issued Convertible Bonds (i) BT R ES
Valuation technique: ~ Partial differential equation fERIT RIED AT E
method

Date 19 August 2014 20 August 2014 22 August 2014 26 August 2014 31 March 2014

=) ZE-EENATAR  ZE-MENAZTA ZE-RENAZTZH ZE-MENAZTAR ZE-WEZA=+-H

Credit spread (%) 748 7.56 751 756 15.16

[EEBE%)

As at 31 March 2014, the increase/(decrease) in credit
spread by 1% would result in the decrease/(increase) in the
fair value by approximately HK$1,000.

China Jinhai International Group Limited FEI &SRB EEERA A
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38.

Fair value hierarchy of financial

instruments (continued)

(ii)

Liability component of Issued Convertible Bonds

Notes to Financial Statements

B H%5 R B ot
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38. TRMTAATEER (&)

(i) BERTABRERESZBEHD

Valuation technique:  Hull-White model fEERA - WA — (R
Date 19 August 2014 20 August 2014 22 August 2014 26 August 2014 31 March 2014
AH “E-MENATAR ZE-MENAZTR ZE-MEAAZHAZR ZE-EEAAZTAE ZE-ME=A=1-H
Credit spread (%) 7.48 7.56 751 7.56 15.16
EEEE(%)

As at 31 March 2014, the increase/(decrease) in credit R-_EBE—NE=A=+—H EEE=ZLtH (T

spread by 1% would result in the decrease/(increase)
in the fair value by approximately HK$1,530,000/
(HK$1,578,000).

The fair value of the conversion option embedded in Acquired

B&) 1% A e B AT AR/ (#hn) 491,530,000
&7t/ (1,578,000 7T ) °

—AF=A=+—H BREIBRRESFRA

RZE
Convertible Bonds at 31 March 2015 was calculated using S7MBEZ ATTENER AR EREBER ST
binomial tree pricing model. The inputs to the model were as HEH - BB 2B ABURINT
follows:
At 31 March 2015
R-Z—HF
=H=+-—H
Underlying equity value (note a) RN EEE (MiFka) HK$17,732,00058 5t
Expected volatility (note b) ?EHH?&@? (FMi5EDb) 27.71%
Risk-free rate (note c) [EL B A1 2= (B EEc) 0.21%
Dividend yield (note d) g B WEm = (fiizEd) 0%
Notes: BSE -

(a)

Underlying equity value is determined by reference to Price to Earnings
and Enterprise Value to Earnings before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and
Amortisation (“EV to EBITDA") of comparable companies principally
engaged into similar businesses as those of the subsidiaries of Great

Desire, adjusted for discount of lack of marketability.

Expected volatility is the annualised standard deviation of the
continuously compounded rates of return on the daily average adjusted

share prices of comparable companies.

Risk-free rate is determined by reference to the yield to maturity of

Hong Kong Exchange Fund as at the valuation date.

No dividend will be paid during the lives of the Acquired Convertible
Bonds.

(a BEERRIEEET2%E £ ZH FHGreat Desirelfi/B
ARIRAEEB 2 R TRERCEEBELHRT
S BIE - 8 REHATAF X ([EVEEBITDA
b |) MEEE - WHERZ RBMEITREL AR -

(b) BHKB/TELRARER FHERERN
FEEAMRER FRREE -

(0 ERBMEXTI2EFEINER R HESXE

Fﬂ

(d) RERBAARESFHABTEHRE -
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38.

Fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments (continued)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the
valuation of derivative component of the Acquired Convertible
Bonds together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31
March 2015:

38. TRMTARATEER (&)

AT REERBIBRBESR -_FT-—AF=A=+—HB2ZE
ATABRBARBEREEFRENT ZHME

Sensitivity of fair value
to the input
WABBHAFEZHBRE

Valuation Significant of
technique unobservable inputs Value
fh{E Bl ERFAEEE A BE BE
Derivative component Binomial tree Underlying equity HK$17,732,000
of Acquired pricing model value of 17,732,000/ 7T
Convertible Bonds I EHAEE Great Desire
BB MR ES 2 RA Great Desire 2 1R
PTETHEBH HEREE

Expected volatility
L)

The directors believe that the estimated fair values resulting from
the valuation technique, which are recorded in the consolidated
statement of financial position, and the related changes in fair
values, which are recorded in the statement of profit or loss, are
reasonable, and that they were the most appropriate values at the
end of the reporting period.

China Jinhai International Group Limited FEI &SRB EEERA A

27.71%

5% increase/(decrease) in equity
value would result in increase/
(decrease) in fair value by
HK$714,000/(HK$672,000)

EEEE A (TF) 5% a8
BNTFERE M, OR) 714,000
#7t,/(672,00047T)

5% increase/(decrease) in expected
volatility would result in increase/
(decrease) in fair value by
HK$313,000/(HK$286,000)

TEERE) EA (T F2) 5% AT 6
BATEE M, /) 313,000
#7T,/(286,000%7T)

HERMTERN EEATE (REE Bk R

AR) RAFEREZY (WEaRAR) DEAERER
WEMRTEENGE
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Fair value hierarchy of financial 38. €I TAAFEER (&)

instruments (continued)

Fair value hierarchy A ERER

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy TRITAEESMTANATFEER :
of the Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value: ERFEGEEE -

Group REE

As at 31 March 2015

R=Z-—HF=A=+—H

Fair value measurement using

ERA TR B FiE2 N FERE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets input inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

EXTER EAFUBE
RNERTSHRE BARE LPN ¢

(B-EBR) (B5=ER) (B=ER) @5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THET TET TAR
Debt component of Acquired BB AR ER 2 BED
Convertible Bonds - 15,529 - 15,529
Derivative component of Acquired — BWEAAREH 2 HT4ETASH
Convertible Bonds - - 4,034 4,034
Equity investments at fair value BRBREATENRRARE
through profit or loss 338,722 - - 338,722
338,722 15,529 4,034 358,285
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38. Fair value hierarchy of financial 38. BT AEAFEER (&)
instruments (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued) ATEEER (&)
Assets measured at fair value: (continued) BRFEGEMEE - (8)
Group (continued) AEE (&)

As at 31 March 2014 RZE—NWFE=A=+—H

Fair value measurement using

ERNATEBMEC A HESE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets input inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

EATER  EATUER
WNARETSRE AR BABE

(B—ER) (EZER) (B=ER) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT TET TET AT
Available-for-sale equity investments a[{tHERAKE 14,461 - - 14,461
Equity investments at fair value BBEREATESIRRARE
through profit or loss 176,617 - - 176,617
Derivative component of Issued BEITAMRES 2T TASH
Convertible Bonds - - 14,804 14,804
191,078 - 14,804 205,882
Company AAT
As at 31 March 2015 R-EB-HE=A=+—H
Fair value measurement using
EANTIEB FrfEZ AFEE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets input inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

EATEE EAFUEE
RERTSRE BARE BABE

(F—ER) (B=ER) (B=ER) @t
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
TR TER TRER TR

Derivative component of Issued BETARES 2 TE T AR
Convertible Bonds = = - -
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38.

Fair value hierarchy of financial 38.

instruments (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Assets measured at fair value: (continued)
Company (continued)

As at 31 March 2014

Notes to Financial Statements

B H%5 R B ot
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EMITAAFEHER (H)

DNPEER (&)
BAFEGEMEE  (#)
AEE (&)
R-ZE-—MF=A=+—H

Fair value measurement using

FERNATEBMEZ A HESE

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets input inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

BAAER  EANIER

RERTSR(E BARE AR
(B—ER) (F=EH) (E=ER) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT TET THET THAT

Derivative component of Issued BETABREF  TET AR

Convertible Bonds - - 14,804 14,804

During the year ended 31 March 2015, there was no transfer into

or out of level 3.

The movements in fair value measurements in Level 3 during the

year ended 31 March 2014 are as follows:

Group and Company

REBEZE-_T-—AF=A=+—HIFE  HIEEA
EREHEE=ER -

KRE-Z-ME=A=+—AILFE E=BR
AFEHEZHHMT :
AEERAAT

2014 —Z—[04F

HK$'000 T/t
Derivative Component of Issued B BT MRES 2 T T AERM -
Convertible Bonds:
At 1 April REA—H _
Transfer from level 2 HEEAE_[ER 4,533
Fair value gains N EREE 10,271
At 31 March R=R=+—~” 14,804
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38.

39.

Fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

In the opinion of the Company’s directors, the unobservable
inputs for valuation of are significant to the valuation of derivative
component as at 31 March 2014. The fair value measurement
of derivative component of Issued Convertible Bonds has been
reclassified to level 3 fair value measurement. The Group policy is
to recognise transfers into and transfers out of level 3 as of the
date of event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 (2014: Nil).

The Group and the Company did not have any financial liabilities
measured at fair value as at 31 March 2015 and 2014.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise equity
investments, convertible bonds and bonds, cash and bank
balances and restricted bank balances. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group's operations.
The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as
trade receivables and trade payables. Details of the major financial
instruments and the Group’s accounting policies in relation to
them are disclosed in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and equity price risk. The
board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each
of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk
The Group does not have any significant exposure to the risk of

changes in market interest rates, and therefore it does not use
derivative financial instruments to hedge its debt obligations.

China Jinhai International Group Limited FEI &SRB EEERA A

38.

39.

EMIAQAFEHER ()

DFEER (&)

AAREERA R_T-—MWE=A=+—H 1
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ES)l:g



39.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis and the Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant.
The Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
trade debtor at the end of each reporting period to ensure that

adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and bank balances, restricted bank balances,
available-for-sale equity investments and equity investments
at fair value through profit or loss, arises from default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying

amounts of these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a
recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity
of both its financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade
receivables) and projected cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity
of funding and flexibility through the use of the Group’s available
cash and its available banking facilities.

39.
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39. Financial risk management objectives and 39. BBEKREEEEREEK (&)
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued) nBESRR (&)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end REBBEEFTORMBENRTS T B ERRE
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted R B HABDR AT

payments, is as follows:

Group - 2015 rEE-—Z—HF
3to
Less than  less than 1to5
On demand 3 months 12 months years Total
ZEDR
RER DPR=@EA +=@ER —E&EF st

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET FHET FHET

Trade payables B SRR 3 - - - 3
Financial liabilities included in &+ A E b & 15 BR 7k & &
other payables and accruals STERZeRAE 2,749 187,119 - - 189,868
Finance lease payables FENRmERER - 42 140 340 522
2,752 187,161 140 340 190,393
Group — 2014 REE — —F—HF
3 to
Less than less than 1to5
On demand 3 months 12 months years Total
=ELR
REX PR=EH +=f&A —ERF #aEt

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT

Trade payables BB SRR - = 16 = 16

Financial liabilities included in &t A E b & 15 BR 30 K2 &
other payables and accruals FERAZEREE 2,518 6,781 - - 9,299
Finance lease payables ERTRE R SR - 43 127 552 722
Issued Convertible Bonds BETARRES - - - 100,000 100,000
Issued Bonds BEETES = - - 109,219 109,219
2,518 6,824 143 209,771 219,256
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39.

Financial risk management objectives and 39.

policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

Company - 2015

Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2015

RBESEE (&)

ARF-—F-HF

B H%5 R B ot

—T—H¥=A=+—8H

MHEEREERBEREE (&)

3to
Less than less than 1to 5
On demand 3 months 12 months years Total
ZEDR
RER LR=EA +=M@A —EAF st
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FHET THET FET THET
Other payables and accruals HibENERR R BT E - 174,061 - - 174,061
Due to subsidiaries AR EPNGIE R 7,546 - - - 7,546
7,546 174,061 = = 181,607
Company - 2014 ARE — ZF—MF
3 to
Less than less than 1t05
On demand 3 months 12 months years Total
=ELR
RER PR=@EAR +ZEA —ELF #asEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
THETT FET THETT T THETT
Due to subsidiaries FERHT B A TIZIAa 7,498 - - - 7,498
Other payables and accruals HibENERF R BT E R - 1,355 - - 1,355
Issued Convertible Bonds EETABRES = - - 100,000 100,000
Issued Bonds BEITES = = = 109,219 109,219
7,498 1,355 - 209,219 218,072
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RR MR

31 March 2015 =Z—HF=A=+—H

39.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities
decrease as a result of changes in the value of individual securities.
The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from individual
equity investments classified as trading equity investments (note
19) and available-for-sale investments (note 17) as at 31 March
2015. The Group’s listed investments are listed on the Hong Kong
and Singapore stock exchanges and are valued at quoted market
prices at the end of the reporting period.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 5%
change in the fair values of the equity investments, with all other
variables held constant and before any impact on tax, based
on their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period.
For the purpose of this analysis, for the available-for-sale equity
investments the impact is deemed to be on the available-for-sale
equity investment revaluation reserve and no account is given for
factors such as impairment which might impact on the statement
of profit or loss.

39.

MBEREEBEREK ()

BRA B

BRAE R R i R E R 5 2 BENREEH S A
BEAFET®KZEAR R_T—RAF=A=+—
B AEEAXEADBARZEMNBRAKRE (M
19) RAHHERE (HE17) 2 @RI A E M
EEZBAERAR AEE 2z FREETER
MINKRESZRZ M LT - R E R AP RS E
(g -

TRETRERSHRZEEE  RAREZAF
E5%EENMAA H & B T2 BHBRTIA
ZEMZERZBRE - AR F - HA b
ERAREZZERRRE A HEERAREER
T E ETLEERHESAUEYERER
ZBE-

Change Change
Carrying amount in the in the
of equity Group's loss Group's
investments before tax equity*
RARE REBERBLAT RNEE
IREE BB E SR
HK$'000 F & T HK$'000 F &7t HK$'000 F %t
2015 —B-RHE
Investments listed in: RIFIEEZKRE
Hong Kong — Held-for-trading B8 —H#1EEE 338,722 16,936 -
> Excluding accumulated losses * TEERTER
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39.

Notes to Financial Statements

B H%5 R B ot

31 March 2015 =Z—H&=A=+—H

Financial risk management objectives and 39.

policies (continued)

Equity price risk (continued)

BRAEERERE (&)

MBEREEBEREK ()

Change Change
Carrying amount in the in the
of equity Group's loss Group’s
investments before tax equity*
IRAIRE RNEERRTEA REE
AREE EEEH T B E)*
HK$'000 T4 7T HK$'000 F%7T HK$'000 F# 7T
2014 —T—mF
Investments listed in: RTNEBEZKE :
Hong Kong — Available-for-sale &% — [t & 650 = 33
— Held-for-trading —HEBEE 176,617 8,831 -
Singapore — Available-for-sale o — Al E 13,811 - 691
& Excluding accumulated losses d TBIERTER
Capital management BEXEE

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business
and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2015 and
2014.

AEBBEAERZ TR RRARERNRERSEE
BREFZENERER  USHFHEEBL RN
IR AfE(E

AEEERAEEARRRE  IREBLEIRINEER
HREEZRREEMELRE - AEBEM AR
IR T RCRAORR S, - MRRREBE AR BEITHAR -
NGRS AEEARE BE_T-—HFR T —
ME=ZA=1+—BLEFE AEEEEELNE
B BERIEFUEELES) -
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B RR MR

31 March 2015 =Z—HF=A=+—H

39. Financial risk management objectives and 39. BBEKREEEEREEK (&)
policies (continued)

Capital management (continued) BEXRERE (&)
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-equity ratio REBABESERLE (REEABERUERE
calculated as total debt divided by total equity. The debt-to-equity HatH) cBEEEEHER - RREMRCEERY
ratios as at the end of the reporting periods were as follows: HERRLL R ¢
Group N&EME
2015 =Z—HF 2014 —Z—N%F
HK$'000 & 7T HK$'000 F/&7T
Trade payables FERTE SRR 8 16
Finance lease payables ERREHER 512 654
Other payables and accruals HAER RN ETE B 195,044 12,645
Liability component of the Issued BRI ES 2 BESDH
Convertible Bonds - 73,386
Liability component of the Issued Bonds 2 %771&% 2 B &35 7 - 79,421
Total debt BIEAE 195,559 166,122
Total equity LSRR 1,118,727 128,689
Debt-to-equity ratio EPEEA g 17.5% 129%
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40.

(a)

(b)

(o)

41.

Event after the reporting period
Disposal of King Place

On 12 May 2015, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to dispose of its entire interest in King Place
to an independent third party for a total consideration of
HK$94,000,000. With reference to the original acquisition cost
of King Place, the transaction is estimated to result in a gain on
disposal before tax of approximately HK$2,000,000.

Subscription of new shares by an independent third
party

On 20 May 2015,
agreement with a subscriber (the “Subscriber”), an independent

the Group entered into a subscription

third party, pursuant to which the Group has conditionally
agreed to allot and issue to the Subscriber and the Subscriber
has conditionally agreed to subscribe for, in cash, 4,000,000,000
subscription shares at the subscription price of HK$0.25 each.
The gross proceeds of the subscription is estimated to be
HK$1,000,000,000.

The Group intends to use approximately 90% of the proceeds for
its long-term and short-term securities investments, money lending
business and approximately 10% of the proceeds for the research
and development of integrated circuit technology and as general
working capital of the Group.

Disposal of Alpha Ease

On 29 May 2015, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to dispose of its entire interest in Alpha Ease
to an independent third party for a cash consideration of
HK$13,500,000. With reference to the original acquisition cost
of Alpha Ease, the transaction is estimated to result in a loss on
disposal before tax of approximately HK$1,500,000.

Approval of the financial statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 26 June 2015.

40.

(a)

(b)

()

41.

Notes to Financial Statements

B H%5 R B ot

31 March 2015 =Z—H&=A=+—H

BERREH
= U

RZZE—AFHA+=R AEEIIEEHE -
NE—R2BUE=ZFHEENRITF 2 2HER

R {8 7294,000,000/8 7T © &2 E R 2 [R U K
K ZHMEFTEHR T AT S H 5 492,000,000

JC °

B E=FRBHRND

ﬁ“‘ifﬁiﬁﬂ A ARER-2BUE=

RET ([REDD FTILRBEHH - &R A%
EEGHRASARBIEERET  MRBAAK
HRENRRE au,lé%4,ooo 000,000/ R & B 17 » R
BELSER0258T - RBMEHBRBEMR
1,000,000,000/8 7T °

AEBHHO0%FAEHRARANERARERESR
& REXER U 10%MASFIEANMEEKE
BREAA R BIEASE —REEES -

HEAlpha Ease

Eé*%—ﬁiﬁﬁl —+hB AEEFTZEER

AR — BB E = F & HERAlpha EaseZ
iﬁwfé?& » 34 {8 513,500,000/ 70 - K2 %
Alpha EaseZ RUBRKA » X 5 Ear EEBR T AT
& &18491,500,0007 7T °

B ISR R 2 HE A

MBBREN =T
R IRAETE -

—AFRNAZTARBEEEESH
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Particulars of the Property Held by the Group

REE

SEYEFS

31 March 2015 =E—RF=A=+—H

Investment Property REYE
Attributable
interest

Location Use Tenure of the Group
3t B A% HH rEBEGER
15th Floor, Office Long term lease 100%
China United Centre,
No. 28 Marble Road,
North Point,
Hong Kong
e i NES REHE 100%
It ASEE285
FEPE AL
1548
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